AultCare Insurance Company Canton, Ohio

Certificate of Coverage and Benefits

This Certificate explains the basics of Your Health Care Coverage, Benefits and duties under the Master Group Policy. Your Benefits Chart, which is a part of this Certificate, gives the details of Your Coverage, including exceptions to the general Exclusions, as well as the rules You must follow, and how much You may need to pay. Keep them in a safe place. Check both this Certificate and Your Benefits Chart when You have questions.

NOTICE: IF YOU OR YOUR FAMILY MEMBERS ARE COVERED BY MORE THAN ONE HEALTH CARE PLAN, YOU MAY NOT BE ABLE TO COLLECT BENEFITS FROM BOTH PLANS. EACH PLAN MAY REQUIRE YOU TO FOLLOW ITS RULES OR USE SPECIFIC DOCTORS AND HOSPITALS, AND IT MAY BE IMPOSSIBLE TO COMPLY WITH BOTH PLANS AT THE SAME TIME. READ ALL OF THE RULES VERY CAREFULLY, INCLUDING THE COORDINATION OF BENEFITS SECTION AND COMPARE THEM WITH THE RULES OF ANY OTHER PLAN THAT COVERS YOU OR YOUR FAMILY.

Please call 330-363-6360, or toll-free for members outside Stark County at 1-800-344-8858 to talk to the AultCare Service Center, or visit our website at www.aultcare.com. You also may write us at:

AultCare Service Center P.O. Box 6910 Canton, OH 44706

Table of Contents

SECTION 1- BASIC INFORMATION AT A GLANCE	
SECTION 2- FRAUD WARNING	8
SECTION 3- ENROLLEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	8
SECTION 4- LET YOUR EMPLOYER KNOW WHEN YOUR RECORDS NEED TO BE UPDATED	9
SECTION 5- ELIGIBILITY FOR COVERAGE AND BENEFITS	10
SECTION 6- SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES FOR A CHILD WITH A DISABILITY	11
SECTION 7- ENROLLMENT	12
SECTION 8- COVERAGE FOR EMPLOYEES	
SECTION 9- COVERAGE FOR DEPENDENTS	14
SECTION 10- EVENTS THAT CAN AFFECT ELIGIBILITY, COVERAGE AND BENEFITS	16
SECTION 11- INDIVIDUAL REINSTATEMENTS	
SECTION 12- COBRA	19
SECTION 13 – CONTINUATION UNDER OHIO LAW	21
SECTION 14- GUARANTEED RENEWABILITY	
SECTION 15- USING NETWORK PROVIDERS	
SECTION 16- COVERED SERVICES (BENEFITS)	23
SECTION 17- COVERED OUTPATIENT SERVICES	
SECTION 18- COVERED INPATIENT HOSPITAL SERVICES	29
SECTION 19- EMERGENCY AND URGENT CARE SERVICES	31
SECTION 20- OTHER COVERED SERVICES	33
SECTION 21- MANAGED PRESCRIPTION DRUG PROGRAM	
SECTION 22- EXCLUSIONS	59
SECTION 23- USING YOUR AULTCARE CARD	63
SECTION 24- YOUR RESPONSIBILITY FOR COPAYMENTS, DEDUCTIBLES, COINSURANCE	64
SECTION 25- REFERENCE BASED PRICING ("RBP")	65
SECTION 26- FILING YOUR CLAIM	65
SECTION 27- YOUR HIPAA PRIVACY RIGHTS	67
SECTION 28- BENEFIT DETERMINATION	67
SECTION 29- COORDINATION OF THIS CONTRACT'S BENEFITS WITH OTHER BENEFITS	67
SECTION 30- EXPLANATION OF BENEFITS ("EOB")	73
SECTION 31- SUBROGATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND OTHER INSURANCE	74

SECTION 32- DETERMINATION OF TIME FRAMES	76
SECTION 33- QUESTIONS, COMPLAINTS, REVIEW AND APPEALS	78
SECTION 34- EXTERNAL REVIEW	82
SECTION 35- EXPEDITED REVIEW	84
SECTION 36- OTHER RIGHTS YOU MAY HAVE	85
SECTION 37- DEFINITIONS	85
SECTION 38- HIPAA PORTABILITY	102
SECTION 39- RESPONSIBILITIES AND RIGHTS UNDER ERISA AND OTHER FEDERAL LAW (IF APPLICABLE)	103
SECTION 40 – MISCELLANEOUS	112
SECTION 41- IMPORTANT TELEPHONE NUMBERS AND ADDRESSES	113
SECTION 42- OHIO LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION NOTICE	113

SECTION 1 - BASIC INFORMATION AT A GLANCE

Thank You for choosing AultCare Insurance Company.

A. <u>Who We Are</u>

Your Coverage and Benefits are through a Master Group Policy between Your Employer and AultCare Insurance Company. AultCare Insurance Company has a contract with its affiliate, AultCare Corporation, to provide Services. AultCare Insurance Company may do business as "AultCare." Your ID card may read "AultCare Insurance Company" or "AultCare".

We may use "AultCare," or "We," or "Us" to mean AultCare Insurance Company and affiliated vendors.

We will use "You" to mean You as the Employee and to Your Eligible Dependents who are Covered under the Master Group Policy between AultCare Insurance Company and Your Employer.

We will use "Employer" to mean Your Employer, who is the Policyholder of the Master Group Policy.

B. Why You Are Receiving this Certificate

Your Employer has a Master Group Policy with AultCare Insurance Company to provide health Coverage and Benefits to You and Your Eligible Dependents.

This Certificate summarizes Your Coverage and Benefits under the Master Group Policy. It is NOT an insurance policy or insurance contract with You. It does not alter the Coverage, Benefits, or terms of the Master Group Policy.

C. Using this Certificate and Benefits Chart

There are some items listed in this Certificate that may not be covered. Please refer to Your Benefits Chart to determine if a service is covered.

This Certificate explains the basics of Your Coverage and Benefits under the Master Group Policy. Your Benefits Chart, which is a part of this Certificate, gives the details of Your Coverage, including exceptions to the general Exclusions, as well as the rules You must follow, and how much You may need to pay. The Benefits Chart is not an insurance policy or insurance contract with You. Check both this Certificate and Your Benefits Chart when You have questions.

D. Independent Medical Decisions

AultCare does not employ Network Providers. AultCare does not practice medicine. Your Doctor is an independent practitioner. AultCare does not tell Your Doctor how to practice medicine. AultCare does not forbid Network Providers from talking to You about treatment options, even if these options are not Covered. Your Doctor is solely responsible for the medical care they provide. Hospitals and other Providers are solely responsible for the Services they provide.

AultCare is not liable if Doctors, Hospitals, pharmacies or others make mistakes about Your care. This applies to Network Providers and Non-Network Providers. You must not file a law suit against AultCare Insurance Company or AultCare for the negligence of Providers.

E. Claim Forms

You do not need to send in Claim forms when You go to a Network Provider. You may need to send in forms if You go to a Non-Network Provider.

Written proof of loss or Claims must be furnished to Us within 90 days after the Termination of the period for which We are liable and in cases of Claims for any other loss within 90 days after the date of loss.

Failure to furnish proof within the time required will not invalidate or reduce any Claim if it was not reasonably possible to give proof within the appropriate timeframe, provided that documentation is provided as soon as reasonably possible and in no event, except in the absence of legal capacity, later than one year from the time proof is otherwise required.

F. Assignment

Benefits pay able under the Policy shall be paid, with or without assignment from You, to public Hospitals or clinics for Services and supplies provided to You when a proper Claim is submitted by the public Hospital or clinic. No Benefits shall be paid to the public Hospital or clinic if such Benefits have been paid to You prior to our receipt of the claim. Payment of Benefits to the public Hospital or clinic shall Discharge Us from all liability to You to the extent of such Benefits.

No properly filed assignment of Benefits to any person or organization other than a public Hospital or clinic is binding.

AultCare does not release any Plan governing documents to third parties (i.e. Providers, legal representatives, etc.) unless requested through a Court Order.

G. <u>Care Coordination</u>

Utilization Management Nurses and Care Coordination Nurses coordinate Your Inpatient and Outpatient Medical or Behavioral Health/Substance Abuse/Opioid Abuse care with Providers. These teams will review Your Plan of treatment, expected length of Hospital stay (if You are admitted to a Hospital), and other details of Your care to make sure You receive appropriate Benefits.

H. Utilization Management

Certain Services, such as admissions, Referrals, Home Health Care Services Skilled Nursing Facility Services, and Durable Medical Equipment, and genetic testing need Prior Authorization by the Utilization Management Department or Affiliated Vendor. Please note that this is not an exhaustive list of Services that require Prior Authorization. For a complete list, please contact the AultCare Service Center.

Requests for opioid dependence treatment at any level of care throughout the continuum will be handled as an Expedited Review.

We will use "UM" throughout this Certificate to mean Utilization Management. UM will promptly notify You of its decisions in writing.

If You are in the middle of ongoing Health Care, such as a Hospital stay, and a decision is made not to Cover all or part of Your stay, Coverage for Your Health Care will continue until You are notified of the decision. Benefits may stay the same for this period.

In certain situations, You may be able to receive Benefits for Services that are not specifically Covered if they can be offered in a non-Hospital setting. Utilization Management will decide when this is appropriate.

In situations when a decision is needed more quickly because of Your medical condition, UM will review the case as quickly as possible. We will promptly notify You in writing. If You are unhappy with UM's decision, You can Appeal. Please see Section 32 for more information regarding timeframes for review.

Our UM Department may require Precertification, Concurrent Review and Second Surgical Opinions.

Precertification

Precertification (also called Prior Authorization) is an evaluation of Your medical case by Your Provider and AultCare medical professionals to determine the appropriateness and Medical Necessity of Your Hospital admission and expected length of stay. If You do not receive Prior Authorization and it is later determined by our UM Department that the service is not Medically Necessary, the claim will not be paid. It means You or Your Network Provider must notify UM before You may receive certain Services, such as an elective Hospital stay, Transplants, and other Outpatient and Provider Services. Certain Referrals by Providers may require Prior Authorization. Precertification is needed to help determine if other appropriate medical care possibilities have been explored and are within acceptable time elements. Charges that exceed the Reference Based Pricing allow ance, also called "RBP," are not covered. The fact that a Provider referred You for certain Services, or that Prior Authorization was given, does not guarantee that Your Claim will be paid at the Network Provider level, or at the highest Benefit Level. Precertification is not required for treatment of Emergency Medical Conditions.

- 1. You need Precertification when:
 - a. You need to be seen by a Non-Network Provider, and You are requesting payment at the Network Provider rate.
 - b. You need Durable Medical Equipment with a purchase price of \$2,500 or greater.
 - c. Your Physician ordered genetic testing.
 - d. Your Physician orders or You are receiving care or treatment that requires a prior assessment to determine if the service meets clinical requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, level of care, or effectiveness.
- 2. <u>How to Request Precertification:</u>

For certain Diagnostic and Therapeutic Services including, but not limited to, CT, MRI, PET, Nuclear Cardiology, Medical Oncology, Radiation Therapy and Molecular Diagnostic Services, Your Provider May contact AultCare or Your Affiliated Vendor to request Precertification.

For all other Services:

- a. Network Providers may contact the UM Department and request Prior Authorization or the Network Provider may;
- b. Visit the AultCare website at www.AultCare.com to access the electronic Prior Authorization portal;
- c. If You use a Non-Network Provider, You must ensure that the Non-Network Provider contacts the UM Department to request Prior Authorization before You receive Services;
- d. You must be Precertified within two Business Days from when You become a Hospital Inpatient, or as soon as reasonably possible.
- 3. You have a Right to:
 - a. Receive basic information about which drugs and Services will require Precertification;
 - b. Receive Precertification for medications used to treat chronic diseases under certain circumstances up to a 12-month period of until the last day of Eligibility under Your policy or plan, whichever is less.

Concurrent Review

Concurrent Review is completed by AultCare Nurses in the UM Department when:

- 1. You are in the Hospital;
- 2. You have ongoing mental/behavioral health or alcohol/substance abuse treatment;
- 3. You have Home Health Care/Skilled Nursing Facility Services;
- 4. You are receiving Health Care goods or Services that continue over an extended period.

I. Definitions

Some terms in this Certificate have special meaning. Capitalized terms are defined in Section 40. If You do not know what a term means, call Us at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858.

Section 2- Fraud Warning

Any person who intentionally sends in an application or files a Claim containing a false or deceptive statement is guilty of insurance Fraud. If You know of Fraud, or believe Fraud may be occurring, contact our website at www.aultcare.com, or call Us at the Fraud hotline 1-800-204-5119, or 330-363-2887, or write Us at:

AultCare P.O. Box 6910 Canton, Ohio 44706

Section 3 - Enrollee Rights and Responsibilities

Quality Health Care and Benefits are responsibilities You share with Your Doctors and Your Plan. We want You to know Your responsibilities and rights. They are based on common sense, courtesy, and honest communication. If You have a question, concern, or a recommendation for how AultCare could improve its policies for promoting Enrollee responsibilities and rights, email Us via our website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u>.

You have a Right to:

- Receive information about the organization, its Services, its practitioners and Providers, and Member rights and responsibilities.
- Receive information about Your Coverage and Services.
- A list of Doctors, Hospitals, and other Network Providers. See our website, <u>www.aultcare.com</u>.
- Be treated with dignity and respect.
- A frank discussion with Your Doctor about Your medical condition, including appropriate and Medically Necessary treatment options, regardless of cost or Benefit Coverage and to participate in making decisions about Your Health Care. Your Doctors are independent. They are not restricted or prohibited from discussing treatment options with You, including those that are not covered.
- Privacy of Your Health Care and Claims information. Your Protected Health Information will be used to pay Claims, as permitted by HIPAA and as described in Your Notice of Privacy Practices. Protected Health Information will not be disclosed to others without Your authorization, except as permitted by HIPAA and state law.
- Ask questions, raise concerns, make Complaints, and Appeal Denials as explained in Your Certificate or Benefits booklet.
- To make recommendations about AultCare's Member Rights and Responsibilities Policy.
- Request accommodation if You have limited knowledge of the English language.

You have a Responsibility to:

- Take Your AultCare ID card when You go to the Doctor, Hospital, drug store, or Health Care Provider. It contains important information. Having Your card may help save time and prevent mistakes.
- Tell the Doctor or Nurse about Your condition. Tell Your Doctor what medications You are taking. Answ er any questions the Doctor or Nurse may ask You completely and truthfully. This information may help Your Doctor form treatment goals and alternatives. Understand Your health problems and participate in developing mutually agreed-upon goals.
- Ask questions if You do not understand something about Your medical condition and the treatment alternatives (including medications) the Doctor is recommending.
- Follow Your Doctor's medical advice and instructions. Take medications as directed. Let the Doctor know if You have a bad reaction. Let Your Doctor know if Your symptoms do not get better, or if they get w orse. Schedule recommended follow-up appointments.
- Live a healthy lifestyle.
- Be an informed Enrollee by checking Your Benefits Chart.
- Let Your Employ er know if there are changes with You and Your Dependents.
- Get all required Precertifications.
- Call AultCare if You have questions about Your Coverage or responsibilities.

Section 4 - Let Your Employer Know When Your Records Need To Be Updated

A. Keeping Your Records Up-to-Date is IMPORTANT

Having up-to-date records about You and Your Dependents is needed to know what Services are Covered and what Benefits You may receive. Outdated or incorrect information can cause mistakes, delays or Denial of Coverage.

B. Updating Records

Tell Your Employer within 31 calendar days if there are changes in Your name, address, phone number, marital status, or if there are changes with Your Dependents, such as when You have a New born or Adopted Child.

The Coverage for newly born Children shall consist of Coverage from birth through the 31st day of life and shall include, but not be limited to, necessary care and treatment of medically diagnosed Congenital Defects and birth abnormalities.

If the addition of a Child requires additional Premium, AultCare may require payment of the required Premium be paid within thirty one days after the date of birth in order to have the Coverage continue bey ond such period.

You need to Tell AultCare about any changes to Your Coverage, including Coverage and Benefits You or Your Dependents may have from other insurance.

If You applied for Individual Coverage, You can change to Family Coverage if You marry or add a Dependent. Failure to report any change in family status within thirty-one (31) days of change may result in Non-Coverage.

The date Coverage is effective for a Spouse or Child depends upon when We are notified. It is very important that Members keep Us informed of their family status. If there is a change in either the number of Dependents or the identity of a Dependent because of birth, death, marriage, divorce, adoption or any reason, We must be informed immediately. It is possible that Claims for family members may be denied if they are not properly reported as Dependents.

C. Using Your Current AultCare Card

It is important that You use Your current AultCare Card when You go to the Hospital, see Your Doctor or other Provider, or go to the drug store. Let Your Provider know when You get a new AultCare Card or if Your Coverage or Benefits change.

Section 5 - Eligibility for Coverage and Benefits

A. Eligibility

Eligibility means that an Employee or Dependent meets the requirements to enroll as a Covered Person in the Certificate and receive Coverage and Benefits.

B. Employee Eligibility

You are Eligible if:

- 1. You are Actively at Work for the minimum number of hours required. If You are absent from work on the date, Coverage is to begin because You are in the Hospital or Your absence is for health reasons, You will be considered Actively at Work. You must be on Your Employer's W-2 payroll. Volunteers and others who are not on the W-2 payroll are not Eligible for Coverage and Benefits under the Master Group Policy.
- 2. You meet Your Employ er's Eligibility policies.
- 3. You meet Your Employ er's Waiting Period (not to exceed 90 calendar days).

C. Eligibility of Your Spouse as a Dependent

Your Spouse may be Eligible as a Dependent if You are legally married.

If Your Spouse is employed and eligible for group health insurance Coverage through their employer's Plan, Your Spouse may be required to participate in that group Coverage. Please refer to Your Employer's Eligibility policies.

D. Eligibility of Children as Dependents

Your Children are Eligible as Dependents if the Child is:

- 1. Your natural-born or legally Adopted Child or a Child Placed with You for adoption.
- 2. Your Stepchild.
- 3. Named in a Qualified Medical Child Support Order and is otherwise Eligible for Coverage. We will enroll for immediate Coverage under this Policy any Dependent who is the subject of a Medical Child Support Order that is not already covered by this Policy as an Eligible Dependent once We determine that such order meets the standards for qualification under Section 609 of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act.
- 4. A Child for whom the court has named You Guardian.
- 5. A Child for whom a court has named You as having Legal Custody.
- 6. A Child for whom You are required to provide health insurance by court or administrative order.
- 7. A child who has not yet reached the end of the month in which they turn twenty-six (26) or a Child You are Guardian of who has not yet reached the end of the month of the Guardianship expiration as appointed by the court.

Coverage is available to Your Dependent Child without regard to whether the Child is married or unmarried.

E. <u>No Genetic Screening</u>

Eligibility for Coverage is not subject to genetic testing or any results of genetic testing.

F. <u>Tell Your Employer When a Dependent No Longer is Eligible</u>

You must tell Your Employer within 31 calendar days if a Child no longer is Eligible as a Dependent.

Section 6 - Special Circumstances for a Child with a Disability

A Child who cannot take care of oneself because of a Mental or Physical Disability may continue as an Eligible Dependent if:

- 1. The Child is incapacitated while insured as a Dependent by AultCare, or by another Health Care Plan, before the end of the month in which that Child turns 26 and;
- 2. The Child is incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of an intellectual Disability or physical handicap; and
- 3. The Child is primarily dependent upon the policyholder for support and maintenance.
- 4. You give proof of incapacity. We may request proof once every 2 years.

Section 7 - Enrollment

A. <u>Enrollment</u>

Enrollment means You and Your Dependents may sign up for Coverage and Benefits under Your Employer's Master Group Policy.

B. Initial Enrollment

Initial Enrollment is when a new Employee must complete an Enrollment Application. Some Plans permit You to complete Initial Enrollment within 31 calendar days from the date You are hired. Other Plans permit Initial Enrollment 31 calendar days from the date of new Eligibility after You complete a Waiting Period (not to exceed 90 calendar days).

C. Open Enrollment

Employers have Open Enrollment Periods (at a minimum 30 consecutive days) when Eligible Employees are given the option to:

- 1. Pick a different Health Care Plan.
- 2. Add or drop Health Care Coverage.
- 3. Add or drop Dependents.

If You choose not to enroll Yourself or Your Eligible Dependents during Your Employer's Open Enrollment Period or within 31 days following the date of any event that qualifies for special enrollment, You must wait until the next annual Open Enrollment Period.

D. Special Enrollment

Special Enrollment is when an Eligible Employee, who did not enroll in the Plan when Eligible or during Open Enrollment, may enroll because of special circumstances. Unless specifically stated otherwise, You may enroll within 31 days from the date of a Triggering Event.

E. <u>Dependent Special Enrollment</u>

Dependent Special Enrollment is a 31 calendar day period when an Eligible Dependent of an Employee may enroll because of marriage, birth, adoption, or Placement for Adoption. An Eligible Dependent also may enroll during the Dependent Special Enrollment Period if that Dependent previously had not been Eligible to enroll during Open Enrollment, or the Dependent did not enroll because of other Coverage, which that Dependent no longer has. If You are required by court or administrative order to provide Coverage to a Child, the Child must be enrolled in this Plan without any Enrollment Period restrictions.

F. How to Enroll

To enroll for Coverage and Benefits under the Master Group Policy, You must complete an Enrollment Form in a timely manner.

G. How to Add a Dependent

To add an Eligible Dependent, see Your Employer as soon as possible. Fill out and return an Enrollment Form within 31 calendar days from the date of marriage, birth, adoption, Placement for Adoption or other Triggering Event.

H. How to Drop a Dependent

To drop a Dependent, see Your Employer as soon as possible.

I. When You need to Update Enrollment Information

There are times when You must update Enrollment information. For example, You must end Coverage for an ex-Spouse in a divorce. You must give Us a time-stamped Divorce Decree. You must end Coverage for a Child who is 26 years or older, unless the Dependent Child is disabled.

See Your Employer as soon as possible to update, change or end Coverage for Yourself or for a Dependent

Section 8 - Coverage for Employees

A. <u>When Coverage Begins</u>

- 1. Each Employ ee in an eligible class on the date the Master Group Policy takes effect will be eligible for Coverage on that date. Each Employee who enters such class after this date may be eligible for Coverage on the first day after they complete the Waiting Period (not to exceed 90 Calendar days).
- 2. If You or Your Dependents are in an eligible class, but You are absent from work on the date Coverage is to begin because You are in the Hospital or Your absence is for health reasons, You will be considered Actively at Work and eligible for Coverage to begin. Coordination of Benefits will apply if You have other Coverage.

B. Your Coverage will only be terminated for the following reasons and will end at the earliest of:

- 1. The date Coverage ends for everyone under the terms of Your Employer's Master Group Policy;
- 2. The end of the period for which the last Premium has been paid for You;

- 3. The date Your Employer's Master Group Policy ends;
- 4. The end of the period for which You made the last Contribution;
- 5. The last day of the Coverage Month of the date employment ends except as stated in the Right To Continue Coverage provision;
- 6. The last day of the Coverage Month in which You request Termination, but not prior to the date of the request;
- 7. The last day of the Coverage Month in which You retire;
- 8. The last day of the Coverage Month of the date employment ends for which You enter active military service for any country, except for temporary duty of 30 days or less, or when a reservist is ordered to active duty, as provided by Ohio law; or
- The last day of the Coverage Month in which You cease to be Actively At Work, except if You cease to be Actively At Work due to Sickness or Accidental Bodily Injury, Hospitalization Coverage will continue until the <u>earliest</u> of the following:
 - a. The last day of the Coverage Month for which the last Contribution is made;
 - b. Inpatient care is no longer Medically Necessary;
 - c. Discharge from the Hospital for episode of care; or
 - d. Coverage by another carrier begins.

Check with Your Employer as to when Your Coverage Terminates based on Your circumstances and for options that are available to You for additional Coverage under Federal and Ohio law.

Section 9 - Coverage for Dependents

A. Date Your Dependents are Eligible for Coverage

Your Dependents will be Eligible for Coverage the later of:

- 1. The date You are Eligible for Employee's Coverage; or
- 2. The date You gain a Dependent.

B. <u>To Add a Dependent</u>

- 1. To add a Dependent, tell Your Employer within 31 calendar days of the Triggering Event, such as marriage, birth, adoption or Placement for Adoption. If You fail to do so, You must wait for Open Enrollment.
- 2. Fill out the Enrollment Form if You are adding a new born, an Adopted Child, a Child placed for adoption or a Child for whom You are required to provide health insurance Coverage by court or administrative order. Include the Dependent Child's name, social security number (if available), date of birth (or other Triggering Event) and Coordination of Benefits information. If a New born does not yet have a social security number, You may submit the Enrollment Form without the new born's social

security number. Please apply for a social security number right away. Once You get it, give it to Your Employer.

- 3. If the addition of a child requires additional Premium, AultCare may require payment of the required Premium be paid within thirty-one days after the date of birth in order to have the Coverage continue bey ond such period.
- 4. If the Dependent is Your Stepchild, include a copy of a complete, official, time-stamped and recorded final Div orce Decree or Court Order that indicates who is responsible for Health Care Cov erage.

C. Date Dependent Coverage Takes Effect

- 1. If Coverage is Noncontributory, it will become Effective for Your Dependent on the day the Dependent becomes Eligible and Coverage becomes Effective. You must be Covered in order for Your Dependents to be Covered.
- 2. If Dependent Coverage is Contributory, it will become Effective after You apply for Dependent Coverage on the Enrollment Form and agree in writing to pay the required Contributions for Your Dependent, and on the date Your Dependent becomes Eligible.
- 3. On the date of birth for a Child born after the Effective Date of Your Coverage. If Your Plan requires an additional Premium payment to maintain Coverage for the Child, You must notify Your Employer of the Birth and request Coverage for that Child within the 31-day period following the Child's birth in order to continue Coverage after the initial 31-day Coverage period.
- 4. On the date of adoption, Placement for Adoption, or court or administrative order to provide health insurance to a Child. Coverage will be effective for the first 31 Calendar days following adoption, Placement for Adoption or court or administrative order requiring You to provide health insurance to a Child. You must notify Your Employer of the adoption, Placement for Adoption, or court or administrative order within 31 calendar days following the date of such event in order to continue Coverage after 31 calendar days. You may need to pay an additional Premium.

D. Your Dependent's Coverage Ends the earliest of:

- 1. The last day of the Coverage Month in which Your Dependent no longer meets Eligibility requirements;
- 2. The last day of the Coverage Month for which the last Contribution is made;
- 3. The date the Master Group Policy is terminated;
- 4. The date Inpatient care is no longer Medically Necessary;
- 5. Discharge from the Hospital for episode of care; or
- 6. The date Coverage by another carrier begins.

7. The end of the month the Dependent, whom the court has named You Guardian, has expired as appointed by the court.

E. <u>To End Dependent Coverage</u>

- 1. To end Coverage for a Dependent, tell Your Employer within 31 calendar days from the Triggering Event.
- 2. Your Employer will give You a form to remove the Dependent from Your Plan.
- 3. If Your Spouse is ending Coverage as a Dependent, they must sign the Enrollment Form stating that they are no longer is Covered by Your Plan. If Your ex -Spouse does not sign because of divorce, We may require You to give Us a copy of the official, time-stamped and recorded final Divorce Decree.
- 4. If Your Child is ending Coverage as a Dependent because they reached the age of 26, tell Your Employer immediately.

F. Children's Health Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2009

The Children's Health Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2009 (CHIP) permits You or Your Dependent, if eligible but not enrolled in Coverage under Your Group Health Plan, to enroll if either of the following conditions is met:

- 1. You or Your Dependent covered under Medicaid or the State Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) has Coverage terminated as a result of loss of Eligibility, and You request Coverage for You or Your Dependent within 60 Calendar days after Termination; or
- 2. You or Your Dependent becomes eligible for a subsidy (state assistance program) under Medicaid or CHIP, if You request Coverage within 60 Calendar days after the Eligibility determination date.

Section 10 - Events that Can Affect Eligibility, Coverage and Benefits

A. Changing From Individual Coverage to Family Coverage

If You have Individual Coverage, and You have a Triggering Event, You may change to Family Coverage. The date Family Coverage becomes Effective for a Spouse or Child may depend on when You notify Your Employer. It is important that You tell Your Employer as soon as possible, but no later than 31 calendar days from the Triggering Event, about changing to Family Coverage. Failure to let Your Employer know within 31 calendar days may result in Non-Coverage or Denial of Claims.

B. Enrolling in Medicare

Tell Your Employer if You or a Dependent enrolls in Medicare. Your Coverage may no longer be Primary if You or Your Dependent enrolls in Medicare. Reference the 'Coordination of this Contract's Benefits with Other Benefits' section of this document.

C. Going on Disability

- 1. If You go on Disability, Your Eligibility and Coverage could be affected.
- 2. Disability means that You are unable to perform Your employment functions or work at Your Employer because of injury or Sickness for a period that Your Employer has set.
- 3. Check with Your Employer.

D. <u>Temporary Layoff or Leave of Absence</u>

If You temporarily stop being Actively at Work because of Temporary Layoff or approved Leave of Absence not subject to FMLA, Your Eligibility may be affected and Your Coverage may Terminate. Check with Your Employer as to when Your Coverage Terminates based on Your circumstances. When Coverage Terminates, You may be eligible for COBRA. Your Coverage will Terminate on the earliest of:

- The 90th day after You stop being Actively at Work, unless otherwise provided (check with Your Employer – Your Employer's employment policies will determine whether Your length of service makes You eligible for a maximum of up to 90 days of Coverage); or
- 2. The date Premium payments stop; or
- 3. The date stated in the Collective Bargaining agreement, if applicable to Your Employer sponsored Coverage.

E. Going on Family Leave

Family Medical Leave Act (also called "FMLA"), which allows You to take up to 12 work weeks of unpaid, jobprotected leave a year, may apply to Your Employer. If FMLA applies and You go on an approved Family Leave, that could affect Your Eligibility and Coverage. Please check with Your Employer.

F. Going on Military Duty

USERRA

If Coverage would terminate because You take a Leave of Absence under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 ("USERRA"), as modified by the Veterans' Benefits Improvement Act of 2004, Your Benefits may continue for the lesser of the period of leave or 24 months. Coverage may Continue only as long as You make the required Contributions. If You are on a USERRA leave for less than 31 calendar days, You must make the same Contribution as is required for active Employees. If You are on a USERRA leave for 31 calendar days or longer, You may be required to pay up to 102% of the full cost (Employee and Employer Contributions) of Coverage.

Ohio Law for Reservists Called or Ordered to Active Duty

- 1. If You are a reservist who is called or ordered to active duty, Your Employer must notify You of the option to continue Coverage for up to 18 months after the date on which the Coverage otherwise would end because You are called or ordered to active duty. You may continue to receive Coverage for up to 18 months, so long as You or Your Employer pays the Premium.
- 2. Coverage may be continued for up to 36 months if any of the following occur during that 18-month period:
 - a. Death, divorce or separation of the reservist; or
 - b. A reservist's Dependent Child ceases to meet Eligibility requirements.
- 3. You must give Your Employer a written election to continue Coverage. You may be required to pay the Employer the first payment. Your Employer must receive the written election and payment no later than 31 calendar days after the date on which Your Coverage otherwise would end. You must continue to pay the monthly amount to keep Coverage. See Your Employer or call Us if You have any questions.

G. <u>Retirement</u>

Coverage ends when You voluntarily cease to be Actively Working for Your Employer.

H. Workers' Compensation

This Plan is not a Workers' Compensation policy and is not issued in lieu thereof. The Benefits under this Certificate are not designed to duplicate Benefits that Members are eligible for under the Workers' Compensation Law. All money paid or owed by Workers' Compensation for Services provided to a Member shall be paid back by, or on behalf of, the Member to the Plan if the Plan has made or makes payment for the Services received. It is understood that Coverage under this Certificate does not replace or affect any Workers' Compensation Coverage requirements and this Certificate does not satisfy any requirements for Coverage by Workers' Compensation Insurance.

This Plan does not cover:

- 1. Charges eligible for Coverage under any Workers' Compensation Law or similar law
- 2. Injuries at work if Workers' Compensation is available, required, or applicable, regardless of whether a Workers' Compensation Claim is filed
- 3. Charges for You, Your Dependents, or Spouse for a work related injury or illness while self-employed if eligible to obtain Coverage under any Workers' Compensation Act or similar law

Section 11 - Individual Reinstatements

If Your Coverage ends because You are laid off or Discharged, it may be Reinstated if You return to work.

The following apply:

- 1. If Your return occurs within 13 weeks from the date of layoff or Discharge, Your Coverage becomes Effective on the date You return.
- 2. If Your return occurs more than 13 weeks after the date of layoff or Discharge, You may be considered a new employee, and the Coverage for Employees Section may apply.
- 3. You may need to pay a Premium before You can be Reinstated.
- 4. Benefits Reinstated will not exceed the Maximum Benefits that would have been available if You or Your Dependents had been continuously Covered, without a Termination Date or interruption.
- 5. Check with Your Employer if You have questions about Reinstatement.

Section 12 - COBRA

A. COBRA Continuation of Benefits

If Your Employer has 20 or more Employees and the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) of 1985, applies, certain events will permit You or Your Dependents to choose to continue Coverage with AultCare by paying monthly Premiums. You may choose to continue Coverage in the following situations:

- 1. Termination of employment (except for gross misconduct) or reduction of hours of employment.
- 2. Employee death.
- 3. Divorce of Covered Employee.
- 4. A Dependent Child reaching the Limiting Age for Coverage.
- 5. Bankruptcy of Employer.
- 6. The Covered Employee becomes eligible for Medicare.

B. Continuing Period

- 1. If Your employment is terminated or Your hours are reduced, You may choose to continue Coverage for up to 18 months. In the case of a divorce, legal separation, or death of the Employee, You may elect to continue Coverage for up to 36 months.
- 2. If You or the person who seeks to continue Coverage under COBRA is Totally Disabled for Social Security purposes, the 18-month period may be extended to 29 months. To receive the additional 11 months of Coverage, Social Security must have determined that You or Your Eligible Dependent were Totally Disabled within the first 60 calendar days of COBRA Coverage. You must notify Your Employer within 60 calendar days of the date of Termination. These maximum extension periods may be offset by any other period extension.
- 3. If You are on COBRA because of Termination of employment or a reduction in hours, and a divorce, legal separation or death occurs, You may be able to elect an additional 36 months of Coverage.

C. End of COBRA Coverage

COBRA Coverage will end before the end of this maximum period for any of the following reasons:

- 1. Failure to pay applicable Premiums for the Coverage within the allowable grace period;
- 2. The former Spouse or Dependent Child becomes entitled to Benefits under the Social Security Act;
- 3. The Employee or Dependent is Covered under any other Group Health Plan. AultCare Coverage ends when the new Coverage begins;
- 4. The Employee or Dependent is entitled to Medicare Benefits;
- 5. A former Spouse remarries and is Covered under another group Plan; or
- 6. Termination of the Master Group Policy between AultCare and Your Employer.

EXCEPTIONS: There are three (3) exceptions:

- 1. If an Employee or family member is disabled at any time during the first sixty (60) days of Continuation Coverage (running from the date of Termination of employment or reduction in hours), the Continuation Coverage period for all qualified beneficiaries under the qualifying event is twenty-nine (29) months from the date of Termination or reduction in hours. The Social Security Administration must formally determine under Title II (Old Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance) or Title XVI (Supplemental Security Income) of the Social Security Act that the Disability exists and when it began. For the twenty-nine (29)-month Continuation Coverage period to apply, notice of the determination of Disability under the Social Security Act must be provided to the Company or the Plan Administrator both within the eighteen (18)-month Coverage period and within sixty (60) days after the date of the determination.
- If a second qualifying event that gives rise to a thirty -six (36)-month maximum Coverage period (for example, the Employee dies or becomes divorced) occurs within an eighteen (18)-month or twentynine (29)-month Coverage period, the maximum Coverage period becomes thirty-six (36) months from the date of the initial Termination or reduction in hours for the Spouse or Dependent Child.
- 3. If within the eighteen (18) month period after Medicare entitlement, the Employee experiences a qualifying event (due to Termination or reduction of hours worked) then the period of Continuation for family members, other than the Employee, who are qualified beneficiaries, is up to thirty -six (36) months from the date of Medicare entitlement.

If the Employee experiences a qualifying event on or before the date of Medicare entitlement, or after the expiration of the eighteen (18) month period after Medicare entitlement, both Employee and family members who are qualified beneficiaries are entitled to up to eighteen (18) months from the date of the qualifying event.

If the Employee's Medicare entitlement follows an initial qualifying event (due to Termination or reduction of hours worked) and would have resulted in a loss of Coverage had it occurred before the initial qualifying event, then other family members who are qualified beneficiaries will be allowed to elect COBRA Coverage up to thirty-six (36) months from the date of the initial qualifying event.

D. <u>Choosing COBRA Coverage</u>

In the case of Employee Termination, reduction in hours, or death, Your Employer will notify You and Your Dependents of Your COBRA options.

In the case of divorce or if Dependent ceases to be Eligible, You must notify Your Employer within 60 calendar days of that event. Failure to do so may make You ineligible for continued Coverage. Upon timely receipt of the information, Your Employer will notify You or Your Dependents of COBRA options.

Section 13 - Continuation Under Ohio Law

Ohio law requires Employers to give involuntarily terminated Employees the option of continuing their group medical Coverage for up to 12 months. You may be eligible to continue AultCare Coverage for You and Your Covered Dependents for up to 12 months after Termination, so long as You pay the Premium. Continuation Coverage may not exclude prescription drug Coverage if it is included in the group Coverage. You must meet all of the follow ing requirements:

- 1. You have been continuously insured under a group policy or under the policy and any prior similar group coverage replaced by this policy during the three-month period before Termination of Your employment.
- 2. You must have been involuntarily terminated, other than for gross misconduct.
- 3. You are neither eligible for, nor covered by, Medicare.
- 4. You are neither eligible for, nor covered by, any other insured or uninsured arrangement that provides Hospital, surgical or medical Coverage for individuals in a group.

Section 14 - Guaranteed Renewability

Your Employer may renew its Master Group Policy for all Eligible Employees and Dependents. There are exceptions. We may choose not to renew the Master Group Policy or to discontinue health Coverage for one or more of the following reasons:

- 1. Your Employer failed to pay Premiums.
- 2. Your Employer commits Fraud or Intentionally Misrepresents a Material Fact under the terms of Coverage.
- 3. The Master Group Policy is terminated.

Section 15 - Using Network Providers

A. <u>Services from Network Providers</u>

- 1. The Level of Benefits You receive under the Master Group Policy may be greater, and the amount You must pay Out-of-Pocket may be less, if You receive Covered Services from Network Providers.
- 2. Network Providers are listed in the Provider Directory, which is on Our website at www.aultcare.com.
- If Your Provider (or facility) is terminated without cause, You may be eligible for certain continuity of care protections. Specifically, we may continue to allow payment at the Network level of Benefits with this provider (or facility) until You are no longer considered a continuing care patient or for 90 days, whichever is shorter. Continuing care patients are defined as Individuals who would fall under one of the following criteria:
 - a. In the case of an acute illness, a condition that is serious enough to require specialized medical treatment to avoid the reasonable possibility of death or permanent harm;
 - b. In the case of a chronic illness or condition, a condition that is:
 - i. Life-threatening, degenerative, potentially disabling, or congenital; and
 - ii. Requires specialized medical care over a prolonged period of time, such as chemotherapy, radiation therapy, or post-operative visits;
 - c. Undergoing a course of institutional or inpatient care;
 - d. Scheduled to undergo non-elective surgery, including receipt of post-operative care;
 - e. Pregnant and undergoing treatment for pregnancy;
 - f. An ongoing course of treatment for a health condition for which a treating phy sician or health care provider attests that discontinuing care by that phy sician or health care provider would worsen the condition or interfere with anticipated outcomes; or
 - g. Terminally ill and receiving treatment for such illness.

B. <u>Services from Non-Network Providers</u>

- 1. When You choose a Non-Network Provider, You may not receive the same Level of Benefits. Charges that exceed the Reference Based Price (RBP) allowance, also called "RBP" are not Covered. You may need to pay more Out-of-Pocket Expenses.
- 2. There may be certain Services that can only be obtained from a Non-Network Provider. In order for You to avoid the increased Out-of-Pocket expense that could otherwise occur for using a Non-Network Provider, You must obtain approval in advance from AultCare for Services that cannot be provided by a Network Provider. Upon AultCare's Prior Authorization of the Non-Network care, Benefits for Covered Services will be provided as if the Covered Services were provided by a Network Provider. Services provided by a Non-Network Provider will still be subject to appropriate Coinsurance, Copay ments, and Deductibles. Charges over RBP will also be Your responsibility. This is also referred to as Balance Billing. Please reference Section 25 for information on RBP.

Updated treatment Plans will be required periodically to determine if care can be transitioned to a Network Provider. We may require that Your care be transitioned to a Network Provider if it is determined that in Network Providers are available.

AultCare will determine whether the Covered Services can be provided by a Network Provider, and that determination will be final and conclusive, subject to any available Appeals process. If You do not receive written approval in advance of receiving Covered Services from a Non-Network Provider, Services will be covered at the Non-Network Provider level and You will be subject to balance billing and increased Out-of-Pocket expenses. Services provided to You in an Emergency Medical Condition will be covered at the Network Level of Benefit.

Certain Services by an AultCare approved Non-Network Centers of Excellence Provider will be Covered at the same level as a Network Provider if such Services are not offered by Network Providers. Precertification is required for these Services to be Covered at Network level, in which RBP may not apply. Services provided by a Non-Network Center of Excellence will still be subject to appropriate Coinsurance, Copay ments, and Deductibles. Charges over RBP will also be Your responsibility This is also referred to as Balance Billing. Please reference Section 25 for information on RBP.

Ohio Revised Code Sections 3902.50 through 3902.54, Ohio Administrative Code Section 3901-8-17 and the Federal No Surprises Act establish patient protections including from Out-of-Netw ork providers' surprise bills ("balance billing") for emergency care and other specified items or services. We will comply with these new state and federal requirements including how we process claims from certain Out-of-Netw ork providers. Ohio's House Bill 388 and the Federal "No Surprises Act" establish patient protections including surprise bills ("balance billing") from Non-Netw ork providers for Emergency care and other specified items or services, such as air and ground ambulances, as well as, other unanticipated services provided by a Non-Network Provider at a Netw ork Facility. We will comply with these new state and federal requirements including how we process claims from certain from certain protections of the services provided by a Non-Network Provider at a Network Facility. We will comply with these new state and federal requirements including how we process claims from certain Non-Network providers.

C. Emergencies or When You are Out of Town

The Plan will cover Emergency Services for an Emergency Medical Condition treated in any Hospital Emergency department or Urgent Care Center. Plans will not require Prior Authorization or impose any other administrative requirements or Benefit Limitations that are more restrictive than Emergency Services received from a Network Provider.

D. Emergencies When You are Traveling Out of the USA

Generally, We may pay for limited Emergency Services that are necessary when You are traveling out of the USA, unless You are expressly traveling on business on behalf of Your Employer. We will consider each Claim carefully. We will not pay for Services when You go to another country to obtain medical care. We do not pay for air transport or medical evacuation. We recommend that You obtain separate medical travel and evacuation insurance if You plan to travel out of the USA.

Section 16 - Covered Services (Benefits)

A. <u>General Description of Covered Services (Benefits)</u>

Covered Services are medical and health Benefits that You and Your Eligible Dependents may receive under the Master Group Policy for Services that are recommended, approved, or provided by a Provider.

B. Questions about Benefits and Eligible Expenses

Contact AultCare if You have questions about Covered Services and Benefits.

Section 17 - Covered Outpatient Services

For certain Covered Services and depending on Your Plan design, You may be required to pay a part of the Maximum Allowed Amount as Your Cost Share amount (for example, Deductible, Copayment, and/or Coinsurance).

Outpatient Services may include:

A. <u>Physician Office/Home Visits</u>

Office Visits to Your Physician for treatment of illness or injury.

This may include injectable drugs and other drugs administered in a Physician's office or other Outpatient setting, or Home Visits for medical care and consultations to examine, diagnose, and treat an illness or injury performed in Your home.

B. <u>Telehealth</u>

Telehealth services means health care services provided through the use of information and communication technology by a health care professional, within the professional's scope of practice, who is located at a site other than the site where either of the following is located:

- 1. The patient receiving the services;
- 2. Another health care professional with whom the provider of the services is consulting regarding the patient.

The Plan will not exclude from Coverage a Telehealth Medical Service, solely because the Service is not provided through a face-to-face consultation.

The Plan will pay for a Telehealth Health Care Service only if the Service is a Covered Benefit under the Plan, is not excluded by the Plan, and all the following requirements are met:

- 1. The informed consent of the Covered Person, or another appropriate person with authority to make health care treatment decisions for the Covered Person, is obtained before Telehealth Health Care Services are provided;
- 2. The participating Provider complies with minimal standards of care and all requirements set forth in rules and interpretive guidance adopted or issued by the State of Ohio (including the Ohio Medical

Board) and/or the appropriate state of jurisdiction governing Telehealth Health Care Services and prescribing to persons not seen in person by a Physician;

- 3. The Services are provided by any Doctor of Medicine (M.D.), Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine (D.O.), who are licensed to practice medicine, osteopathic medicine or podiatric medicine, a licensed Behavioral Health Provider, a Physician Assistant, an Advanced Practice Registered Nurse and/or another approved health care professional acting within the appropriate scope of practice; and
- 4. The service is for the diagnosis, prevention, treatment, cure, or relief of a health condition, illness, injury, or disease.

Telehealth Services will be paid according to Your Plan with no greater Cost Share than if Services were rendered in a face-to-face setting.

Note: Subject to Network and Non-Network cost sharing. If You seek Telehealth Health Care Services from a Non-Network Provider, You may be billed for charges that exceed the Reference Based Pricing allowance.

C. <u>Gynecology Office/Home Visits/Sterilization/Infertility</u>

Office Visits to Your gynecologist for Medically Necessary examinations. Sterilizations are also a covered service.

Charges for Impotency, Infertility, and Reversal of Sterilization are generally Not Covered under this Plan. Check Your Benefits Chart.

This includes:

- 1. Drugs used for erectile dy sfunction;
- 2. Treatment of any kind related to infertility, for means of conception, including drugs administered in connection with these procedures, unless specifically stated in Your Benefits Chart;
- 3. Artificial Insemination and In Vitro Fertilization are not covered, unless specifically stated in Your Benefits Chart;
- 4. Reversal of voluntary sterilizations;
- 5. Abortions are covered when Continuation of the pregnancy would otherwise put the life of the mother in jeopardy, or in the event of incest or rape as allowed under applicable law.

D. Office/Home Visits to Medical and Surgical Specialists

Necessary and appropriate Office Visits to medical and surgical Specialists.

E. Other Practitioner Office/Home Visits (Nurse, Physician Assistant)

Office Visits to another licensed practitioner for treatment of illness or injury.

F. Diagnostic Services

Diagnostic Services are tests or procedures performed when You have specific symptoms, to detect or monitor Your condition. You or Your Provider can contact Us to determine if Your procedure requires Prior Authorization.

Coverage for Diagnostic Services, including when provided as part of Physician Home Visits and Office Services, Inpatient Services, Outpatient Services, Home Care Services, and Hospice Services, includes but is not limited to:

- 1. X-ray and other radiology Services, including mammograms for any person diagnosed with breast disease
- 2. Magnetic Resonance Angiography (MRA)
- 3. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)
- 4. CAT scans
- 5. Laboratory and pathology Services
- 6. Cardiographic, encephalographic, and radioisotope tests
- 7. Nuclear cardiology imaging studies
- 8. Ultrasound Services
- 9. Allergy tests
- 10. Electrocardiograms (EKG)
- 11. Electromy ograms (EMG) except that surface EMG's are not Covered Services
- 12. Echocardiograms
- 13. Bone density studies
- 14. Positron emission tomography (PET scanning)
- 15. Diagnostic Tests as an evaluation to determine the need for a Covered Transplant Procedure
- 16. Echographies
- 17. Doppler studies
- 18. Brainstem evoked potentials (BAER)
- 19. Somatosensory evoked potentials (SSEP)
- 20. Visual evoked potentials (VEP)
- 21. Nerve conduction studies
- 22. Muscle testing
- 23. Electrocorticograms

Central supply (IV tubing) or pharmacy (dy e) necessary to perform tests are covered as part of the test, whether performed in a Hospital or Physician's office.

G. Genetic Counseling and Testing

Genetic counseling is Covered under Your Plan. Prior Authorization is required for all genetic testing and is subject to Medical Necessity determinations.

H. Outpatient Surgery

Medically Necessary surgical procedures, anesthesia and Outpatient Facility fees are covered. You or Your Provider can contact Us to determine if Your procedure requires Prior Authorization.

I. <u>Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy, Respiratory Therapy, and Speech Therapy when:</u>

- 1. Care is received from a licensed therapist acting within the scope of their license;
- 2. Treatment is prescribed in writing by a Doctor who receives progress reports;
- 3. Treatment for rehabilitation purposes is necessary as a result of a loss of function follow ing a medically documented acute illness or injury; and
- 4. The expectation must exist that the therapy will result in a practical improvement in the level of functioning within a reasonable period of time.

When the patient fails to improve any further, even with therapy, Coverage will be discontinued.

J. <u>Autism</u>

The Plan will cover the screening, diagnosis, and treatment of Autism. Treatment for Autism Spectrum Disorder is defined as evidence-based care and related equipment prescribed or ordered for an individual diagnosed with an autism spectrum disorder by a licensed Physician who is a developmental Pediatrician or a licensed psychologist trained in autism who determines the care to be medically necessary, including any of the following:

- 1. Pharmacy Care
- 2. Psychiatric Care
- 3. Psychological Care
- 4. Therapeutic Care
- 5. Clinical Therapeutic Intervention

Benefits for ASD Services shall include all of the following:

- 1. For speech and language therapy or Occupational Therapy for a Covered Person that is performed by a licensed therapist, twenty (20) visits per year for each service;
- 2. For Clinical Therapeutic Intervention for a Covered Person that is provided by or under the supervision of a professional who is licensed, certified, or registered by an appropriate agency of the state of Ohio to perform such Services in accordance with a health treatment plan, twenty (20) hours per week;
- 3. Mental or behavioral health Outpatient Services for a Covered Person that are performed by a licensed psychologist, psychiatrist, or Physician providing consultation, assessment, development, or oversight of treatment plans.

Clinical Therapeutic Intervention means therapies supported by empirical evidence, which include, but are not limited to, Applied Behavioral Analysis, that satisfy both of the following:

- 1. Are necessary to develop, maintain, or restore, to the maximum extent practicable, the function of an individual;
- 2. Are provided by or under the supervision of any of the following:
 - a. A certified Ohio behavior analyst as defined in section 4783.01 of the Ohio Revised Code;
 - b. An individual licensed under Chapter 4732. of the Ohio Revised Code to practice psychology;
 - c. An individual licensed under Chapter 4757 of the Ohio Revised Code to practice professional counseling, social work, or marriage and family therapy.

Applied Behavior Analysis means the design, implementation, and evaluation of environmental modifications, using behavioral stimuli and consequences, to produce socially significant improvement in human behavior, including the use of direct observation, measurement, and functional analysis of the relationship between environment and behavior.

Coverage of ASD Services are contingent upon both of the following:

- 1. The Covered Person receiving Prior Authorization for the Services in question;
- 2. The Services in question being prescribed or ordered by either a developmental Pediatrician or a psychologist trained in autism.

Ex cept for Inpatient Services, if a Covered Person is receiving treatment for an ASD, the Plan may review the treatment plan annually; unless the Plan and the Covered Person's treating Physician or Psychologist agree that a more frequent review is necessary. Any such agreement between the Plan and the Covered Person's treating Physician or Psychologist shall apply only to a particular Covered Person being treated for an ASD and shall not apply to all Covered Persons being treated for ASD by a Physician or Psychologist. The Plan shall cover the cost of obtaining any review or treatment plan.

K. Allergy Testing and Treatment

Appropriate and necessary allergy testing and treatment.

L. <u>Mental/Behavioral Health Services and Alcohol/Substance Abuse Services</u>

Full parity is applied to all existing Mental/Behavioral Health Benefits to allow for all Mental/Behavioral Health diagnoses/Services to be covered as equal to those Benefits for medical and surgical Services. Services that are Facility based must be provided by a Facility accredited by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), or by an authority deemed by CMS to be an accredited authority, including but not limited to The Joint Commission, the American Osteopathic Association, and DNV Healthcare, Inc. (or any successor organization) as a Hospital that meets the requirements as either a Hospital or Mental/Behavioral Health Care Facility.

Substance Abuse Services (provided by a facility accredited by CMS or by an authority deemed by CMS to be an accredited authority, including but not limited to The Joint Commission, the American Osteopathic Association, and DNV Healthcare, Inc. (or any successor organization) as a Hospital that meets the requirements of a Hospital or Mental/Behavioral Health Care Facility) are Services from a Provider for alcohol or drug detoxification and/or rehabilitation. Covered Services include Inpatient and Outpatient Hospital Services, Medical Services, and Mental/Behavioral Health Services to treat Alcoholism or drug addiction.

To view options regarding opioid education, disposal sites, and educational material, visit the Pharmacy page on the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u>. Education material is also available by clicking the link available on the website: https://www.cdc.gov/drugoverdose/patients/materials.html. Members will also receive patient focused educational material on opioid therapy at the pharmacy.

1. Inpatient and Outpatient Mental/Behavioral Health/Substance Abuse Services

We will Cover Medically Necessary Inpatient and Outpatient Services, including residential programs and treatment if Services meet the appropriate level of care.

- 2. <u>Mental/Behavioral Health and Alcohol/Substance Abuse Residential Program Exclusions, We will</u> <u>not Cover the following:</u>
 - a. Custodial or Domiciliary Care;
 - b. Supervised living or halfway houses;
 - c. Room and board charges unless the treatment provided meets Medical Necessity criteria for Inpatient admission patient's condition;
 - d. Services or care provided or billed by a school, halfway house, Custodial Care center for the developmentally disabled or Outward Bound programs, even if psychotherapy is included;
 - e. Marital and sexual counseling/therapy; and
 - f. Wilderness camps.

M. <u>Temporomandibular Joint Syndrome</u>

Diagnostic testing for TMJ is covered. Diagnostic testing and/or treatment for TMJ Dysfunction or Derangement is covered. Dental Services and Orthodontics related to TMJ are not covered.

Section 18 - Covered Inpatient Hospital Services

A. Inpatient Hospital Services for Treatment of Physical Injury or Illness

We will Cover Inpatient Hospital Services. Network Providers will get Precertified for You. You must make sure that Your Non-Network Provider gets Precertified for You. Ongoing review of care while You are confined is required to determine Medical Necessity.

Inpatient Hospital Services may include:

- 1. Semi-Private room and board.
- 2. Doctors' Services related to medical treatment or surgery.
- 3. General nursing Services.
- 4. Diagnostic Services, such as laboratory, X-ray, cardiographic, encephalographic, electromyographic, and endoscopic and organ exams.
- 5. Operating room, anesthesia and supplies.
- 6. Medically Necessary supplies and Services, such as:
 - a. Oxygen, including necessary equipment for its administration.
 - b. Blood and blood plasma (if not replaced), and other fluids to be injected into the circulatory system.
- 7. Braces, crutches, casts, splints, trusses, surgical dressings and ostomy supplies.
- 8. Prescribed drugs given while in the Hospital.
- 9. Phy sical Therapy, Occupational Therapy, and Speech Therapy up to the Plan Visit Maximum when:
 - a. Care is received from a licensed therapist acting within the scope of his license.
 - b. Treatment is prescribed by a written order from a Doctor who receives progress reports.
 - c. Treatment for rehabilitation purposes is necessary as a result of a loss of function following a medically documented acute illness or injury.
 - d. When the patient fails to improve any further even with therapy, Coverage up to the Plan Visit Maximum will be discontinued.
- 10. Services for human organ and tissue transplants, if Precertified by the UM Department, and performed in an AultCare approved Facility.

B. Inpatient Treatment for Mental Health and Alcohol/Substance Abuse

Clinical Concurrent Review is required to determine if care is a Covered Service. Subject to Concurrent Review and approval by the Utilization Management Department, therapies may be a Covered Service.

We will Cover Inpatient treatment for Mental/Behavioral Health and Alcohol/Substance Abuse Services only if:

1. Service is provided for the diagnosis, evaluation or treatment of a mental/behavioral illness or alcohol/substance abuse condition that is subject to favorable modification. Benefits are not payable for the treatment of mental deficiency or mental retardation once diagnosed. Benefits are payable for Inpatient treatment of a mental/behavioral and/or alcohol/substance abuse condition.

- 2. Services are provided at a Hospital Facility that is accredited by CMS or by an authority deemed by CMS to be an accredited authority, including but not limited to The Joint Commission, the American Osteopathic Association, and DNV Healthcare, Inc., (or any successor organization) as a Hospital that meets the requirements of either a Hospital or Mental/Behavioral Health Care Facility. A freestanding Facility that is not a part of a Hospital may not qualify as a Hospital Facility for purposes Inpatient treatment. Check with Us at the time You request Prior Authorization.
- 3. Covered Mental/Behavioral Health Services include individual psychotherapy, group psychotherapy, psychological testing, family counseling (counseling with family Members to assist in Your diagnosis and treatment), and convulsive therapy (electroshock treatment or convulsive drug therapy).

Section 19 - Emergency and Urgent Care Services

A. Emergency Services

Emergency Care (Emergency Services) - A medical screening examination that is within the capability of the Emergency department of a Hospital, including ancillary Services, and any trauma and burn center, routinely available to the Emergency department to evaluate an Emergency Condition; and within the capabilities of the staff and facilities available at the Hospital, such further medical examination and treatment as are required to Stabilize the patient.

"Stabilize" means the provision of such medical treatment as may be necessary to assure, within reasonable medical probability that no material deterioration of a Covered Person's medical condition is likely to result from or occur during a transfer, if the medical condition could result in any of the following:

- 1. Placing the health of the individual or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn Child, in serious jeopardy;
- 2. Serious impairment to bodily functions;
- 3. Serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part;
- 4. In the case of a woman having contractions, "Stabilize" means such medical treatment as may be necessary to deliver, including the placenta.

The Plan will cover Emergency Services for an Emergency Medical Condition treated in any Hospital. Emergency Services will be Covered according to Your Benefits Chart no matter when or where You receive them. Plans will not require Prior Authorization or impose any other administrative requirements or Benefit Limitations that are more restrictive than Services received from a Network Provider. If You seek Emergency Services from a Non-Network Provider, You should not be balanced billed for those charges. You will be responsible for any Copayments or Coinsurance based upon Your Plan.

We must cover Emergency Services without regard to whether a particular Health Care Provider is a Network provider with respect to the Services and cannot impose any Cost Share that is greater than what would be imposed if Services were provided in Network. For example, We cannot require a \$50 Copayment for a Network Emergency department visit and \$200 Copayment for a Non-Network Emergency department visit

Max imum allowable fee (the amount this Plan will pay the Provider) for a covered expense for Emergency Care Services provided by Non-Network Providers in a Hospital's Emergency department is an amount equal to the greatest of:

- 1. The median fee negotiated with Network Providers;
- 2. The fee calculated using the same method to determine payments for Non-Network Provider Services;
- 3. The fee paid by Medicare for the same Services.

If You have an Emergency Medical Condition, go immediately to the nearest Hospital or call 911 for Emergency Services. An Emergency Medical Condition is any medical condition that is severe enough to cause a prudent layperson with an average knowledge of health and medicine to believe that the absence of immediate medical attention could result in any of the following:

- 1. Placing the health of the individual or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn Child, in serious jeopardy;
- 2. Serious impairment to bodily functions;
- 3. Serious dy sfunction of any bodily organ or part.

In addition, if You contact Your Physician and are referred to a Hospital Emergency room, Benefits will be provided at the level for Emergency Care. Hospitals are open to treat an Emergency 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Emergency Services do not need to be Precertified before You seek treatment. If You are admitted to a Hospital that is a Non-Netw ork Provider through its Emergency department as a result of Emergency Services for an Emergency Condition, You must inform AultCare within two Business Days after receiving care, or as soon as You can. This will allow a Case Manager to follow Your care. AultCare's UM Department may review Your Claim for Emergency Services to determine if Emergency Services were Medically Necessary. If, after applying the prudent layperson standard, the UM Department determines that Services were not Emergency Services, they may be non-approved.

B. Urgent Care Services

Urgent Care Services are Health Care Services that are appropriately provided for an unforeseen condition that usually requires medical attention, without delay, but which does not pose a threat to the life, limb, or permanent health of the injured or ill person.

Urgent Care treatment for a condition defined above does not have to be Precertified. Payment may be limited to the RBP if You receive Urgent Care treatment at a Non-Network Facility.

Section 20 - Other Covered Services

We generally may Cover the following Services:

A. Ambulance Transportation Services

Ambulance Transportation to the nearest Hospital in an Emergency by a vehicle (including ground, water, fix ed wing and rotary wing air transportation) designed, equipped and used only to transport the sick, injured, and staffed by Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT), paramedics, or other certified medical professionals,. Transportation must be by a licensed, professional Ambulance Service.

Coverage includes (Prior Authorization Required):

- 1. Ambulance Transportation between Hospitals;
- 2. Ambulance Transportation between a Hospital and a Skilled Nursing Facility; or
- 3. Ambulance Transportation from a Hospital or Skilled Nursing Facility to Your home.

Treatment of a Sickness or injury by medical professionals from an Ambulance Serv ice when You are not transported will be covered if Medically Necessary.

Ambulance Services are a Covered Service only when Medically Necessary, except:

- 1. When ordered by an employer, school, fire or public safety official and the Member is not in a position to refuse; or
- 2. When a Member is required by Us to move from a Non-Network Provider to a Network Provider.

Ambulance trips must be made to the closest local facility that can give Covered Services appropriate for Your condition. If none of these facilities are in Your local area, You are covered for trips to the closest facility outside Your local area. Ambulance usage is not covered when another type of transportation can be used without endangering the Member's health. Any ambulance usage for the convenience of the Member, family or Physician is not a Covered Service.

Non Covered Services for Ambulance include but are not limited to, trips to:

- 1. Physician's office or clinic;
- 2. Morgue or funeral home.

Other vehicles, which do not meet this definition, including but not limited to ambulettes, are not Covered Services.

B. Breast and Cervical Cancer Screening

Breast and cervical cancer screening to detect breast or cervical cancer. Screening may be at a Hospital, Physician office or mobile unit.

C. Manipulation Therapy

Manipulation Therapy Services are used for treating problems associated with bones, joints and the back. The two therapies are similar, but chiropractic therapy focuses on the joints of the spine and the nervous system and neuromusculoskeletal disorders, while osteopathic therapy includes equal emphasis on the joints and surrounding muscles, tendons and ligaments. Manipulations whether performed and billed as the only procedure or manipulations performed in conjunction with an exam and billed as an Office Visit will be counted tow ard any maximum for Manipulation Therapy Services. Manipulation Therapy Services rendered in the home as part of Home Care Services are not covered.

Chiropractic Services from a licensed Chiropractor when Chiropractic Services are Medically Necessary are covered.

D. Dental Services

Certain Dental Services, such as treatment for injuries to natural teeth caused by an Accident, including the initial replacement of these injured teeth, tumors, cysts and removal of partial/full bony impacted teeth, are considered medical expenses and are paid as such.

E. Durable Medical Equipment

Rental or purchase of Durable Medical Equipment, including supplies, if:

- 1. The equipment or supply is for Your use only;
- 2. The Plan will not pay for rental for a longer period of time than it would cost to purchase equipment;
- 3. The equipment or supply is primarily and customarily used for medical purposes and is not generally useful in the absence of illness or injury;
- 4. The equipment improves the function of a malformed body part or delays further deterioration of Your physical condition;
- 5. The equipment or supply can effectively be used in a non-medical facility (Your home);
- 6. The equipment or supply can be expected to contribute meaningfully to the treatment of the illness or injury;
- 7. Your Doctor certifies that the equipment is Medically Necessary; and
- 8. The equipment is furnished by a licensed DME supplier.

F. Medical and Surgical Supplies

Certain supplies and equipment may be covered under the Prescription Drug Benefit, if any. Syringes, needles, oxygen, surgical dressings, splints and other similar items, which serve only a medical purpose. Prescription Drugs and biologicals that cannot be self-administered are provided in a Physician's office.

Covered Services do not include items usually stocked in the home for general use like Band-Aids, thermometers, and petroleum jelly.

Covered Services may include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Allergy serum extracts;
- 2. Chem strips, Glucometer, Lancets;
- 3. Clinitest;
- 4. Needles/syringes;
- 5. Ostomy bags and supplies except charges such as those made by a Pharmacy for purposes of a fitting are not Covered Services.

Non-Covered Services include but are not limited to:

- 1. Adhesive tape, band aids, cotton tipped applicators;
- 2. Arch supports;
- 3. Doughnut cushions;
- 4. Hot packs, ice bags;
- 5. Vitamins;
- 6. Medijectors.

Orthotics

Covered Services are the initial purchase, fitting, and repair of a custom made rigid or semi-rigid supportive device used to support, align, prevent, or correct deformities or to improve the function of mov able parts of the body, or which limits or stops motion of a weak or diseased body part. The cost of casting, molding, fittings, and adjustments are included. Applicable tax, shipping, postage and handling charges are also covered. The casting is covered when an orthotic appliance is billed with it, but not if billed separately. Covered orthotic devices may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. Cervical collars;
- 2. Ankle foot orthosis;
- 3. Corsets (back and special surgical);
- 4. Splints (extremity);

- 5. Trusses and supports;
- 6. Slings;
- 7. Wristlets;
- 8. Built-up shoe;
- 9. Custom made shoe inserts.

Orthotic appliances may be replaced once per year per Member when Medically Necessary in the Member's situation. However, additional replacements will be allowed for Members under age 18 due to rapid grow th, or for any Member when an appliance is damaged and cannot be repaired. Non-Cov ered Services include but are not limited to:

- 1. Orthopedic shoes (except therapeutic shoes for diabetics);
- 2. Foot support devices, such as arch supports and corrective shoes, unless they are an integral part of a leg brace;
- 3. Standard elastic stockings, garter belts, and other supplies not specially made and fitted (except as specified under Medical Supplies);
- 4. Garter belts or similar devices;
- 5. If You have any questions regarding whether a specific orthotic is covered call the customer service number on the back of Your Identification Card.

Prosthetic Devices

Prosthetic Devices are artificial substitutes for body parts and tissues and materials inserted into tissue for functional or Therapeutic purposes.

Covered Services include purchase, fitting, needed adjustment, repairs, and replacements of Prosthetic Devices and supplies that:

- 1. Replace all or part of a missing body part and its adjoining tissues;
- 2. Replace all or part of the function of a permanently useless or malfunctioning body part.

Prosthetic Devices should be purchased not rented and must be Medically Necessary. Applicable taxes, shipping and handling are also covered.

Covered Services may include, but are not limited to:

1. Aids and supports for defective parts of the body including but not limited to internal heart valves, mitral valve, internal pacemaker, pacemaker power sources, synthetic or homograft vascular

replacements, fracture fix ation devices internal to the body surface, replacements for injured or diseased bone and joint substances, mandibular reconstruction appliances, bone screws, plates, and vitallium heads for joint reconstruction;

- 2. Left Ventricular Artificial Devices (LVAD);
- 3. Breast prosthesis whether internal or external, following a Mastectomy, and 6 surgical bras per Benefit Period, as required by the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act. Maximums for Prosthetic Devices, if any, do not apply;
- 4. Replacements for all or part of absent parts of the body or extremities, such as artificial limbs, artificial eyes, etc.;
- 5. Intraocular lens implantation for the treatment of cataract or aphakia. Contact lenses or glasses are often prescribed following lens implantation and are Covered Services. If cataract extraction is performed, intraocular lenses are usually inserted during the same operative session. Eyeglasses (for example bifocals) including frames or contact lenses are covered when they replace the function of the human lens for conditions caused by cataract surgery or injury; the first pair of contact lenses or eyeglasses are covered. The donor lense(s) inserted at the time of surgery are not considered to contact lenses, and are not considered the first lens following surgery. If the injury is to one eye or if cataracts are removed from only one eye and the Member selects eyeglasses and frames, then reimbursement for both lenses and frames will be covered;
- 6. Cochlear implant;
- 7. Colostomy and other ostomy (surgical construction of an artificial opening) supplies directly related to ostomy care;
- 8. Restoration prosthesis (composite facial prosthesis);
- 9. Wigs (the first one follow ing cancer treatment, not to exceed one per Benefit Period);

Non-Covered Prosthetic appliances include but are not limited to:

- 1. Dentures, replacing teeth or structures directly supporting teeth;
- 2. Dental appliances;
- 3. Such non-rigid appliances as elastic stockings, garter belts, arch supports and corsets;
- 4. Artificial heart implants;
- 5. Wigs (except as described above following cancer treatment);
- 6. Penile prosthesis in men suffering impotency resulting from disease or injury.

G. <u>Home Healthcare Services</u>

Large PPO Certificate 2024

Covered Services are those performed by a Home Health Care Agency or other Provider in Your residence. Home Health Care includes professional, technical, health aide Services, supplies, and medical equipment.

Prior Authorization of Services and a treatment plan will be required to determine whether Home Health Care Services are Medical Necessity and covered by the Plan as determined by the Plan. Covered Services, subject to Prior Authorization, include but are not limited to:

A treatment plan will be required to determine Medical Necessity as determined by the Plan.

- 1. Intermittent Skilled Nursing Services (by an R.N. or L.P.N.);
- 2. Medical/Social Services;
- 3. Diagnostic Services;
- 4. Nutritional Guidance;
- 5. Home Health Aide Services. The Member must be receiving skilled nursing or therapy. Services must be furnished by appropriately trained personnel employed by the Home Health Care Provider. Other organizations may provide Services only when approved by Us, and their duties must be assigned and supervised by a professional Nurse on the staff of the Home Health Care Provider;
- 6. Therapy Services (except for Manipulation Therapy, which will not be covered when rendered in the home). Home Care Visit limits specified in the Benefits Chart for Home Care Services apply when Therapy Services are rendered in the home;
- 7. Medical/Surgical Supplies;
- 8. Durable Medical Equipment;
- 9. Approved Prescription Drugs;
- 10. Private-Duty Nursing;
- 11. Certain Home Health Care Services may be approved at the discretion of AultCare when the patient is not confined to the home.

Non-Covered Services include but are not limited to:

- 1. Food, housing, homemaker Services and home delivered meals;
- 2. Physician charges;
- 3. Helpful environmental materials (hand rails, ramps, telephones, air conditioners, and similar Services, appliances and devices);

- 4. Services provided by Registered Nurses and other health workers who are not acting as employees or under approved arrangements with a contracting Home Health Care Provider;
- 5. Services provided by a member of the patient's immediate family;
- 6. Services provided by volunteer ambulance associations for which patient is not obligated to pay, visiting teachers, vocational guidance and other counselors, and Services related to outside, occupational and social activities;
- 7. Services that are otherwise excluded or not covered by this Plan Document and Summary Plan Description.

Home Infusion Therapy

Home Infusion Therapy will be paid only if You obtain Prior Authorization for such therapy from AultCare. Benefits for home infusion therapy include a combination of nursing, Durable Medical Equipment and pharmaceutical Services, which are delivered and administered intravenously in the home. Home infusion therapy includes but is not limited to: injections (intra-muscular, subcutaneous, continuous subcutaneous), Total Parenteral Nutrition (TPN), Enteral nutrition therapy, Antibiotic therapy, pain management and chemotherapy.

Home Infusion Services

Infusion therapy can be given in the Hospital or in an outpatient setting as alternative Sites of Care, subject to Prior Authorization. Review for Medical Necessity of select IV and injectable Therapy Services will include determination of the Medical Necessity of the appropriate Site of Care (location for Your infusion). Infusion therapy given at a Site of Care that is not appropriate taking into account the availability of other Sites of Care will not be covered as determined by the Plan. Prior Authorization of the Site of Care is required. Options may include homecare, an ambulatory infusion center, or a Physician office.

With Prior Authorization, non-Hospital facility preferred Sites of Care may include:

- Physician's office;
- Infusion Center;
- Home.

With Prior Authorization, non-preferred Sites of Care include:

• Hospital Outpatient setting

Non-Hospital outpatient setting alternative Sites of Care are the preferred sites of service for medications addressed in this Certificate.

Medications reviewed under the Site of Care policy are considered not medically necessary if administered in an unapproved Hospital outpatient setting when an approved Site of Care is a treatment option. All nonapproved doses shall be billed through a non-Hospital facility or accept non-Hospital facility reimbursement

H. Hospice Care

- 1. <u>Conditions for Hospice Coverage</u>:
 - a. A Doctor has diagnosed You as having a Terminal Condition.
 - b. Your Doctor refers You to Hospice.
 - c. You are treated in a qualified Hospice Care Program by a qualified Hospice Team.

2. <u>Covered Hospice Services</u>:

- a. All Covered Home Health Care Services listed above, except nursing Services, which may be approved for up to 8 hours in any 24 hour period.
- b. Palliative Services and supplies furnished by the Hospice team, including part-time nursing care by, or under the supervision of, a Registered Nurse.
- c. Diagnostic Services.
- d. Physical, speech and inhalation therapies if part of a treatment Plan.
- e. Prescription Drugs given by Hospice and Dietary guidance.
- f. Durable Medical Equipment.
- g. Bereavement counseling.
- h. Home health aide visits.
- i. Spiritual counseling Services.
- 3. <u>Hospice related exclusions include:</u>
 - a. Homemaker Services.
 - b. Volunteer Services.
 - c. Chemotherapy or radiation therapy, if other than Palliative.
 - d. Curative treatment or Services.
 - e. Food or home-delivered meals and Custodial Care.

- f. Rest care or care for someone's convenience.
- g. Transportation Services.
- h. Services or supplies not provided and billed through the Hospice Care Program.

I. Infertility Diagnosis/Treatment

Your Plan may Cover the cost for infertility testing, diagnosis and/or treatments that are Medically Necessary. Check Your Benefits Chart.

J. Maternity Services

- 1. Maternity Services include:
 - a. Hospital charges related to Your pregnancy.
 - b. Pre-natal and Post-natal care, including Inpatient care and follow -up care for the mother and new born.
 - c. Treatment for complications of pregnancy or childbirth, and any obstetrical disorder, injury or condition arising from childbirth.

Maternity Services do not include Services or supplies provided to a person not covered under the Certificate in connection with a surrogate pregnancy (including, but not limited to, the bearing of a Child by another woman for an infertile couple). Check Your Benefits Chart.

2. Hospital Admissions (Inpatient Care)

Coverage includes a 48-hour Hospital admission for routine vaginal delivery and a 96-hour Hospital admission for routine caesarian section delivery. Please inform the UM Department of Your expected delivery date. The Hospital stay may be extended if approved by the UM Department. If Discharge is prior to applicable hours, follow-up care shall be provided for 72 hours after Discharge.

Follow up care shall include physical assessment of the mother and new born, parent education, assistance and training in breast or bottle feeding, assessment of the home support system, performance of any medically necessary and appropriate clinical tests, and any other Services that are consistent with the follow -up care recommended in the protocols and guidelines developed by national organizations that represent pediatric, obstetric, and nursing professionals. The Coverage shall apply to Services provided in a medical setting or through Home Health Care visits. Home health visits are covered only if the health care professional who conducts the visit is knowledgeable and experienced in maternity and newborn care.

When a mother or new born receives at least the number of hours of inpatient care required to be covered, the coverage of follow -up care shall apply to follow -up care that is determined to be medically necessary by the health care professionals responsible for discharging the mother or new born.

Please notify the UM Department as soon as reasonably possible.

3. New borns' and Mothers' Health Protection Act (NMHPA)

The Plan will not restrict Benefits for any Hospital length of stay in connection with Childbirth for the mother or New born Child, following a normal vaginal delivery, to less than 48 hours, or to less than 96 hours in the case of a Cesarean section. In addition, the Plan will not require a Hospital, Physician or other medical Provider to obtain authorization or Precertification from the Employer or an insurer (if applicable) or their respective medical review Specialist for prescribing any length of stay described above. However, these rules do not apply where the decision to Discharge the mother or her New born Child prior to the expiration of the minimum length of stay periods described above is made by the mother's or Child's attending Physician in consultation with the mother.

K. Podiatry Services

Podiatric Services ordered or rendered by Your Podiatrist are subject to Cost Share and Coverage Exclusions.

Routine foot care is not Covered and includes:

- 1. Foot care to improve comfort or appearance, including care operations, and procedures for flat feet, sublux ations, corns, bunions (except capsular and bone surgery) calluses and toenails.
- 2. Surgical treatment of flat feet, subluxation of the foot, weak, strained, unstable feet, tarsalgia, metatarsalgia, hyperkeratosis.

L. Preventive Health Services

We will Cover Preventive Health Services and supplies ordered and provided by or under the direction of a Doctor in an appropriate Health Care setting. Coverage includes tests, screenings and Services, such as:

- Screening such as cholesterol.
- Blood pressure checks.
- Physicals.

We will also cover other recommended Preventive screenings, immunizations and services as required by federal law including nutritional counseling, if You receive services from a Network Provider. For an up-to-date list of other recommended Preventive services, check with the AultCare Service Center or visit www.Health care.gov.

We will Cover Preventive Health Services and supplies ordered and provided by or under the direction of a Doctor in an appropriate Health Care setting. We also cover Child health supervision Services, meaning periodic review of a Child's physical and emotional status performed by a Physician, by a Health Care professional under the supervision of a Physician, or, in the case of hearing screening, by an individual acting in accordance with Ohio law. Periodic review means a review performed in accordance with the recommendations of the American Academy of Pediatrics and includes a history, complete physical

ex amination, developmental assessment, anticipatory guidance, appropriate immunizations, and laboratory tests. Coverage also includes tests, screenings and Services, such as:

- 1. Well Child Care, including immunizations.
- 2. Routine screening mammograms. We will cover the following screening mammograms in accordance with State and Federal law:
 - Routine screening mammograms. The total benefit for a screening mammography under this Plan, regardless of the number of claims submitted by Providers, will not exceed one hundred thirty per cent (130%) of the Medicare reimbursement rate in the state of Ohio for a screening mammography.
 - Benefits provided shall cover expenses at a minimum for the following:
 - One screening mammography every year, including digital breast tomosynthesis
 - Benefits provided shall cover expenses for supplemental breast cancer screening for an adult woman who meets either of the following conditions:
 - The woman's screening mammography demonstrates, based on the breast imaging reporting and data system established by the American college of radiology, that the woman has dense breast tissue
 - The woman is at an increased risk of breast cancer due to family history, prior personal history of breast cancer, ancestry, genetic predisposition, or other reasons as determined by the woman's health care provider
- 3. Routine cytologic screening for the presence of cervical cancer and chlamydia screening (including pap test).
- 4. Evidence-based items or services that have in effect a rating of A or B in the current recommendations of the United States Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF)
- Immunizations for routine use in children, adolescents and adults that have in effect a recommendation from the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
- 6. With respect to infants, children and adolescents, evidence-informed preventive care and screenings provided for in comprehensive guidelines supported by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
- 7. With respect to women, such additional preventive care and screenings not already covered above and supported by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
- 8. Any qualifying coronavirus preventive service

We cover Preventive Health Services as defined in federal law without any cost sharing if You receive Services from a Network Provider. You will be notified, at least 60 days in advance, if any item or service is

removed from the preventive list of eligible Services. Eligible Services will be updated annually to include any new recommendations or guidelines.

M. <u>Nutritional Counseling</u> is covered for a total of 4 per Calendar Year visits.

Preventive Services must be prescribed by a licensed Physician and provided by a registered dietitian, nutritionist, or other licensed professional trained in medical nutrition therapy.

We cover Preventive Health Services as defined in federal law without any cost sharing if You receive Services from a Network Provider. You will be notified, at least 60 days in advance, if any item or service is removed from the preventive list of eligible Services. Eligible Services will be updated annually to include any new recommendations or guidelines.

N. <u>Education And Training</u> interventions must have an outcome expected to improve the outcome of the member's health care status. Educational interventions must be done by licensed professional staff.

Covered education includes but is not limited to ostomy care, diabetic education, wound care, tracheostomy care.

Please call Customer Service at 330-363-6360 if You have questions regarding Preventive Services for Nutritional Counseling or for Medical Nutrition Therapy.

Items not covered include Asthma, Chronic fatigue, unspecified, and formal weight loss programs or maintenance for weight loss, are not covered. Please reference the Exclusions for other that may not be covered.

O. Private Duty Nursing

Medically Necessary Services provided by Private Duty Nursing to You or Your Covered Dependent on an Outpatient basis or in the home may be Covered up to the Plan Limitation per Calendar Year. Check Your Benefits Chart.

Private-Duty Nursing Services in the Inpatient setting are excluded.

P. <u>Reconstructive Surgery Following Mastectomy</u>

We comply with the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act, with respect to health Benefits offered through this Plan. The Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act provides that Group Health Plans will provide Coverage for Reconstructive Surgery and Prosthesis following Mastectomies. This includes reconstruction of the breast on which the Mastectomy was performed; Reconstructive Surgery of the other breast to present a symmetrical appearance; Prosthesis; and treatment of physical complications of all stages of the Mastectomy procedure, including lymphedemas.

We cover Breast prosthesis whether internal or external, following a Mastectomy, and 6 surgical bras per Calendar Year, as required by the Women's Health and Cancer Rights Act.

Q. Other Reconstructive Surgery

Benefits include Reconstructive Surgery to correct significant deformities. Benefits include surgery performed to restore symmetry after a Mastectomy.

Reconstructive Services needed as a result of an earlier treatment are covered only if the first treatment would have been a Covered Service under the plan; Coverage for reconstructive Services does not apply to orthognathic surgery.

Gender Reassignment surgery is covered when criteria are met. Prior Authorization is required. Reversal of Gender Reassignment surgery is not covered.

R. Routine Patient Care during a Cancer Clinical Trial

We will cover Routine Patient Care administered to an insured participating in any stage of an eligible cancer clinical trial, if that care would be covered under the Plan if the insured was not participating in a clinical trial. Eligible cancer clinical trial will meet the following criteria:

- 1. A purpose of the trial is to test whether the intervention potentially improves the trial participant's health outcomes.
- 2. The treatment provided as part of the trial is given with the intention of improving the trial participant's health outcomes.
- 3. The trial has a Therapeutic intent and is not designed exclusively to test toxicity or disease pathophy siology.
- 4. The trial does one of the following:
 - a. Tests how to administer a Health Care Service, item, or drug for the treatment of cancer with that of other Health Care Services, items, or drugs for the treatment of cancer;
 - b. Tests responses to a Health Care Service, item, or drug for the treatment of cancer;
 - c. Compares the effectiv eness of a Health Care Service, item, or drug for the treatment of cancer with that of other Health Care Services, items, or drugs for the treatment of cancer;
 - d. Studies new uses of a Health Care Service, item, or drug for the treatment of cancer.
- 5. The trial is approved by one of the following entities:
 - a. The National Institutes of Health or one of its cooperative groups or center under the United States Department of Health and Human Services;
 - b. The United States Food and Drug Administration;
 - c. The United States Department of Defense or Department of Veteran's Affairs.

S. Routine Patient Care During An Approved Clinical Trial

We will cover Routine Patient Care administered to an insured participating in a federally funded or an approved clinical trial that is defined as a Phase I, Phase II, Phase III, Phase IV clinical trial that is conducted in relation to the prevention, detection, or treatment of cancer or other life threatening diseases or conditions. An Eligible clinical trial will meet the following criteria:

- 1. A determination has been made that Your participation in the approved clinical trial is appropriate to treat Your disease or condition
- 2. A federally funded or approved trial
- 3. A clinical trial conducted under an FDA Investigational new drug application
- 4. A drug trial that is exempt from the requirement of an FDA Investigational new drug application

Contact the Customer Service Department to discuss Your clinical trial Benefit and the availability of Network and Non-Network Providers participating in clinical trials. You may be responsible for amounts over the RBP for Non-Network Providers.

We will not do the following:

- 1. Deny participation in a federally funded or approved clinical trial
- 2. Deny or limit, or impose additional conditions on the Coverage of Routine Patient Care/costs for items and Services furnished to You in connection with an approved clinical trial
- 3. Discriminate against You on the basis that You are participating in a clinical trial

T. Skilled Nursing Facility

- 1. We Cover Medically Necessary Skilled Nursing Facility Services (Check Your Benefits Chart) when:
 - a. Care is provided by a Skilled Nursing Facility
 - b. You are admitted to the Skilled Nursing Facility after being Discharged from the Hospital and You are receiving care for the same condition for which You were Hospitalized
 - c. Care is not Custodial
- 2. Your Plan allows You to use Non-Network Providers. If You use a Non-Network Provider, You may have a higher Cost Share and be subject to Balance Billing.
- 3. We may cover a Non-Network Provider at the Network level if:
 - a. You resided in the Skilled Nursing Facility, or had a contract to reside in the facility, on or before September 1, 1997

- b. Immediately before You were Hospitalized, You were in the facility, or have a contract to reside in the facility, and following Hospitalization, reside in a part of the facility that is a Skilled Nursing Facility, even if You resided in, or had a contract to reside in, a different part of the facility before You were Hospitalized
- c. If the care that You require cannot be provided by a Network Provider and the facility provides the level of Skilled Nursing care You need; the care may be approved at the Network level of care, but You may still be responsible for any amounts over RBP

U. <u>Transplants</u>

We Cover Medically Necessary transplants, including Bone Marrow/Stem Cell, Heart, Heart/Lung, Cornea, Large and Small Bow el, Lung, Liver, Kidney, and Pancreas.

The initial evaluation and any necessary additional testing to determine Your Eligibility as a candidate for transplant by Your Provider and the harvest and storage of bone marrow/stem cells is included in the Covered Transplant Procedure Benefit regardless of the date of service.

The above Services are covered as Inpatient Services, Outpatient Services or Physician Home Visits and Office Services depending where the service is performed subject to Member Cost Share.

We do not cover transplants that are Experimental or Investigational or those that are in Non-Approved Clinical Trials, with the exception of Services relating to Routine Patient Care.

1. <u>Covered Transplant Procedure</u>

Any Medically Necessary human organ and stem cell/bone marrow transplants and transfusions as determined by Us including necessary acquisition procedures, harvest and storage, and including Medically Necessary preparatory myeloablative therapy.

Unrelated donor searches for bone marrow/stem cell transplants for a Cov ered Transplant Procedure are cov ered under this Plan. The Unrelated donor search Benefit is limited to \$30,000 per Transplant Benefit period.

Live Donor health Services are also covered under this Plan.

2. <u>Recipient Costs</u>

When You or Your Dependent is the recipient, Benefits are paid for recipient costs.

When You or Your Dependent are the recipient but the donor is not a covered Dependent on Your Plan, We will cover the donor-related procurement Services to the extent that such Services are covered Benefits.

3. Donor Costs

When You or Your Dependent are the donor and the recipient is not a covered Dependent on Your Plan, donor-related procurement expenses are covered only to the extent that the recipient's health Coverage does not cover.

Donor costs for organ procurement are separately reimbursed and include Hospital and surgical expenses directly related to the removal and transport of a living organ; prescription drugs related to the removal of the organ; and post-operative Inpatient Services for medical complications caused as a direct result of the donation.

4. Limits

If You or Your Dependent are not the donor, Benefits for donor costs are limited to costs directly related to the transplant procedure and related complications. Benefits do not include any medical care costs related to other treatment of the donor. Donor transportation costs are excluded. No Benefits for recipient or donor costs are pay able for Experimental, Investigational or are performed in clinical trials, with the exception of expenses relating to Routine Patient Care.

5. Transplant Benefit Period

The Transplant Benefit Period starts one day prior to a Covered transplant procedure and continues for the applicable case rate/global time period. The number of days will vary depending on the type of transplant received and the Network transplant Provider agreement. Contact the UM Department for specific Network transplant Provider information for Services received at, or coordinated by, a Netw ork transplant Provider facility.

6. Prior Authorization and Precertification

We require a Referral. Please have Your Physician submit a request to Our UM Department to discuss Benefit Coverage when it is determined a transplant is Medically Necessary. Contact the AultCare Service Center telephone number on the back of Your Identification Card with any questions. We will assist You in maximizing Your Benefits by providing Coverage information, including details regarding what is covered and whether any clinical Coverage guidelines, medical policies, Network Transplant Provider requirements, or Exclusions are applicable. Even if We issue a Prior Authorization for the Covered Transplant Procedure, You or Your Provider must call Us for Precertification prior to the transplant whether this is performed in an Inpatient or Outpatient setting.

There are instances where Your Provider requests approval for Human Leukocyte Testing (HLA) testing, donor searches and/or a harvest and storage of stem cells prior to the final determination as to what transplant procedure will be requested. HLA is used to identify certain individual variations in a patient's immune system. Under these circumstances, the HLA testing and donor search charges are covered as routine diagnostic testing. The harvest and storage request will be reviewed for Medical Necessity. However, such an approval for HLA testing, donor search and/or a harvest and storage is NOT an approval for the subsequent requested transplant. A separate Medical Necessity determination will be made for the transplant procedure.

Contact the UM Department for specific Network transplant Provider information for Services received at, or coordinated by, a Transplant Specialty Network. A Transplant Specialty Network is a

specialized Network of transplant centers and Providers approved to perform related Services at the panel Level of Benefits. This Network is separate from Your primary medical network of facilities and Providers. Not all transplant facilities are within the Transplant Specialty Network. You will receive the highest Level of Benefit under Your Plan when You use a facility within the Transplant Specialty Network.

7. <u>Transportation and Lodging (Applies once Your Transplant is approved)</u>

The Plan will provide assistance with reasonable and necessary travel expenses as determined by Us when You obtain Prior Authorization for Your transplant and are required to travel more than 75 miles using the most direct route from Your residence to reach the facility where Your Covered Transplant Procedure will be performed. Our assistance with travel expenses includes transportation to and from the facility and lodging for the patient and one companion, all charges will need to be reasonable, necessary, and itemized.

If the Member receiving treatment is a minor, then reasonable and necessary expenses for transportation and lodging may be allowed for two companions. The Member must submit itemized receipts for transportation and lodging expenses in a form satisfactory to Us when Claims are filed. Contact Us for detailed information. The Transplant Transportation and Lodging Benefit is limited to \$10,000 per Transplant Benefit period. The maximum daily Coverage for lodging and meals shall be limited to \$250 per day.

- 8. Organ Transplant related exclusions include:
 - a. Child care
 - b. Mileage within the medical transplant Facility city
 - c. Rental cars, buses, taxis, or shuttle service, except as specifically approved by Us
 - d. Frequent Flyer miles
 - e. Coupons, vouchers, or travel tickets
 - f. Prepayments or deposits
 - g. Services for a condition that is not directly related, or a direct result, of the transplant
 - h. Telephone calls
 - i. Laundry
 - j. Postage
 - k. Entertainment

- I. Interim visits to a medical care Facility while waiting for the actual transplant procedure, travel expenses for donor companion/caregiver, return visits for the donor for a treatment of a condition found during the evaluation
- m. Experimental organ and tissue transplants

V. Vision Care

We may Cover the cost of an initial eye examination following cataract surgery, including the initial cost of lenses and frames.

W. Medical Nutrition Therapy (MNT)

Medical Nutrition Therapy_is covered for disease states in which dietary adjustment is part of treating the disease and Therapeutic outcomes are expected. It must be prescribed by a licensed Physician and provided by a registered dietitian nutritionist, or other licensed professional trained in medical nutrition therapy.

The Plan covers nutritional counseling for disease states including but not limited to diabetes, renal disease, heart disease, lung disease and digestive disorders.

Nutrition counseling for diabetes includes diet education for prediabetes, new onset diabetes, and uncontrolled diabetes.

X. Gene and Cell Therapy Services

Services for Gene & Cell Therapy are covered by the Plan, if Precertified by the UM Department, and performed in an AultCare approved facility, which may include one of Our Centers of Excellence.

Section 21 - Managed Prescription Drug Program

Some Plans may offer prescription drug Coverage through a Managed Prescription Drug Program. To get the highest Level of Benefits, You must get Your prescription from an AultCare Participating Network Pharmacy. It is important for You to show Your AultCare ID card.

A. Formulary and Non-Formulary

AultCare's Premium Managed Formulary is designed to provide value. Only specific drugs in each Therapeutic class are covered. The formulary design provides adequate options in each Therapeutic category and includes most Generics and selected Brands. Medications listed under the Vigilant Drug Program are not covered under the plan. These are medications that offer little to no added clinical value over existing, less expensive alternatives that are covered under the formulary. Medications not listed on our formulary are not covered under the Plan. If You or Your Physician request that a Brand Name medication be dispensed when a Generic equivalent is available, You will be responsible for the difference between the maximum allowable cost of the Generic and the Brand drug. This penalty is not covered by Your Plan, and these expenses will not count toward Your Deductible or Out-of-Pocket limit.

You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber that is treating You has the right to request Coverage of clinically appropriate Non-Formulary medication. This is called a request for an exception. Contact our AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 800-344-8858 if You would like to request an exception of a Non-Formulary medication. Please note, if a non-formulary Brand Name Drug is approved, it will be covered at the Non-Preferred Benefit.

B. Tier Definitions

The medication tier may change due to new drugs and Generic availability. For a current list, please visit the AultCare website at www.aultcare.com or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-3630 or 1-800-344-8858. Not all Plans have a tiering structure. Your Benefits Chart will indicate whether or not Your Plan has tiers.

1st Tier is defined as Preferred Generic drugs

2nd Tier is defined as Preferred Brand and Non-Preferred Generic drugs

3rd Tier is defined as Non-Preferred Brand and Non-Preferred Generic drugs

4th Tier is defined as Specialty Generic drugs. Prior Authorization is required and will be limited to 30-day supply through a specialty Network pharmacy

5th Tier is defined as Specialty Brand drugs. Prior Authorization is required and will be limited to 30-day supply through a specialty Network pharmacy

There are no tier exceptions. For example, a higher tier (Non-Preferred) medication may not be requested at a low er tier (Preferred) Copay ment.

GENERIC DRUG (generic drugs, short: generics) means a drug defined as "a drug product that is comparable to a brand/reference listed drug product in dosage form, strength, quality and performance characteristics, and intended use." It has also been defined as a term referring to any drug marketed under its chemical name without advertising.

BRAND NAME DRUG means a medication sold by a pharmaceutical company under a tradem ark-protected name. Brand Name medications can only be produced and sold by the company that holds the patent for the drug. Brand Name Drugs may be available by prescription or over the counter.

SPECIALTY/LIMITED DISTRIBUTION means a medication or treatment for chronic illnesses that require special handling techniques, careful administration, and a unique ordering process. Some Specialty medications are considered Limited Distribution and are only available at certain pharmacies. (SP)

C. Covered Services

- Drugs approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and that are required by federal or state laws to be dispensed to the public only on prescription of a licensed Physician or other licensed Provider
- Compound medication The primary ingredient must be an FDA approved medication and not deemed Experimental and or Investigational
- Preferred diabetic supplies and devices: including continuous glucose monitoring systems, control solution, sensors, glucose test strips, urine test strips, acetone test strips, lancet devices, and lancets

- Insulin (prescription only), Insulin syringes/needles (prescription only)
- Injectable medications
- Over-the counter medications required under Health Care Reform/Preventive Care Guidelines
- Tobacco cessation medications, aids, and devices required under Health Care Reform/Preventive Care Guidelines
- Contraceptive medications, injectables, and devices
- Migraine medications
- Fertility Medications \$4,800 maximum Coverage
- Grow th Hormones Prior Authorization is required
- Prenatal vitamins per Preventive Health Services. All others are a Plan Exclusion
- Immunosuppressives
- Vaccines per Preventive Health Services. All others are a Plan exclusion.

D. Services Not Covered

- Lost, Stolen, or Damaged medications
- Experimental, Investigational or Unproven drugs
- Blood or Plasma
- Therapeutic devices or appliances, including support garments and other non-medical substances, unless otherwise specified
- Charges for injections or administration of a drug
- A prescription that may be received without charge under Worker's Compensation Laws or other local, state, or federal programs. This would include medications taken for occupational injury/disease.
- Prescriptions that are not self-administered or medication that is to be taken or administered to an individual in a licensed Hospital, nursing home, Physician's office/clinic or similar institution where such medications are normally provided by the Facility on an Inpatient basis
- Prescription refills in excess of the number specified or dispensed more than one year from the date of the original order
- Needles and syringes, other than for insulin
- Durable Medical Equipment including glucose monitors
- Over-the-counter medications
- Medical supplies except for Diabetic supplies
- Erectile Dysfunction/Hyposexual desire disorder medications
- Vitamins, except Prenatal, per Preventive Health Services
- Drugs for cosmetic purposes only
- Medications used for weight loss
- Immunizing agents, Allergy Sera and Biological Sera
- Lucentis (covered under medical and does not require Prior Authorization)
- Medicinal Foods
- Medical Devices
- Drugs obtained from pharmacies not located in the United States
- Charges incurred outside the United States if the Covered Person traveled to such location for the sole purpose of obtaining a drug

E. Prior Authorization

Prior Authorization is an evaluation of Your medications by Your Provider and AultCare medical professionals to determine the appropriateness of the medications requested. It means Your or Your Network Provider must notify AultCare Pharmacy before You may receive certain medications.

Certain medications may be covered under medical, require Prior Authorization, have step therapy, and/or may have Plan Limitations. Prior Authorization may limit the number of day supply for certain medications. Medications requiring Prior Authorization are reviewed to determine Medical Necessity and/or the appropriateness of the medication or Services requested based on AultCare clinical criteria/guidelines. Medications not on our formulary must meet AultCare clinical criteria/guidelines through an exception process in order to be considered for Coverage under Plan Benefits. Please visit the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u> or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 for any questions regarding these processes.

- 1. <u>How to Request Prior Authorization:</u>
 - a. Your Physician will need to submit pharmacy Prior Authorization requests through the MHK (Medical House of Knowledge) platform.
 - b. This will be reviewed by the AultCare Pharmacy clinical team.
- 2. You have a Right to:
 - a. Receive basic information about which drugs will require Prior Authorization.
 - b. Receive Prior Authorization for medications used to treat chronic diseases under certain circumstances up to a 12-month period or until the last day of eligibility under Your policy or Plan, whichever is lesser.
 - c. For a Pre-Service, non-urgent Prior Authorization request, We will make a Coverage determination and notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 10 days following receipt of the request. For a Pre-Service urgent Prior Authorization request, We will make a Coverage determination and notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 48 hours following receipt of the request.

You, Your authorized representative (You have the right to appoint a representative, including an attorney to act on Your behalf), Your Physician, or other Prescriber have a right to Appeal Denials. You are eligible for one level of Appeal and an External Review (if eligible). It is intended to provide You with a full and fair review of the Denial. Please see Sections 32 and 33 for more detailed information regarding timeframes for review.

Prior Authorization is required for narcotic analgesic or opioid medications that are used for treating chronic pain, except in the case of cancer, terminal illness, or Hospice. These Prior Authorization requests will be handled within the expedited timeframe, which is 48 hours following receipt of the request. Narcotic analgesic and opioid medications will be limited to a 30-day supply through mail order. AutCare is compliant with all

state and government regulations regarding opioid use through non-pharmacological options, access to substance abuse treatment options and Fraud Waste and Abuse oversight.

To view options regarding opioid education, disposal sites, and educational material, visit the Pharmacy page on the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u>. Education material is also available by clicking the link available on the website: https://www.cdc.gov/drugoverdose/patients/materials.html. Members will also receive patient focused educational material on opioid therapy at the pharmacy.

We will not limit/exclude Coverage for drugs approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for the treatment of indications for which the drug has been prescribed. The medication must have support for the requested off-label use in one or more of the standard medical reference compendia adopted by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services or the off-label use must be supported in at least two articles from major peer reviewed medical journals and no article from a major peer-reviewed journal has concluded that the drug is unsafe or ineffective for the condition for which it is prescribed. The clinical management tools described above help to guide appropriate use of medications when prescribing for off label use.

F. Formulary Exception Process

A Formulary Exception request is an evaluation of Your medication, not listed under the Premium Managed Formulary, by Your Provider and AultCare medical professionals to determine the appropriateness of the medication requested. It means Your or Your Network Provider must notify AultCare Pharmacy before You may receive certain medications not listed on the plan's Premium Managed Formulary.

Medications not on our formulary must meet AultCare clinical criteria/guidelines through an exception process in order to be considered for coverage under plan benefits. Please visit the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u> or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 for any questions regarding these processes.

Standard Exception

We will make a Coverage determination on a standard exception request and notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 72 hours following receipt of the request.

If We approve Your exception request, We will provide Coverage of the non-formulary drug for the duration of the prescription, including refills. The medication will be covered as an essential health benefit, including counting it tow ards Your plans annual out of pocket maximum.

Expedited Exception

In order for an expedited exception request to be considered "expedited", You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber must state that an expedited review is necessary due to exigent circumstances.

Exigent circumstances exist when an enrollee is suffering from a health condition that may seriously jeopardize the enrollee's life, health, or ability to regain maximum function or when an enrollee is undergoing a current course of treatment using a non-formulary drug.

We will make a Coverage determination on an expedited exception request and notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 24 hours following receipt of the request.

If We approve Your exception request, We will provide Coverage of the non-formulary drug for the duration of the exigency prescription, including refills. The medication will be covered as an essential health benefit, including counting it tow ards Your plans annual out of pocket maximum.

External Exception

If We deny Your request for a standard exception or an expedited exception, You have the right to request an External Review by an Independent Review Organization.

The Independent Review Organization will make a determination on a standard external exception request, and We will notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 72 hours following receipt of the request. For an expedited external exception request, We will notify You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber no later than 24 hours following receipt of the request.

If Your exception request is approved, We will provide Coverage of the non-formulary drug for the duration of the prescription, including refills. If We approve Your exception request based on exigent circumstances, We will provide Coverage of the non-formulary drug for the duration of the exigency. The medication will be covered as an essential health benefit, including counting it towards Your plans annual Out-of-Pocket maximum.

G. Step Therapy Program

Your Plan currently requires Step Therapy for certain classes of medications. Step Therapy Program uses clinical review criteria that is based on clinical practice guidelines. Step Therapy requires You to have tried a Step 1 medication from the same Therapeutic class as the Step 2 Medication. If Your prescription history does not indicate that a Step 1 medication was tried, the Step 2 medication will not be covered. Please note that the Step 2 medication will be covered at the appropriate Benefit Level once a Step 1 medication has been tried and found to be ineffective. For a complete list of the Therapeutic categories and medications on the Step Therapy Program, please visit our website at www.aultcare.com or if You would like a paper copy, You may call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858.

You, Your authorized representative, Your Physician, or other Prescriber that is treating You has the right to request Coverage of a prescription that is restricted under the Step Therapy program. If the exemption is approved, Coverage will be provided at the appropriate Benefit Level.

We will make a Step Therapy request determination for an urgent exemption request within 48 hours and all other exemption requests will be made in 10 days.

We will grant exemption requests in the following circumstances:

1. The Step 1 prescription drug is not recommended for You based on federal prescribing information;

- 2. You have tried the Step 1 medication and its use was discontinued due to a lack of efficiency, diminished effect, or an adverse event;
- 3. You are stable on Your current prescription drug.

You, Your authorized representative (You have the right to appoint a representative, including an attorney to act on Your behalf), Your Physician, or other Prescriber have a right to Appeal Denials. You are eligible for one level of Appeal and an External Review (if eligible). It is intended to provide You with a full and fair review of the Denial. Please see Sections 32 and 33 for more detailed information regarding timeframes for review.

H. Generic Incentive Program

AultCare may assist members with transitioning to a generic equivalent for certain medications when clinically appropriate. An incentive may reduce member Cost Share. This cost-share adjustment is based on Brand Name manufacturer assistance programs "after Deductible if applicable. This incentive will be in place as long as the Brand Name manufacturer assistance program remains available. Please visit the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u> for medications in this program or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 for any questions regarding this program.

I. Diabetic Program

Preferred diabetic testing supplies are available at no cost to you through your pharmacy plan. You will be eligible for a CONTOUR NEXT ONE blood glucose meter and all related blood glucose testing supplies for \$0 Copay ment. To order your free meter, call 1-800-401-8440, code CTR-OPX

Products covered for \$0.00 Copayment through your Pharmacy Benefit:

- Contour Next Test Strips
- Contour Next Control Solution
- Microlet Next Lancing Device
- Microlet Lancets
- All generic Lancets

J. Brand over Generic Program

Certain Brand Name medications are covered as preferred Generic (Tier 1). The Brand medication will process with a Generic Copayment, and the Generic will be excluded from coverage. Generics often cost less, but sometimes their Brand-Name drugs are the low er-cost option. Both Brand and Generic medications share the same active ingredients, strength, and dosage forms. If You fill a prescription for the Generic excluded medication, the amount You pay will not count tow ard any Deductible or Out-of-Pocket limit You may have.

K. Preventive Health Services

In response to the <u>Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA)</u>, certain preventive medications are available and covered without Cost Share. The availability or Coverage of these medications without Cost

Share may be subject to criteria established by the terms of Your health plan. This list is subject to change as ACA guidelines are updated or modified.

In order to receive a medication at no cost, the following criteria must be met as it applies to You:

• Obtain a written prescription from Your Physician, even if over-the-counter.

For a complete list of these medications, please visit the AultCare website at <u>www.aultcare.com</u> or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858.

In response to the Women's Preventive Services Act, certain birth control medications will be covered at a zero (\$0) Copay ment. The Plan will cover at least one form of birth control from each FDA approved method at 100%. In the event that a member is requesting coverage for a birth control product not on the standard coverage list, AultCare will cover that recommended drug or product at no cost to You through our exceptions process, using the Healthcare Reform Copay Waiver Form, which can be found in Your plan documents and online. You may also contact a plan representative who can answer questions related to the exceptions process by calling AultCare Customer Service at 330-363-6360. To obtain approval requires the member must have tried and failed at least one product found on the preventive drug list. The step requirement can be by passed if the provider indicates on the waiver form that the non-preferred contraceptive is Medically Necessary and to dispense as written. If approved for the copay waiver, the medication or item will be covered at 100%. If not approved for the copay waiver, the medication or item will be subject to Your Plan's Cost Sharing.

L. Oral Cancer Medications

Please note that orally administered cancer medication Coverage shall be no less favorable than Coverage for intravenous and injected cancer medications in accordance with state law. Cost Share for these medications will not exceed \$100 for up to a thirty (30) day supply per fill. For Members with a High-Deductible Health Plan with a Health Savings Account, the \$100 Cost Share cap will only be applied after Your Deductible has been met. For a list of Oral Cancer Medications, please visit the AultCare website at www.aultcare.com or call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-3630 or 1-800-344-8858.

M. Specialty Medications

Specialty Medications are treatments for chronic illnesses that require special handling techniques, careful administration, and a unique ordering process. Some Specialty Medications are considered Limited Distribution and are only available at certain pharmacies. Prior Authorization is required for Specialty/Limited Distribution Medications and will be limited to a 30-day supply. These medications must be obtained through a specialty Network pharmacy. For information regarding these pharmacies, please visit our website at www.aultcare.com or You may call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858.

N. Long-term Prescriptions

For long-term ongoing prescription drug needs, You can receive up to a 90-day supply through Your mail order prescription program. When participating in the mail order program, You pay the appropriate Copay ment per 90-day supply. The mail order pharmacy must fill Your prescription for the exact quantity of medications prescribed by Your Doctor, up to the 90-day Plan limit.

O. Pharmacy Networks

You can enjoy the convenience of local and national pharmacy service at discounted Network pricing. Please remember to present Your card at the pharmacy for Your prescriptions. If a prescription is purchased without using Your card, You must purchase the prescription and mail into AultCare for reimbursement. For a pharmacy listing, please visit the AultCare website or contact the AultCare Service Center.

If Your plan utilizes a Preferred Pharmacy Network, please refer to the Summary of Benefits and Coverage for the appropriate co-pay representation for preferred and non-preferred pharmacy Network.

P. General Managed Prescription Information

Visit AultCare's website at www.aultcare.com to view Your personalized prescription information. It gives valuable information to help You make informed decisions about Your drug purchase. Call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 for any questions regarding this process.

If You did not use Your member ID card for a prescription allowed by Your Plan, You can submit a Claim for reimbursement. Your reimbursement Claim will be considered based on Your Plan allowable amount AultCare will reimburse up to the maximum amount AultCare would pay if You used Your ID card.

AultCare will not pay any Covered Person any rebate that AultCare may receive related to utilization of pharmacy Benefits.

Third party coupon or Copay ment discount or coupon card assistance provided by a drug manufacturer for specialty or other qualified medications will not apply toward the Plan's Deductible or Out-of-Pocket limit.

If Coverage under Your medical Plan terminates, Your prescription drug Benefit will also terminate. If a Covered Person continues to use their prescription drug Benefit, they will be held responsible for payment of any bills on or after the Termination date.

Q. Coordination of Benefits Information

Coordination of Benefits is the process in which two or more health insurers cover the same person(s) but limit the total Benefit for a Claim to an amount not exceeding the total cost of the claim.

If AultCare is Your secondary Benefit, primary Claims submitted by the retail pharmacy or primary paper Claims submitted by You will not be covered.

Coordination of Benefits applies to:

- 1. Your mail order pharmacy Claims
- 2. Your member-submitted pharmacy Claims
- 3. Your retail pharmacy Claims

Only prescription drug products covered under this Plan are eligible for payment. Payments are subject to this Plan's applicable Coinsurance, Copayments and Plan provisions and Limitations.

You must fully utilize the coverage available under Your primary plan, including following any plan provisions.

For further information on Coordination of Benefits or for an explanation on the reimbursement of a Claim, please call AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 for any questions regarding this process.

Section 22 - Exclusions

Exclusions are Services Your Employer's Master Group Policy does NOT cover. These are called Non-Covered Services. AultCare will NOT pay for Non-Covered Services. You may receive Non-Covered Services, but You must pay for them.

Below is the list of general Exclusions, which will apply to You. The Headings will help guide You. If You have a question, contact Us.

Charges for Services that are in excess of the visit or treatment limit allowed by the Plan are excluded.

A. Before and After Coverage Period Exclusions

- 1. Charges incurred by the individual before the Effective Date of Coverage, except as otherwise indicated in the Certificate.
- 2. Expenses incurred after the date of Termination of Coverage except as otherwise stated in the Certificate.
- 3. Charges not initiated and completed while Covered under the Master Group Policy except for Prosthetic Devices ordered and fitted while Covered and delivered within 31 calendar days of Termination.

B. Late Claims, Claims Covered by Other Plans, Court-Ordered Service Exclusions

- 1. Claims submitted after the maximum Claims submission time of 24 months from the Incurred Date, unless You did not know (or, in using reasonable diligence, would not have known) of the existence of the Claim within that Claims submission period.
- 2. Charges, which would be excluded after applying the Coordination of Benefits provision of the Certificate.
- 3. Charges for Benefits payable or Services provided under any federal, state or other governmental regulation.
- 4. Court Ordered treatment and testing that is not Medically Necessary.

C. Workers' Compensation and Injuries at Work Exclusions

This Plan is not a Workers' Compensation policy and is not issued in lieu thereof. The Certificate does not satisfy any requirements for Coverage by Workers' Compensation Insurance. This Plan does not cover:

- 1. Charges for any condition, disease, defect, ailment, or injury arising out of and in the course of employment with any employer who is eligible to obtain Coverage under any Workers' Compensation Act or similar law.
- 2. Injuries at work if Workers' Compensation is available, required, or applicable, regardless of whether a Workers' Compensation Claim is filed.
- 3. Charges for You, Your Dependents or Spouse for a work related injury while self-employed if eligible to obtain Cov erage under any Workers' Compensation Act or similar law.

D. Not Medically Necessary, Above RBP Exclusions

Charges that are:

- 1. Not Medically Necessary for Your diagnosis and treatment, charges that do not meet Our medical policy, clinical Coverage guidelines, or Benefit policy guidelines, duplicate charges, or charges that are above the RBP.
- 2. Received from an individual or entity that is not a Provider, as defined in this Certificate, or recognized by Us.
- 3. Provided by a Provider or Entity that is excluded, debarred or declared ineligible from participation in Medicare, Medicaid, or other Federal or Ohio health programs.
- 4. For Services You are not required to pay.
- 5. For Services and supplies that are not part of the diagnosis and treatment of an illness or injury, such as the cost of completing Claim forms, preparing medical records and reports, mailing and handling.
- 6. For Private rooms unless otherwise Medically Necessary.
- 7. Charges for Services that are in excess of the visit or treatment limit allowed by the Plan.
- 8. Inappropriate billing practices, such as when a Provider fails to provide Necessary Information upon request.
- 9. Charges for Physicians or other Practitioners for consulting with Members by telephone, facsimile machine, electronic mail systems or other consultation or medical management service not involving direct (face-to-face) care with the Member except as otherwise described in this Certificate.
- 10. Charges for immunizations required for travel outside of the country.

E. <u>Custodial, Maintenance, Screening, Comfort, and Convenience Exclusions</u>

Charges for:

- 1. Maintenance Care, including chiropractic spinal manipulation or skeletal adjustments, Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy and Speech Therapy that are for Maintenance Care.
- 2. Foot care to improve comfort or appearance, including care for flat feet, subluxations, corns, bunions (except capsular and bone surgery) calluses and toenails unless Medically Necessary.
- 3. Foot care to improve comfort or appearance, including care for flat feet, subluxations, corns, bunions (except capsular and bone surgery) calluses and toenails unless Medically Necessary.
- 4. Massotherapy by a massage therapist. Unless stated as Covered in Your Benefits Chart.
- 5. Personal convenience items and cost of Services to include but not limited to, televisions, telephones, and haircuts.
- 6. Transportation, travel, and lodging unless Services are for an approved organ transplant performed at an approved Facility.
- 7. Home Health Services, such as meals and housekeeping, unless stated in Your Benefits Chart.
- 8. Any medical treatment or services that is an occupational requirement or condition of employment.

F. Experimental, Investigational Exclusions

Charges for:

- 1. Experimental or Investigative or related to such, whether incurred prior to, in connection with, or subsequent to the Experimental /Investigative service or supply, as determined by US. The fact that a service is the only available treatment for a condition will not make it eligible for Coverage if We deem it to be Experimental/Investigative.
- 2. Experimental organ and tissue transplants.
- 3. Any Drug We determine in Our sole discretion to be Experimental/Investigative is not covered under the Plan.
- 4. Any drug that cannot be legally marketed in the United States without the final approval of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA), or other licensing or regulatory agency, and such final approval has not been granted.
- 5. Drugs obtained from pharmacies not located in the United States are not covered.
- 6. Charges incurred outside the United States if the Covered Person traveled to such location for the sole purpose of obtaining a drug.

G. Cosmetic, Weight Control, and Vitamin Exclusions

Charges for:

- 1. Treatment or surgery that alters or enhances appearance (i.e. cosmetic), whether or not done for a psychological or emotional condition, except as specifically provided (for example, Breast Reconstruction Surgery).
- Surgery, treatments, Services or medications related to weight control, including weight loss programs, as well as dietary and nutritional consultations, when the consultation is strictly for weight loss, even if You are obese, unless covered under Preventive Services or Your Plan specifically covers Nutritional Counseling,. For a list of covered Preventive Services relating to screenings and counseling Services, please go to <u>www.healthcare.gov</u>.
- 3. Charges for vitamins and nutritional/dietary supplements, unless covered under Preventive Services. For a list of Covered Services, please go to www.healthcare.gov.

H. Self-Administered or Administered by Relative Exclusions

Charges for:

- 1. Care or Treatment You give Yourself.
- 2. Care or Treatment administered by a Doctor, Nurse or other Health Care Provider who is a family member or who lives with You.

I. <u>Remedial Training, Self-Help, Marital Counseling and Tobacco Exclusions</u>

Charges for:

- 1. Tutoring, self-help, training, vocational testing. This Exclusion does not apply to care-related education, such as diabetic education or wound care education.
- 2. Charges for marital counseling.
- 3. Charges for intelligence or aptitude tests.
- 4. Tobacco cessation aids and devices, unless covered under Preventive Services. This does not exclude smoking cessation counseling Services as a preventive service. For a list, please go to www.healthcare.gov. Check Your Benefits Chart.

J. Eye Care, Hearing, and Dental Exclusions

Charges for:

- 1. Eye refractions or examinations for the fitting of glasses, contacts or hearing aids, including the cost of glasses, contacts or hearing aids.
- 2. Radial keratotomy, radial keratoplasty, LASIK surgery or similar procedures to correct vision refractions.
- 3. Dental Services and Orthodontics related to TMJ are not covered.

K. Anesthesia Exclusions

Charges for Anesthesia Services for Non-Covered surgeries.

L. Exclusion for Treatment of Injuries When Committing a Felony

Charges for treatment of injuries when You are convicted of, or plead no contest to, a felony.

M. Exclusions for Acts of War or Riot

Charges for injuries resulting in connection with acts of war or riots.

N. Exclusions for Medical Services Not Specifically Covered or Not Legally Obtained

Charges for medical Services that are not specifically Covered or required by law, as well as charges for medical Services and supplies (including drugs) that are not legally obtained or obtained out of the country.

Section 23 - Using Your AultCare Card

A. Information On Your Card

On the front of Your AultCare Card, You will find:

- 1. Your name
- 2. Your Group Number
- 3. Your Member Identification Number
- 4. The Effective Date of Coverage
- 5. The amount of Your Copay ment
- 6. Our website (www.aultcare.com)
- 7. Your Deductible and Out-of-Pocket amounts.

On the <u>back</u> of Your AultCare Card, You will find:

- 1. Our address, including where You can submit Claims
- 2. Our Service Center telephone numbers, 330-363-6360 and 1-800-344-8858
- 3. Our weekday hours of operation
- 4. The telephone number You must call to obtain Precertification from our UM Department

B. When You Need to Show Your AultCare Card and Why

You will need to show Your AultCare Card when You go to a Provider for Services. Your Doctor or Health Care Provider will verify that You are Covered by checking Your Group Number and Member ID Number. If

You change Your Coverage from Individual to Family or from Family to Individual, You will get a new AultCare Card. Alw ays bring Your most current AultCare Card with You.

Section 24 - Your Responsibility for Copayments, Deductibles, Coinsurance

A. Your Responsibility for Copayments

A Copay ment is the set dollar amount You pay Out-of-Pocket for each Provider Office Visit.

B. Your Responsibility for Deductibles

A Deductible means a set annual dollar amount of medical expenses that You must pay before the Master Group Policy pays for certain Services. See Your Benefits Chart.

C. <u>Coinsurance</u>

Coinsurance is the percentage of medical expense that You share with the AultCare Insurance Company after You meet Your Annual Deductible.

Section 25 - Reference Based Pricing ("RBP")

We are committed to offering You Health Care Benefits for Covered Services at reasonable rates. Your Benefits are greatest when You receive Your Health Care Services and treatment from a Network Provider.

Some Plans require Enrollees to stay within the Network. We permit You to go outside the Network. If You go outside the Network, however, You will be responsible for paying what We do not pay, since We have no control over what Non-Network Providers charge. In the event of certain unanticipated treatment, Surprise Billing protections may apply. Please reference Section 15B for more Surprise Billing information.

The amount We pay to a Non-Network Provider often is less than the Non-Network Provider charges and may be less than the amount We pay to a Network Provider for the same Service. You are responsible for paying the balance between the total charges and the amount We pay to Non-Network Providers. Consequently, there may be a financial incentive for You to use Network Providers.

Before choosing a Non-Network Provider, We encourage You to find out what the Non-Network Provider charges for a particular Service and what We will pay for that Service. We also suggest that You compare what We will pay for the Non-Network Provider's Service to the amount We would pay if the Service were furnished by a Network Provider. You may contact the AultCare Service Center for assistance.

REFERENCE BASED PRICING (RBP): "RBP" means the allowable fees for Covered Services. For Non-Network Providers, RBP means a fee level assigned based on a percentage of the allowed amount that Medicare would pay for the Covered Service or, if there is no corresponding Medicare rate for the Covered Service, a fee level that We have determined to be appropriate for the particular Covered Service, which often is less than the amount Providers actually charge. We will not pay that portion of the Non-Network Provider fees that exceed RBP. You may be responsible for paying that amount.

For example: If a Non-Network Provider charges You a fee of \$125 for a procedure, and the RBP fee level assigned for this procedure is \$100, then We will pay up to the RBP amount (\$100), minus Your Cost Share. You would be responsible for paying the amount that exceeds RBP, which is \$25 plus any Cost Share.

You are not responsible for paying any amount that exceeds the negotiated rate when You go to a Network Provider.

Section 26 - Filing Your Claim

A. <u>Claims for Hospital Services</u>

When Services are provided at a Hospital, show Your AultCare Card and sign the Hospital assignment form. The Hospital will send to AultCare a Claim for Services provided to You.

B. Claims For Provider Office Visits

- 1. Your Network Provider will file Your Claim for You.
- 2. If You go to a Non-Network Provider, You may need to use an Application for Benefits form. You can get a copy of this form online by going to Our website at www.aultcare.com or by calling Us at

330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858. Fill it out and sign the top half of this form. Be sure to answer all questions. Give the form to the Non-Network Provider and ask them to complete the bottom half. Either You or the Non-Network Provider must then send the completed form to Us at the AultCare Service Center, P.O. Box 6910, Canton, Ohio 44706. In some cases, You may be able to attach an itemized statement from Your Non-Network Provider instead of having the Non-Network Provider complete the bottom half of the form.

Payment Cannot Be Made On Any Bill Until Your Properly Completed Application for Benefits Is Filed, except that if You request an Application for Benefits and do not receive one from AultCare within fifteen days of Your request, You may submit written proof covering the occurrence, character and the extent of the loss for which the Claim is made, and once that is filed We may follow up with You with for more information.

C. <u>Time Limits for Filing Claims</u>

Generally, You must file a Claim within 24 months from the date You received Service, unless You are not reasonably aware that it must be filed because of Coordination of Benefits or Subrogation.

D. Prompt Payment

Once We have received Your Claim, we will consider it for payment according to the written guidelines of the Plan, including Cost Share Services for Netw ork Provider or Non-Netw ork Provider, and RBP. We will decide Your Claim within 30 days. If Your Claim is incomplete, We will extend the time for determination until we have received any requested information, generally within a timeframe not to exceed 45 days. If We do not receive additional information necessary to decide Your Claim, Your Claim may be denied. You will be notified of any Claims decisions in writing.

E. Claim Submission

All claims submitted to AultCare are processed according to the codes, procedures and diagnoses deemed fit by the medical provider at the time of service. AultCare cannot make edits or changes to a provider's claim submission. AultCare will require a corrected claim submitted by the provider in order to reconsider changes to the claim.

F. <u>Questions</u>

If You have a question about Your Claim, how to fill out the Application for Benefits form, or whether You can send in an itemized statement, click onto our website at www.aultcare.com, or call Us at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858.

All claims are processed by AultCare in the way in which the provider sends the claims to AultCare. AultCare is not able to alter or change any billing codes on claims submitted by the provider on behalf of a member. Corrected claims can be submitted to AultCare by mail to:

AultCare P.O. Box 6910 Canton, Ohio 44706

Section 27 - Your HIPAA Privacy Rights

The confidentiality of Your Claim and health information is very important to Us. We have adopted policies and procedures to safeguard Your Protected Health Information, as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (sometimes known as HIPAA) and Ohio law.

When You contact Us about Your Claim, We may ask You to verify Your identity. If You are calling about a Claim for a Dependent, including Your Spouse or a Child over the age of 18, then Your Spouse or Dependent will need to sign an authorization that allows Us to discuss information, including Protected Health Information, with You. HIPAA's Privacy Rule prohibits Us from disclosing another's Protected Health Information without an authorization except in limited circumstances.

Section 28 - Benefit Determination

Benefits payable are determined as follows:

- A. Eligible Expenses incurred during any Benefit Period may be applied against the Deductible Amount until You have paid the Deductible Amount Out-of-Pocket.
- **B.** After You have paid the Deductible Amount, Eligible Expenses will then be paid at the Benefit Percentage stated in Your Benefits Chart.

Section 29 - Coordination of this Contract's Benefits with Other Benefits

The Coordination of Benefits ("COB") provision applies when a person has Health Care Coverage under more than one Plan. Plan is defined below.

The order of Benefit determination rules governs the order in which each Plan will pay a Claim for Benefits. The Plan that pays first is called the Primary Plan. The Primary Plan must pay Benefits in accordance with its policy terms without regard to the possibility that another Plan may cover some expenses. The Plan that pays after the Primary Plan is the Secondary Plan. The Secondary Plan may reduce the Benefits it pays so that pay ments from all Plans do not exceed 100% of the total Allowable Expense.

Definitions

A. A Plan is any of the following that provides Benefits or Services for medical or dental care or treatment If separate contracts are used to provide coordinated Coverage for members of a group, the separate contracts are considered parts of the same Plan and there is no COB among those separate contracts.

Plan includes: group and non-group insurance contracts, health insuring corporation ("HIC") contracts, closed panel Plans or other forms of group or group-type Coverage (whether insured or uninsured); medical care components of long-term care contracts, such as skilled nursing care; medical Benefits under group or individual automobile contracts; and Medicare or any other federal governmental Plan, as permitted by law.

Plan does not include: hospital indemnity Coverage or other fixed indemnity Coverage; Accident only Coverage; specified disease or specified Accident Coverage; supplemental Coverage as described in Revised Code sections 3923.37 and 1751.56; school Accident type Coverage; Benefits for non-medical components of long-term care policies; Medicare supplement policies; Medicaid policies; or Coverage under other federal governmental Plans, unless permitted by law.

Each contract for Coverage under (1) or (2) is a separate Plan. If a Plan has two parts and COB rules apply only to one of the two, each of the parts is treated as a separate Plan.

- B. This Plan means, in a COB provision, the part of the contract providing the Health Care Benefits to which the COB provision applies and which may be reduced because of the Benefits of other Plans. Any other part of the contract providing Health Care Benefits is separate from this Plan. A contract may apply one COB provision to certain Benefits, such as dental Benefits, coordinating only with similar Benefits, and may apply another COB provision to coordinate other Benefits.
- **C.** The order of Benefit determination rules determines whether This Plan is a Primary Plan or Secondary Plan when the person has Health Care Coverage under more than one Plan.

When This Plan is primary, it determines payment for its Benefits first before those of any other Plan without considering any other Plan's Benefits. When This Plan is secondary, it determines its Benefits after those of another Plan and may reduce the Benefits it pays so that all Plan Benefits do not exceed 100% of the total Allow able Expense.

D. Allow able Expense is a Health Care expense, including Deductibles, Coinsurance and Copayments, that is covered at least in part by any Plan covering the person. When a Plan provides Benefits in the form of Services, the reasonable cash value of each service will be considered an Allow able Expense and a Benefit paid. An expense that is not covered by any Plan covering the person is not an Allowable Expense. In addition, any expense that a Provider by law or in accordance with a contractual agreement is prohibited from charging a Covered Person is not an Allowable Expense.

The following are examples of expenses that are not Allowable Expenses:

- 1. The difference between the cost of a Semi-Private Hospital room and a private Hospital room is not an Allowable Expense, unless one of the Plans provides Coverage for private Hospital room expenses.
- If a person is covered by 2 or more Plans that compute their Benefit payments on the basis of usual and customary fees or relative value schedule reimbursement methodology or other similar reimbursement methodology, any amount in excess of the highest reimbursement amount for a specific Benefit is not an Allowable Expense.
- 3. If a person is covered by 2 or more Plans that provide Benefits or Services on the basis of negotiated fees, an amount in excess of the highest of the negotiated fees is not an Allowable Expense.
- 4. If a person is covered by one Plan that calculates its Benefits or Services on the basis of usual and customary fees or relative value schedule reimbursement methodology or other similar reimbursement methodology and another Plan that provides its Benefits or Services on the basis of

negotiated fees, the Primary Plan's payment arrangement shall be the Allow able Expense for all Plans. How ever, if the Provider has contracted with the Secondary Plan to provide the Benefit or service for a specific negotiated fee or payment amount that is different than the Primary Plan's payment arrangement and if the Provider's contract permits, the negotiated fee or payment shall be the Allow able Expense used by the Secondary Plan to determine its Benefits.

- 5. The amount of any Benefit reduction by the Primary Plan because a Covered Person has failed to comply with the Plan provisions is not an Allowable Expense. Examples of these types of Plan provisions include, Precertification of admissions, or preferred Provider arrangements.
- E. Closed panel Plan is a Plan that provides Health Care Benefits to Covered Persons primarily in the form of Services through a panel of Providers that have contracted with or are employed by the Plan, and that excludes Coverage for Services provided by other Providers, except in cases of emergency or Referral by a panel member.
- F. Custodial parent is the parent awarded Custody by a court decree or, in the absence of a court decree, is the parent with whom the Child resides more than one-half of the Calendar Year excluding any temporary visitation.

Order of Benefit Determination Rules

When a person is covered by two or more Plans, the rules for determining the order of Benefit payments are as follows:

- **A.** The Primary Plan pays or provides its Benefits according to its terms of Coverage and without regard to the Benefits of under any other Plan.
- **B.** Except as provided in Paragraph (2), a Plan that does not contain a Coordination of Benefits provision that is consistent with this regulation is always primary unless the provisions of both Plans state that the complying Plan is primary.
- **C.** Coverage that is obtained by virtue of membership in a group that is designed to supplement a part of a basic package of Benefits and provides that this supplementary Coverage shall be excess to any other parts of the Plan provided by the contract holder. Ex amples of these types of situations are major medical Coverages that are superimposed over base Plan Hospital and surgical Benefits, and insurance type Coverages that are written in connection with a Closed panel Plan to provide Non-Netw ork Benefits.
- **D.** A Plan may consider the Benefits paid or provided by another Plan in calculating payment of its Benefits only when it is secondary to that other Plan.
- E. Each Plan determines its order of Benefits using the first of the following rules that apply:
 - 1. Non-Dependent or Dependent.

The Plan that covers the person other than as a Dependent, for example as an Employee, member, policyholder, subscriber or retiree is the Primary Plan and the Plan that covers the person as a Dependent is the Secondary Plan. However, if the person is a Medicare beneficiary and, as a result

of federal law, Medicare is secondary to the Plan covering the person as a Dependent, and primary to the Plan covering the person as other than a Dependent (e.g. a retired Employee), then the order of Benefits between the two Plans is reversed so that the Plan covering the person as an Employee, member, policyholder, subscriber or retiree is the Secondary Plan and the other Plan is the Primary Plan.

2. Dependent Child covered under more than one Plan.

Unless there is a court decree stating otherwise, when a Dependent Child is covered by more than one Plan the order of Benefits is determined as follows:

For a Dependent Child whose parents are married or are living together, whether or not they have ever been married:

- a. The Plan of the parent whose birthday falls earlier in the Calendar Year is the Primary Plan; or
- b. If both parents have the same birthday, the Plan that has covered the parent the longest is the Primary Plan.
- c. How ever, if one Spouse's Plan has some other coordination rule (for example, a "gender rule" which says the father's Plan is always primary), We will follow the rules of that Plan.
- d. For a Dependent Child whose parents are divorced or separated or not living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - i. If a court decree states that one of the parents is responsible for the Dependent Child's Health Care expenses or Health Care Coverage and the Plan of that parent has actual know ledge of those terms, that Plan is primary. This rule applies to Plan Years commencing after the Plan is given notice of the court decree;
 - ii. If a court decree states that both parents are responsible for the Dependent Child's Health Care expenses or Health Care Coverage, the provisions of Subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of Benefits;
 - iii. If a court decree states that the parents have joint Custody without specifying that one parent has responsibility for the Health Care expenses or Health Care Coverage of the Dependent Child, the provisions of Subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of Benefits; or
- e. If there is no court decree allocating responsibility for the Dependent Child's Health Care expenses or Health Care Coverage, the order of Benefits for the Child are as follow s:
 - i. The Plan covering the Custodial parent;
 - ii. The Plan covering the Spouse of the Custodial parent;
 - iii. The Plan covering the non-custodial parent; and then
 - iv. The Plan covering the Spouse of the non-custodial parent.

For a Dependent Child covered under more than one Plan of individuals who are not the parents of the Child, the provisions of Subparagraph (a) or (b) above shall determine the order of Benefits as if those individuals were the parents of the Child.

- 1. Active employee or retired or laid-off employee. The Plan that covers a person as an active Employee, that is, an Employee who is neither laid off nor retired, is the Primary Plan. The Plan covering that same person as a retired or laid-off employee is the Secondary Plan. The same would hold true if a person is a Dependent of an active employee and that same person is a Dependent of a retired or laid-off employee. If the other Plan does not have this rule, and as a result, the Plans do not agree on the order of Benefits, this rule is ignored. This rule does not apply if the rule labeled D(1) can determine the order of Benefits.
- 2. COBRA or state Continuation Coverage. If a person whose Coverage is provided pursuant to COBRA or under a right of Continuation provided by state or other federal law is covered under another Plan, the Plan covering the person as an Employee, member, subscriber or retiree or covering the person as a Dependent of an Employee, member, subscriber or retiree is the Primary Plan and the COBRA or state or other federal Continuation Coverage is the Secondary Plan. If the other Plan does not have this rule, and as a result, the Plans do not agree on the order of Benefits, this rule is ignored. This rule does not apply if the rule labeled D(1) can determine the order of Benefits.
- 3. Longer or shorter length of Coverage. The Plan that covered the person as an Employee, member, policyholder, subscriber or retiree longer is the Primary Plan and the Plan that covered the person the shorter period of time is the Secondary Plan.
- 4. If the preceding rules do not determine the order of Benefits, the Allowable Expenses shall be shared equally between the Plans meeting the definition of Plan. In addition, This Plan will not pay more than it would have paid had it been the Primary Plan.

Effect on the Benefits of this Plan

- A. When This Plan is secondary, it may reduce its Benefits so that the total Benefits paid or provided by all Plans during a Plan Year are not more than the total Allow able Expenses. In determining the amount to be paid for any claim, the Secondary Plan will calculate the Benefits it would have paid in the absence of other Health Care Coverage and apply that calculated amount to any Allow able Expense under its Plan that is unpaid by the Primary Plan. The Secondary Plan may then reduce its payment by the amount so that, when combined with the amount paid by the Primary Plan, the total Benefits paid or provided by all Plans for the Claim do not exceed the total Allow able Expense for that claim. In addition, the Secondary Plan shall credit to its Plan Deductible any amounts it would have credited to its Deductible in the absence of other Health Care Coverage.
- **B.** If a Covered Person is enrolled in two or more Closed panel Plans and if, for any reason, including the provision of service by a non-panel Provider, Benefits are not payable by one Closed panel Plan, COB shall not apply between that Plan and other Closed panel Plans.

Right to Receive and Release Needed Information

Certain facts about Health Care Coverage and Services are needed to apply these COB rules and to determine Benefits payable under This Plan and other Plans. AultCare Insurance Company may get the facts it needs from or give them to other organizations or persons for the purpose of applying these rules and determining Benefits payable under This Plan and other Plans covering the person claiming Benefits. AultCare Insurance Company need not tell, or get the consent of, any person to do this. Each person claiming Benefits under This Plan must give AultCare Insurance Company any facts it needs to apply those rules and determine Benefits payable.

Facility of Payment

A pay ment made under another Plan may include an amount that should have been paid under This Plan. If it does, AultCare Insurance Company may pay that amount to the organization that made that payment. That amount will then be treated as though it were a Benefit paid under This Plan. AultCare Insurance Company will not have to pay that amount again. The term "payment made" includes providing Benefits in the form of Services, in which case "payment made" means the reasonable cash value of the Benefits provided in the form of Services.

Right of Recovery

If the amount of the payments made by AultCare Insurance Company is more than it should have paid under this COB provision, it may recover the excess from one or more of the persons it has paid or for whom it has paid, or any other person or organization that may be responsible for the Benefits or Services provided for the Covered Person. The "amount of the payments made" includes the reasonable cash value of any Benefits provided in the form of Services.

Coordination Disputes

If You believe that We have not paid a Claim properly, You should first attempt to resolve the problem by contacting Us at 1-800-344-8858 or www.aultcare.com (For health insuring corporations, reference evidence of Coverage's description of Appeal procedures). If You are still not satisfied, You may call the Ohio Department of Insurance for instructions on filing a consumer Complaint. Call 1-800-686-1526, or visit the Department's website at http://insurance.ohio.gov.

Annual Requirement

Each year, You will be required to fill out an Other Coverage Information Form (OCIF). This form confirms there have been no changes in any member's status with regard to other Coverage. The OCIF needs to be filled out and returned promptly, as it may affect the processing of Your claims. If You have questions, please contact the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or for members outside Stark County, 800-344-8858 and a Customer Service Representative will help You. You can also supply the requested information online at www.aultcare.com.

Medicare Provision

Any Benefits covered under both this Plan and Medicare will be paid pursuant to Medicare Secondary Payor legislation, regulations, and Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) guidelines, subject to federal

court decisions. Federal law controls whenever there is a conflict among state law, Plan provisions, and federal law.

Ex cept when federal law requires the Plan to be the primary payor, the Benefits under this Plan for Members age 65 and older, or Members otherwise eligible for Medicare, do not duplicate any Benefit for which Members are entitled under Medicare, including Parts B and/or D. Where Medicare is the Health responsible pay or, all sums payable by Medicare for Services provided to Members shall be reimbursed by or on behalf of the Members to the Plan, to the extent the Plan has made payment for such Services. For the purposes of the calculation of Benefits, if the Member has not enrolled in Medicare Part B, We will calculate Benefits as if they had enrolled.

Section 30 - Explanation of Benefits ("EOB")

AultCare processes an Explanation of Benefits (sometimes called an "EOB") that describes how We handled Your Claim. An EOB is not a bill; Your Provider may send You a bill, if needed. You may visit our website at www.aultcare.com to view Your EOB online, or, You may request a paper copy via mail.

The EOB describes the Group Number and the ID Number of the person who received Services, what Services were provided, who provided them, and the date they were provided, any adjustments to show Cost Share, additional fee adjustments or Ex clusions that You may or may not be required to pay, the total amount AultCare paid on the Claim and the date it paid, and the amount, if any, You are responsible for paying.

Access Your Explanation of Benefits (EOBs) 24 Hours a Day

You can access, view or print Your EOBs from Your AultCare account any time You need them.

Go to AultCare's website at www.aultcare.com. "Click to Login" button on the left side of the screen or the login button above search box.

Registered users: enter username and passwords. New users: click "Register for a new account" and follow the "Steps for Registration". If You are a new user, within 2-3 weeks, You will begin receiving email notifications when an electronic EOB is posted.

Manage Your ready to view EOB email notification preferences:

- Once logged in, select "account" and then "alerts & emails"
- Click Claim EOB Ready Notification
- Click "ON" = sends email
- Click "OFF" = does not send email

Manage Your paperless statement delivery settings:

- Once logged in, select "account" and then "alerts & emails"
- Click Paperless Explanation of Benefits Statement
- Click "NO" to receive paper EOBs in the mail
- Click "YES" to receive EOBs electronically and no longer receive them in the mail

If You have questions or do not have internet access, call AultCare's Customer Service at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858. A service representative can answer Your questions and help You change Your EOB options over the phone.

Section 31 - Subrogation, Reimbursement and Other Insurance

A. <u>Agreement</u>

AultCare may pay for a Benefit that results from an injury or illness for which another person, Plan, program or insurance company may be liable and/or responsible for paying. Examples include (without limitation) payments from another person or entity, automobile insurance, other liability Coverage, and other insurance You may have (called "first-party" insurance) which pays Your Claim. If You receive payment from any source, You must pay AultCare back. AultCare's Benefit under this policy is "excess" to several types of other insurance, which may provide Coverage for medical expenses. Accepting AultCare's payment of a Benefit means You agree to all terms.

B. <u>What is Subrogation?</u>

When AultCare pays You a Benefit for an injury or illness that another person, Plan, program or insurance company may be responsible for paying (see Section A), then You agree to give AultCare the right to get back the Benefit it paid. This is called Subrogation.

AultCare's Subrogation rights go into effect when it pays a Benefit for Covered Services. At that point, AultCare becomes Subrogated to all rights You have equal to the Benefit it paid (or will pay) for Covered Services for an illness or injury for which You may be entitled to receive payment from any person or entity.

AultCare's Subrogated rights include any Claim You have to receive payments from the person or entity who caused the illness or injury, that person's or entity's insurer, any "Uninsured Motorist," any "Underinsured Motorist," any "Medical Payments," any "No-Fault" payment, and any other similar Coverage provisions. It does not apply to Automobile Property Damage recovery. AultCare's right of Subrogation applies equally to all state, federal or common law Claims of survivors, wrongful death, loss of companionship (called "consortium") and other similar Claims. AultCare's right of Subrogation will not exceed the amount of the Benefit it paid or will pay to You.

AultCare's Subrogation right has "first priority" to any payment You receive. That means AultCare has a right to be repaid before any one else, including You, any injured party, any attorney, any person with a Claim that arises out of, or results from, the illness or injury (called a "derivative Claim"), and any other person or entity with a Claim, right or lien on the payment. AultCare's Subrogation right will not be reduced by the amount of any attorney fees or costs You or any other party "incur" (including, but is not limited to, fees and costs You actually paid, as well as fees and costs for Services performed for which You or another party are responsible for paying) to receive a potential payment.

If You make a civil Claim for a tort action seeking damages for injury, death, or loss to person, whether or not a law suit is pending, or a civil Claim regarding uninsured or underinsured motorist Coverage (but not a Claim for breach of contract or agreement between persons), but You do not recover the full value

of damages for Your Claim because of: (1) comparative negligence; (2) diminishment due to joint and several liability; or (3) Your inability to collect the full value of the Claim for injury, death, or loss to person due to limited liability insurance or any other cause, then notwithstanding any contractual or statutory provision to the contrary, the rights of a subrogee (including AultCare, an insurance company doing business in Ohio, a self-funded Plan providing health Benefits, or any other person or entity that asserts a contractual, statutory, or common law Subrogation Claim against a third party or injured party in a tort action) will be diminished by the same proportion that Your interest in recovering damages is diminished. If You or another person may file a declaratory judgment action in common pleas court to resolve that dispute.

AultCare's right to Subrogation applies even if You, any injured party, anyone with a derivative Claim, any attorney, or any other person or entity are not "made whole." That means AultCare has a right to be reimbursed for its payment, even though there may not be enough money to compensate You fully for Your loss, or You receive only partial payment for the loss.

C. <u>Reimbursement</u>

If You receive payment from any person or entity or through any Coverage (see Sections A and B), no matter how or what You, Your legal representative or any other party may call that payment, You must hold that payment "in trust" for AultCare. That means even though You are holding onto a payment made to You, the amount of that payment equal to the Benefit AultCare paid is not Yours to keep. That amount belongs to AultCare. You must pay back AultCare the amount equal to the Benefit AultCare had paid You within 14 calendar days from the date You received that payment.

Because some or all of the payment You are holding belongs to AultCare, any payment You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity receives is subject to what is called a "constructive trust," or "equitable lien" that AultCare has on that payment, so it may be reimbursed. AultCare's right to be reimbursed continues, even if You use the payment to buy real estate, personal property, or other property. If AultCare is not timely reimbursed from any payment, it may reduce future payments for a Benefit to You until it is paid back in full.

AultCare's reimbursement right is first in priority to any payment received. It takes priority over You, any injured party, any attorney, any person with a derivative Claim, and any other person or entity with a Claim, right or lien on the payment. AultCare's reimbursement right will not be reduced for any attorney fees or costs You or any other person "incur" (see definition in Section B) to get a potential payment. You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity must pay any expenses, including attorney fees and court costs, that AultCare "incurs" (see definition in Section B) to enforce its reimbursement right.

AultCare's reimbursement right applies even if You, any injured party, any person with a derivative Claim, any attorney or any other person or entity are not "made whole," are not fully compensated, or You receive only partial payment for the loss.

D. Your Cooperation

You, any injured party, any attorney and any other person or entity must cooperate with AultCare in the Subrogation, Reimbursement and Other Insurance process. You, any injured party, any attorney and any

other person or entity must do whatever is necessary to let AultCare recover in Subrogation, Reimbursement and when there is other Insurance. You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity must sign all documents for You to assign Your rights under this Section to AultCare.

You must give AultCare any information it asks You to provide a soon as reasonably possible. You must promptly notify AultCare of how, when and where an Accident or incident resulting in personal injury to You occurred and give AultCare all information about the persons involved. You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity must cooperate with AultCare in the investigation, settlement and protection of AultCare's rights.

You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity must send AultCare copies of any police report, notices or other papers received in connection with the Accident or incident resulting in any illness or injury. You, any injured party, any attorney or any other person or entity must not settle or compromise any Claims, unless You notify AultCare in writing at least 30 calendar days before the settlement or compromise, and AultCare agrees to the settlement or compromise in writing.

You must complete, sign and return an Accident questionnaire and/or Subrogation agreement before We can process Your Claim for Covered Services. We cannot pay Your Claim until You return the Accident questionnaire and/or Subrogation agreement. Because a delay in returning the questionnaire and/or Subrogation agreement may prejudice our Subrogation rights, Your failure to return a completed questionnaire and/or Subrogation agreement within 30 calendar days, will result in the Denial of Your Claim. Please contact the AultCare Service Center if You have questions.

E. <u>Discretionary Authority</u>

AultCare, in a manner consistent with Ohio law, will interpret and enforce the terms and conditions of the Subrogation, Reimbursement and Other Insurance provisions and will make determinations as to the amount that may be owed.

Section 32 - Determination of Time Frames

- A. When You require Urgent Care Services, as determined by Your Provider, because You would be subject to adverse health consequences without the requested treatment or Your psy chological state jeopardizes the life, health or safety of Yourself or others, a decision will be made once the request has been received from the Provider but no later than 48 hours after receipt of the request, unless You or Your Provider hav e provided insufficient information. If insufficient information has been provided to make the decision, We will notify You or Your Provider within 24 hours requesting the Necessary Information and will allow You or Your Provider 48 hours to respond.
- **B**. We will make Prospective Review Determinations (Pre-Service) within 10 Calendar Days after a proposed admission, procedure or Health Care Service that needs a Review Determination.
 - 1. We will notify the Provider by secure electronic submission, phone, letter, or fax regarding the Precertification and will also let You know in writing.
 - 2. If there is an Adverse Determination, We will notify the Provider by secure electronic submission, phone, letter, or fax after making the Adverse Determination and will also let You know in writing.

- 3. We will not retroactively deny any approved Prospective Review Determinations if all of the following criteria has been met:
 - a. The health care practitioner submits a Prior Authorization request to the insurer or Plan for a Health Care Service, drug, or device;
 - b. The insurer or Plan approves the Prior Authorization request;
 - c. The health care practitioner renders the Health Care Service, drug, or device pursuant to the approved Prior Authorization request and all of the terms and conditions of the health care practitioner's contract with the insurer or Plan;
 - d. The health care practitioner renders the Health Care Service, drug, or device pursuant to the approved Prior Authorization request and all of the terms and conditions of the health care practitioner's contract with the insurer or Plan;
 - e. If the health care practitioner submits a Claim that includes an unintentional error and the error results in a Claim that does not match the information originally submitted by the health care practitioner in the approved Prior Authorization request, upon receiving a Denial of Services from the insurer or Plan, the health care practitioner may resubmit the Claim pursuant to division (C) of this section with the information that matches the information included in the approved Prior Authorization.
- **C**. We will make Concurrent Review Determinations after obtaining all Necessary Information.
 - 1. We will notify the Provider within 24 hours by phone after making a Determination to Precertify an extended stay.
 - 2. We will notify the Provider within 24 hours by phone after making an Adverse Determination, and We will let You know in writing of that Adverse Determination. If You are receiving Services outside of the AultCare Network, You will be financially responsible for charges that exceed RBP.
 - 3. If Your Claim is an Urgent Concurrent claim, We will provide a determination and notification 24 hours prior to the end of treatment.
 - 4. If Your Claim is a Non-Urgent Concurrent claim, We will provide a determination and notification in advance of the reduction or Termination of Services with enough time for You to Appeal Our decision.
- D. We will make Retrospective Reviews (Post-Service) within 30 calendar days after receiving all Necessary Information.
- E. You may request an Internal Review (see below) if We fail to make a Determination or We fail to Notify You within the timeframes stated in this Section.
- F. You may have rights for other Claims Review Procedures under state law. Call Us if You have questions.

Section 33 - Questions, Complaints, Review and Appeals

A. Tell Us first if You have a Question, Disagreement, or Complaint.

If You have a question, a Complaint or You disagree with any of Our decisions or procedures, call Us first. We want to answer Your questions, address Your Complaint and resolve any disagreements, if possible.

B. <u>Types of Appeals</u>

There are a number of Appeals that are available to You if We cannot resolve disagreements. You can Appeal any Adverse Determination by Us as to:

- 1. A Service that is not Covered.
- 2. A Service that is not Medically Necessary, Appropriate or Effective.
- 3. A Service that is Experimental or Investigational.
- 4. Rescission of Coverage.
- 5. A determination You are not eligible for Coverage.

You may also request an Expedited Review if Your medical condition needs prompt attention.

In the event of a Rescission, We will give You thirty 30 days advanced notice before Coverage is Rescinded.

C. Complaints or Quality of Care Issues

If You are not satisfied with the quality of care You received or the way We handled Your Claim, please call the AultCare Service Center at 330-363-6360 or 1-800-344-8858 to speak with a Customer Service Representative. You may contact Us at www.aultcare.com.

We will obtain all Necessary Information to investigate Your Complaint. We will contact You to let You know the status or outcome of Your Complaint within 30 calendar days after We receive Your Complaint.

If You feel the issue is not resolved, You may file a written Complaint with Our Grievance/Appeal Coordinator. You have 60 calendar days from the date You received Our notice to file this Complaint.

> AultCare Grievance/Appeal Coordinator P.O. Box 6029 Canton, Ohio 44706

We will send You written notice of the outcome of Your Complaint within 30 calendar days of the request for review by the Grievance and Appeals Coordinator.

Complaints may be resolved quickly and easily by contacting AultCare. If AultCare's Internal Review process has been exhausted and You still wish to file a Complaint with the Ohio Department of Insurance, You may

do so at that time. If You choose to file a Complaint with the Department of Insurance, send Your written Complaint to:

Ohio Department of Insurance Consumer Services Division Third Floor - Suite 300 50 W. Town Street Columbus, OH 43215

You may also call the Consumer Services Division Hotline at 1-800-686-1526 or 1-614-644-2673.

D. <u>Denial or Rescission of Coverage</u>

If Coverage for medical Service is denied, reduced, or terminated, You may ask Us to review the request for Service again. This is called an Internal Review of an Adverse Determination. You may ask for an Internal Review of an Adverse Determination because:

- 1. Service is not Covered or is Excluded or Limited under the terms of the Plan
- 2. Service is does not meet requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or, level of care
- 3. Service is Experimental or Investigational
- 4. Rescission of Your Coverage
- 5. You are not eligible for Coverage

You, or someone acting for You, or Your Provider may request an Internal Review. The Provider and Health Care Facility must have Your consent to request an Internal Review. You do not have to pay for the Internal Review. You will be permitted to view Your file and present evidence and testimony. You will be provided free of charge any new or additional evidence and the rational for any adverse Benefit determination. Enrollees will be permitted to receive continued Coverage pending outcome of Appeals process.

The Company must notify You of a Benefit determination for any Claim involving Urgent Care as soon as possible but not later than 24 hours. Concurrent internal and External Reviews shall be allowed for Claims involving Urgent Care or an ongoing course of treatment.

You have the right to an External Review if the Company fails to adhere to internal Claims and Appeals processes. However, de minimis violations that do not cause or are not likely to cause prejudice or harm to the Claimant, which were for good cause or beyond the control of the Plan or Us, and which occurred in the context of an ongoing, good faith ex change of information will not give rise to a right to an External Review prior to the completion of an Internal Review.

Requests for Internal Review of an Adverse Determination made by an AultCare Affiliated Vendor can be sent to the contact listed in the Determination notice.

Requests for Internal Review of all other Benefit Adverse Determination can be sent to the Grievance/Appeal Coordinator at:

AultCare Grievance/Appeal Coordinator P.O. Box 6029 Canton, Ohio 44706

E. Internal Review When the Adverse Determination Is Because Services Are Not Covered

If We deny, reduce or terminate the Service because it is not Covered or is excluded or limited by the Plan, You may write to AultCare to request a review of Our decision. We will review Your request and the terms of the Plan as part of Our Internal Review. We will give You a written decision within 30 calendar days from the date We receive Your request for an Internal Review. If We do not provide a written decision in this amount of time, the internal appeals process may be deemed exhausted.

If You do not receive a decision within 30 days as described above, You may be eligible for an External Review. You should write to AultCare and We will review Your request. If We deny Your request for an External Review, We will provide a written decision within 10 days, which describes why the delay in Our decision does not deem the Internal Review process exhausted. The decision will describe why the delay was the result of good cause and occurred in the course of ongoing conversations between You and AultCare.

You may ask for a review of this explanation from the Ohio Department of Insurance. You can write to the Department of Insurance, Consumer Services Division, Third Floor - Suite 300, 50 W. Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215, or call the Department of Insurance at 800-686-1526. If the Ohio Department of Insurance agrees with AultCare's explanation for why there was a good faith delay in an Internal Review decision as described above, You will receive a notice of the decision. You have 10 days from that decision to resubmit your request for an Internal Review to AultCare. All normal Internal Review timeframes will apply.

If We continue to deny Your request because it is not a Covered Service, You may ask for a review from the Ohio Department of Insurance as described above.

F. <u>Internal Review When Denial Is Because Services Are Not Medically Necessary, Appropriate or</u> <u>Effective</u>

If We deny, reduce or terminate payment for the Service based on medical judgment or medical information because the Service does not meet requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or, level of care, You may ask for an Internal Review. A Clinical Peer will conduct this review. A Doctor will be the Clinical Peer when the Service being evaluated is the kind of treatment provided by Doctors.

The Clinical Peer will review Your medical records to determine if the Service meets requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting and level of care. If the Clinical Peer determines the Service is Medically Necessary, appropriate and effective, We will Cover the Service. You still would be responsible for paying Your Cost Share. If the Clinical Peer determines that the Service is not Medically Necessary,

appropriate or effective, then We may continue to deny the Service. If payment for the Service is denied, reduced or limited, You may ask for an External Review by an Independent Review Organization.

We will give You a written decision within 30 calendar days from the date We receive Your written request for an Internal Review. If Your medical condition needs a faster review (called an "Expedited Review"), We will provide You a response within 72 hours.

G. Internal Review When Denial Is Because Services Are Experimental or Investigative

You may ask for an Internal Review if We deny, reduce or limit payment for Your Claim because the Service is Experimental or Investigative. A Service is Experimental or Investigative if a majority of medical authorities consider it to be Experimental or Investigative or if it is not appropriate for Your diagnosis.

We will use a Clinical Peer for an Internal Review of a Service considered Experimental or Investigative. The Clinical Peer will review Your medical records and acceptable standard of care for patients with Your medical diagnosis. The Clinical Peer also will review information submitted by the Provider who would perform the Service, and any other clinical or professional information at the Clinical Peer's professional discretion. If the Clinical Peer determines that the Service is not Experimental or Investigative, We will Cover it. You must pay Your Cost Share. If the Clinical Peer determines that the Service is Experimental or Investigative, We will deny Coverage. If You meet certain statutory requirements, You may ask for an External Review, which may be Expedited.

H. Internal Review for Retrospective Review of Claim Requiring Precertification

You may ask for an Internal Review of Your Claim if We denied a Service that required Precertification but was not requested if certain criteria is met.

The Internal Review request must be in writing. We will do a Retrospective Review if the Service is directly related to another Service for which Pre-Approval was obtained and performed. The Service must not have been known to be needed at the time of the original review determination and the need for the new Service must have been revealed during performance of the original Service. Once all written information has been submitted, We will review Your Claim for Coverage and Medical Necessity.

I. Internal Review for Adverse Pre-Service Review Determinations

You or Your Provider may ask for an Internal Review of an Adverse Pre-Service Determination. This review will be between Your Provider and a Clinical Peer.

For Urgent Care matters, in which You would be subject to adverse health consequences without the requested treatment or Your psychological state jeopardizes the safety of Yourself or others, We will review the Appeal within 48 hours of receiving the request.

For all other matters, We will review the Appeal within 10 calendar days of receiving the request. If payment for the Service is denied, reduced or limited, You may ask for an External Review by an Independent Review Organization.

Section 34 - External Review

A. When You May Ask For an External Review by an Independent Review Organization

Before You ask for an External Review, You first must let Us reconsider any Adverse Determination through the Internal Review process except in limited circumstances described in the section on Expedited Reviews below. You may be able to skip the Internal Review process and go directly to an External Review by an Independent Review Organization. We must have Your permission before an External Review is conducted instead of first going through an Internal Review. If You go directly to an External Review, instead of first going through an Internal Review, You will lose the right of Reconsideration and Internal Review. We will not grant any Reconsideration or Internal Review after a decision has been made by the Independent Review Organization. If You have questions on how this works or how to ask for an External Review, contact the AultCare Service Center.

If You request an External Review for any reason, You will be required to authorize the release of Your medical records to conduct the External Review.

You may submit in writing any additional information You believe should be considered as part of the External Review. This additional information must be submitted by You within 10 Business Days of the date You receive notice from Us that Your request for an External Review is complete. In the case of an Expedited Review, You must submit the information immediately.

If You would like more information about the External Review process, including forms needed to commence an External Review and authorization forms, please contact the AultCare Service Center.

B. External Review Because Services are Not Covered or Coverage Is Rescinded

If We make an Adverse Determination because the Service is not Covered by this Plan, the Service is Excluded, You are not eligible for Coverage or Your Coverage was rescinded, You may request an External Review to be conducted by the Ohio Department of Insurance. You must request this review within 180 calendar days of receiving notice of the Adverse Determination as part of the Internal Review. Your request must be in writing to Us except if You request an Expedited Review, which is explained below.

C. <u>External Review When Denial Is Because Services Are Not Medically Necessary, Appropriate or</u> <u>Effective</u>

If We make an Adverse Determination based on medical judgment or medical information because the Service does not meet requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or level of care, You may request an External Review from an Independent Review Organization. The Independent Review Organization is not connected with AultCare.

You must request this review within 180 calendar days of receiving notice of the Adverse Determination as part of the Internal Review. Your request must be in writing except if You request an Expedited Review, which is explained below.

The Independent Review Organization will review Your medical records to determine if the Service under review meets requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or level of care. If the Independent Review Organization finds that the Service does meet Plan requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or level of care, We will Cover that Service according to the terms of the Plan. If the Independent Review Organization finds that the Service does not meet Plan requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or level of care, We will Cover that Service does not meet Plan requirements for Medical Necessity, appropriateness, Health Care setting or level of care, We will not pay for it.

D. External Review When Denial Is Because Services Are Experimental or Investigative

You may ask for an External Review when We make an Adverse Determination because Services were determined to be Experimental or Investigative, except if the Services are explicitly Excluded under the Plan. To qualify for this External Review You must meet all of the following criteria:

- 1. You request an External Review no later than 180 calendar days after the receipt of notice of the decision in the Internal Review to deny Coverage.
- 2. Your Doctor certifies that one of the following situations applies to Your condition:
 - a. Standard therapies have not been effective in improving Your condition
 - b. Standard therapies are not medically appropriate for You
 - c. There is no available standard therapy Covered by the Plan that will Benefit You more than the therapy You or Your Doctor requested
- 3. You have gone through all the steps in the Internal Review process
- 4. The drug, device, procedure, or other therapy would be Covered if it were not considered to be Experimental or Investigative

If Your treating Provider certifies that the requested Services would be significantly less effective if not promptly initiated, You may request an Expedited Review of a Denial of Experimental or Investigative Services. Procedures for initiating an Expedited Review are explained below.

F. <u>Requesting an External Review by an Independent Review Organization</u>

You must request an External Review within 180 calendar days of receiving notice of the Adverse Determination from the Internal Review. You, someone acting for You, or Your Doctor or Provider, may ask for an External Review. The Provider must have Your written consent to request a review. You do not need the Provider's permission to request an External Review. You do not have to pay for an External Review.

The Independent Review Organization must give You a decision within 30 calendar days of Your request for a standard External Review. The decision must include:

1. The reasons for the request for the External Review

- 2. The rationale for the decision
- 3. References to evidence or documentation that was considered

If the Independent Review Organization finds that the Service is Medically Necessary, We will Cover the Service. You must pay the applicable Cost Share. If the Independent Review Organization finds that the Service is not Medically Necessary, We will not Cover the Service.

Section 35 - Expedited Review

A. <u>Request for Expedited Review</u>

You may ask for an Expedited External Review by phone, fax, e-mail, orally or in writing in any of the following circumstances:

- 1. Your treating Physician certifies that a Denial of Coverage involves a medical condition that could seriously jeopardize Your life or health if treated after the time frame of an Expedited Review and You have filed a request for an Expedited Internal Review
- 2. Your treating Physician certifies that a Denial of Coverage involves a medical condition that could seriously jeopardize Your life or health, or would jeopardize Your ability to regain maximum function if treated after the time frame of a standard External Review
- 3. A Denial of Coverage concerns an admission, availability of care, continued stay, or Health Care Service for which You received Emergency Services, but You have not yet been Discharged from a Facility

If a request for an Expedited Review is complete and eligible, We will transmit all necessary documents and information to the assigned Independent Review Organization, which will give You a decision within 72 hours of being assigned the Expedited Review.

B. Right to Request an Expedited Review Before An Internal Review is Completed

In certain circumstances, You may request an Expedited Review without having to first complete an Internal Review. An External Review may be requested before an Internal Review is completed in the following circumstances:

- 1. Your treating Physician certifies in writing that You have a medical condition where the time frame for completing an Expedited Review after an Internal Review would seriously jeopardize Your life, health or Your ability to regain maximum function, in which case You may request an Expedited Review simultaneously with an Internal Review
- 2. An Adverse Determination is based on a determination that the recommended or requested Service is Experimental or Investigational and Your treating Physician certifies in writing that the Service

would be significantly less effective if not promptly initiated, in which case You may request an Expedited Review simultaneously with an Internal Review

3. You have requested an Internal Review and We have not issued a decision to You within 30 days following the date You filed a Request for an Internal Review, and You have not requested or agreed to any delay

C. Determination by the Independent Review Organization

If the Independent Review Organization decides that the Service is Medically Necessary, appropriate and effective, We will Cover the Service. You must pay the applicable Cost Share. If the Independent Review Organization decides that the Service is not Medically Necessary, appropriate or effective, We will not Cover it.

Section 36 - Other Rights You May Have

You may have additional review and Appeal rights under Ohio or Federal law, as amended from time to time. We want You to know Your rights. Please check the Statement of ERISA Rights, which is attached to this document or call Your AultCare Service Representative if You have questions about Your rights.

Section 37 - Definitions

Note: Definitions in this Section, where applicable, are intended to correspond to, and be consistent with, the definitions in Ohio Revised Code, Chapters 3901, 3923 and 3924, as applicable and amended from time to time. If there is a material inconsistency between a definition of a term in this Section and the definition of that same term in an applicable Section of the Ohio Revised Code, then that term will be interpreted by the definition in the applicable section of the Ohio Revised Code.

Please call the AultCare Service Center if You have a question about what a term means or how it applies to You.

ACCIDENT means an unforeseen injury caused by sudden, unexpected and sometimes violent means.

ACCIDENTAL BODILY INJURY means an injury occurring as a result of an Accident, either directly or indirectly, along with all other related conditions You sustained while Covered under the Master Group Policy.

ACTIVELY AT WORK means that to be Eligible, the Employee must be a Full-Time, permanent Employee, as required by the Employer, who is regularly working the required number of hours, is not on leave or laid off, and who receives a W-2 for the wages or salaries earned.

ADOPTED CHILD means a Child that is properly placed, and that a court of competent jurisdiction has named You as the Adoptive Parent and awarded You with all legal rights and responsibilities for the Adopted Child, as if You were the natural parent. Adopted Child includes a Child placed for adoption where You assume and retain total or partial support of the Child in anticipation of the adoption of the Child.

ADVERSE DETERMINATION means a determination by Us that an admission, availability of care, continued stay or other Health Care Service has been reviewed and, based upon the information provided; the Health Care Service does not meet the requirements for Benefit payment under the Plan and, therefore, is denied, reduced or terminated. An Adverse Determination may include a determination that You are not eligible for Coverage or a Rescission of Your Coverage.

AFFILIATED VENDOR: means any party that enters into a written arrangement with Us to provide administrative services or healthcare-related services to plan members.

ALCOHOLISM means a primary, chronic disease, which includes symptoms such as craving, impaired control, increased tolerance and physical dependence on alcohol.

ALLOWABLE EXPENSE means the expense for Services that are Covered up to the Maximum Allowable Charge.

AMBULANCE TRANSPORTATION means a professional, licensed Ambulance company. It excludes private transportation.

APPEAL means Your right to have an Internal or External Review when there has been a Denial of Your Claim for reasons including lack of Coverage, lack of Medical Necessity, the treatment is considered Experimental or Investigational, treatment is inappropriate or ineffective including issues related to Health Care setting and level of care, Your Coverage was rescinded, or You are not eligible for Coverage.

AULTCARE means AultCare Corporation and its affiliate AultCare Insurance Company.

AULTCARE CARD means the identification card that You are issued, which contains Your name, Your Group Number, Your ID number, the Effective Date of Coverage, and important telephone numbers You can call. Alw ays show Your AultCare Card when You go to a Provider for Services.

AULTCARE INSURANCE COMPANY is an insurance company affiliated with, and a part of the AultCare family of Health Care Plans.

AULTCARE NETWORK means those Network Providers who provide medical and Health Care Services to Enrollees under the Master Group Policy.

AULTCARE SERVICE CENTER means the office staffed by AultCare Representatives who are available to discuss with You questions about Coverage, rights and responsibilities and to assist You.

BENEFIT means Covered Charges for Covered Services You are entitled to receive under the Master Group Policy.

BENEFIT LEVEL (LEVEL OF BENEFITS) means the percentage of Covered charges We will pay, depending on the type of Service and whether the Service was provided by a Network Provider or a Non-Network Provider.

BENEFITS CHART means an accompanying document, which includes limits and specific details about Your Benefits Plan and Cost Share amounts You must pay.

BRAND NAME DRUG means a medication sold by a pharmaceutical company under a trademark-protected name. Brand Name medications can only be produced and sold by the company that holds the patent for the drug. Brand Name Drugs may be available by prescription or over the counter.

BUSINESS DAY means normal hours of business, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

CALENDAR YEAR means January 1 through December 31.

CASE MANAGER means a person who is assigned to help monitor and assist You when You are hospitalized or receiving other complex care.

CENTERS OF EXCELLENCE PROVIDER means an AultCare designated Non-Network Provider that meets quality and financial criteria that may be treated as Network. Precertification by AultCare Utilization Management is required for Services to be paid at the Network level of Benefit in which RBP may not apply.

CERTIFICATE means this document, which generally explains the rules involving Eligibility, Coverage, Benefits and payment obligations, as provided under the Master Group Policy between the Employer and AultCare Insurance Company

CHILD (CHILDREN) means:

- 1. A natural born Child of Yours
- 2. A legally Adopted Child of Yours or Child placed for adoption
- 3. A Stepchild
- 4. A Child for whom You are required to provide health insurance Coverage by court or administrative order

CLAIM means a written request on an approved form for payment of Covered Services.

CLINICAL PEER means a Physician or other practitioner who reviews medical records to determine whether a Service is Covered, according to accepted standards, including those for Experimental and Investigative treatment.

CMS (CENTER FOR MEDICARE AND MEDICAID SERVICES) is a U.S. Federal Agency within the Department of Health and Human Services that administers the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

COBRA means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, which requires that the Continuation of Group insurance Coverage be offered to Covered Persons who lose their health insurance due to a qualifying act, as defined by the Act.

COINSURANCE means a percentage of medical expenses that You share with AultCare Insurance Company after You meet Your Annual Deductible.

COMPLAINT means a statement of disagreement when a Covered Person believes their rights may have been violated. A Complaint may be filed with AultCare or with the Ohio Department of Insurance.

CONCURRENT REVIEW means Utilization Review conducted during the patient's Hospital stay or course of treatment.

CONFINEMENT means You are admitted as an Inpatient at a Hospital.

CONGENITAL DEFECT OR DEFORMITY means an imperfection, distortion or disfigurement of the body that is present at birth.

CONTINUATION means Your ability to continue Coverage for a period of time under certain circumstances, even though You no longer are Covered under the Master Group Policy, so long as You meet the requirements and a Premium is paid.

CONTRACT YEAR means a period of 12 consecutive months as specified by the Master Group Policy.

CONTRIBUTION OR CONTRIBUTION RATE means the amount of Premium You are responsible for paying if Your Employ er has a Contributory Plan.

CONVALESCENT CARE means Confinement in a Convalescent Facility, such as a nursing home.

COORDINATION OF BENEFITS means the procedure used to pay Health Care expenses when a person is covered by more than one Plan. AultCare follows rules established by Ohio law to decide which Plan pays first and how much the other Plan must pay. This is to make sure the combined payments of all Plans are no more than Your actual bills.

COPAYMENT means the dollar amount or percentage of costs shown in the Benefits Chart that a Covered Person must pay directly to the Provider for certain Covered Services.

COSMETIC SURGERY means a procedure that is focused on improving appearance through surgical and medical techniques and can be performed on all areas of the body. Surgery to improve the appearance of any body part is not Medically Necessary and excluded from Coverage under the Plan. **Cosmetic Surgery and Plastic Surgery are not interchangeable.**

COST SHARE means the portion of the maximum allowed amount that You are required to pay. This includes Coinsurance, Deductible, and/or Copay ments. This does not include Premiums, amounts over RBP, or ineligible expenses.

COURT ORDER means an official judgment or document, signed and issued by a Court of competent jurisdiction that is filed as a matter of public record.

COVERAGE means You and Your Dependents are eligible to have AultCare pay Benefits for certain Services according to the Plan and subject to Cost Share, Exclusions and Maximums.

COVERAGE MONTH means that period of time beginning on the first of the month and ending on the day before the first of the next month in accordance with the effective date of the Participating Employers Coverage.

COVERED PERSON means a person Eligible under the Plan to receive Coverage and Benefits.

COVERED SERVICES means the Health Services and items described in this Certificate, and updated in the Benefits Chart, for which AultCare provides Benefits to Covered Persons.

CUSTODY means that You have the responsibility for the supervision or control of a minor or person who lacks capacity.

CUSTODIAL CARE means Care given solely to assist a Person in the routine activities of housekeeping, bathing, eating and other activities of daily living.

DEDUCTIBLE (ANNUAL DEDUCTIBLE) means a specified dollar amount of eligible Covered Services, which the Covered Person must pay before AultCare pays Benefits. Refer to Your Benefits Chart for details.

DENIAL means a determination by AultCare that a Claim will not be paid in full or in part for various reasons, including lack of Coverage, lack of Medical Necessity, or because the treatment is considered Experimental or Investigative. A Covered Person who's Claim has been denied has certain Reconsideration, review and Appeal rights.

DEPENDENT means:

- 1. Your Spouse in a legal marriage
- 2. Your Child under the age of 26 years
- 3. A Child for whom You are required to provide health insurance Coverage by court or administrative order

DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES mean laboratory, radiological or other Services intended to diagnose Your medical condition.

DISABILITY means the inability to perform the material and substantial duties of Your job as the result of Accidental Bodily Injury or Sickness. Disability may be partial or total. Disability may be short term or long term. Disability may be temporary or permanent.

DISCHARGE means the release from Hospital Confinement.

DIVORCE DECREE means a Court Order, signed by a judge, which finalizes the divorce and which provides for the Custody and responsibility for minor Children, including (without limitation) the responsibility for providing health insurance.

DOCTOR means a qualified, licensed Doctor of medicine or osteopathy, and any other licensed Health Care Provider that state law requires be recognized as a Doctor practicing within the scope of his/her license. This does not include the Person (You), Your Dependent, or member of Your immediate family.

DURABLE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT means medical equipment and/or supplies that are furnished by a licensed supplier, which a Doctor orders as being Medically Necessary for You to use in the home for medical purposes, including improving function of a malformed body member.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING means Techniques, procedures necessary for a member or family member to learn procedures or techniques to care for themselves as it relates to a disease state or condition for which a member is being treated.

ELECTIVE SURGERY means surgery that is not required to treat an Emergency and which could be postponed or not done at all, without danger to the patient. Elective Surgery may require Precertification.

ELIGIBLE DEPENDENT means Your Spouse or natural or Dependent Children who meet certain requirements in order to participate as a Covered Person listed in the Certificate and receive Benefits.

ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE means an Employee who meets certain requirements in order to participate as a Covered Person and receive Benefits. "Eligible Employee" does not include a temporary or substitute employee, or a seasonal employee who works only part of the Calendar Year on the basis of natural or suitable times or circumstances.

ELIGIBLE PERSON means an Employee or Dependent who meets certain requirements in order to participate as a Covered Person and receive Benefits.

ELIGIBLE EXPENSES mean those expenses for Covered Services that may be paid under the Master Group Policy after You meet Your Cost Share requirements and subject to Maximum Allowable Charges. See also Allow able Expense.

ELIGIBILITY means established requirements that a person must meet in order to participate as a Covered Person under the Master Group Policy and receive Benefits.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL CONDITION (MEDICAL EMERGENCY) means any medical condition that is severe enough to cause a prudent lay person with an average knowledge of health and medicine to believe that the absence of immediate medical attention could result in any of the following:

- 1. Placing the health of the individual or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn Child in serious jeopardy.
- 2. Serious impairment to bodily functions.
- 3. Serious dy sfunction of any bodily organ or part.

EMERGENCY SERVICES means medical screening examination that is within the capability of the Emergency department of a Hospital, including ancillary Services, and any trauma and burn center, routinely available to the Emergency department to evaluate an Emergency Medical Condition; and within the capabilities of the staff and facilities available at the Hospital, such further medical examination and treatment as are required to Stabilize the patient.

EMPLOYEE means an employee who is Actively at Work for the minimum number of hours Your Employer requires and who receives a W-2, but does not include volunteers or others who are not on the Employer's pay roll.

EMPLOYER means Your employer, who is the Policyholder named on the Master Group Policy issued by AultCare Insurance Company.

ENROLLEE (MEMBER) means You and Your Eligible Dependents who are Covered under the Master Group Policy.

ENROLLMENT FORM means the specified form an Eligible Person needs to complete in a timely manner during Enrollment Periods in order to sign up for Coverage for You and Your Dependents.

ENROLLMENT PERIODS means those times the Employer designates when an Eligible Person may Enroll to become a Covered Person in the Certificate by completing an Enrollment Form.

ERISA means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, which establishes federal requirements for Group Health Plan Coverage.

ESSENTIAL HEALTH BENEFITS means Benefits in at least the following categories: ambulatory patient Services; Emergency Services; hospitalization; maternity and Newborn care; mental health and substance use disorder Services, including behavioral health treatment; prescription drugs; disease management, and pediatric Services, including oral and vision care. Health Insurance Coverage in the large group market is not required to include these Benefits. How ever, any of the Essential Health Benefits that are covered cannot have any lifetime or annual dollar limits.

EXCLUSION means a procedure, condition or Service that AultCare does not Cover or pay Benefits. Exclusions appear in this document and in the Benefits Chart.

EXPEDITED REVIEW means a review conducted not later than 72 hours after being assigned to an Independent Review Organization, which is initiated for any of the following reasons:

- 1. Your treating Physician certifies that a Denial of Coverage involves a medical condition that could seriously jeopardize Your life or health if treated after the time frame of an Expedited Review and You have filed a request for an Expedited Internal Review;
- 2. Your treating Physician certifies that a Denial of Coverage involves a medical condition that could seriously jeopardize Your life or health, or would jeopardize Your ability to regain maximum function if treated after the time frame of a standard External Review;
- 3. A Denial of Coverage concerns an admission, availability of care, continued stay, or Health Care Service for which You received Emergency Services, but You have not yet been Discharged from a Facility.

EXPERIMENTAL OR INVESTIGATIONAL

A Health Care Service (including a supply, device, drug, and dental service) is Experimental or Investigational if We determine that any of the following apply:

- 1. There are insufficient or inconclusive outcomes data available from controlled clinical trials published in the peer-reviewed literature to substantiate the safety, effectiveness, or value of the proposed Service for the illness, injury or disease involved; or
- 2. Approval is required by the U. S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and final approval has not been granted; or,
- 3. Approval by another licensing or regulatory agency, for marketing or use and final approval has not been granted; or
- 4. A recognized national medical or dental society or regulatory agency has determined, in writing, that the Services is Experimental or Investigational, or for research purposes; or

- 5. The Services is a type of drug, device, procedure, or treatment that is the subject of a Phase I or Phase II clinical trial or the experimental or research arm of a Phase III clinical trial, using the definition of "phases" indicated in regulations and other official actions and publications of the FDA and Department of Health and Human Services; or
- 6. The written protocol or protocols used by the treating Facility or Provider, or the protocol or protocols of any other Facility or Provider studying substantially the same drug, device, procedure, or treatment, or the written informed consent used by the treating Facility or Provider or by another Facility or Provider studying the same drug, device, procedure, or treatment, states that the drug, device, procedure or treatment is Experimental or Investigational, or for research purposes; or
- 7. We otherw ise determine a Service is Experimental or Investigational based on Our consideration of scientific evidence, evidence of population health outcomes, effectiveness of established alternative Services, published and peer-reviewed medical or scientific literature, evaluations of medical associations, consensus panels, or technology evaluation bodies, documents issued by or filed with regulatory agencies, written protocol(s) used by Providers, medical records, opinions of consulting Providers, or other relevant information.

We have the sole authority and discretion to identify and weigh all information and determine all questions pertaining to whether a Service is Experimental or Investigative, subject to any Appeal process.

EXPLANATION OF BENEFITS (EOB) means a statement that details Your Claim, including the Services provided, the amounts paid and Your payment responsibility.

EXTERNAL REVIEW means a review conducted by an Independent Review Organization.

FACILITY (HEALTH CARE FACILITY) means a Hospital, clinic or ambulatory center that is licensed and/or accredited to provide health and medical Services to patients.

FAMILY (DEPENDENT) COVERAGE means Coverage for the Employee and for the Eligible Dependents, including Spouse and Dependent Children.

FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) is a federal law that applies to certain Employers, which allows certain Employees with up to 12 workweeks of unpaid, job-protected leave a year and requires that group health Benefits may be maintained during the leave, provided requirements are met.

FRAUD means the intentional action by an applicant or Enrollee (Member) to defraud or knowingly mislead by providing false or deceptive statements.

FULL-TIME EMPLOYEE means a permanent employee Actively at Work who is regularly performing the minimum number of hours established by the Employer. A volunteer or one who does not receive a W-2 cannot qualify as a Full-Time Employee.

GENE AND CELL THERAPY SERVICES shall refer to certain procedures and therapies, as well as associated Services and supplies, used to treat certain complex conditions. Gene & Cell Therapy Services are those procedures and therapies found on the *Current Gene and Cell Therapy List*. This list is likely to change from time to time with the availability of new therapies and medical innovations and can be found at <u>www.aultcare.com</u>. The *Current Gene and Cell Therapy List* may also be made available at any time, upon request to the Claims administrator.

GENERIC DRUG (generic drugs, short: generics) means a drug defined as "a drug product that is comparable to a brand/reference listed drug product in dosage form, strength, quality and performance characteristics, and intended use." It has also been defined as a term referring to any drug marketed under its chemical name without advertising.

GUARDIAN means a qualified person, formally appointed by a court, which issues an order naming the guardian responsible for the care, Custody, or support of a minor or person who lacks the mental capacity to care for oneself (known as the ward).

HEALTH CARE SERVICES means the Health Care Services and supplies Covered under the Certificate and Benefits Chart, except to the extent that such Health Care Services and supplies are limited or excluded under the Certificate.

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPAA) HIPAA's Privacy Rule assures that Health Care Providers and Group Health Plans safeguard the proper use and disclosure of Your Protected Health Information. No authorization is needed for Health Care Providers and Group Health Plans to share Protected Health Information for Treatment, Payment and Health Care Operations.

HOME CARE (**HOME HEALTH CARE**) means care that is provided to You for recuperation instead of regular Hospital Confinement. Home Health Care does not include care for progressive, debilitating conditions unless Skilled Nursing Services will render an improvement in Your condition or is a temporary need.

HOME HEALTH CARE AGENCY means an institution licensed and operated for the purpose of providing Skilled Nursing Care to You in Your home.

HOSPITAL means a legally operated institution which:

- 1. Provides diagnosis, treatment and medical care of injured and sick individuals on an Inpatient basis.
- 2. Has a staff of one or more Doctors available at all times.
- 3. Provides 24-hour nursing service.
- 4. Is not, other than incidentally, a Convalescent Facility or a place for aged individuals.

An institution accredited by CMS or by an authority deemed by CMS to be an accredited authority, including but not limited to The Joint Commission, the American Osteopathic Association, and DNV Healthcare, Inc., (or any successor organization) as a Hospital that meets the requirements of this definition.

HOSPICE means a Facility that:

- 1. Is licensed, accredited or approved by the proper authority to provide a Hospice Care Program.
- 2. Admits individuals who are terminally ill with no reasonable prospect of a cure
- 3. Provides care by a Hospice Team coordinating its Services with the patient's Doctor and the family of the patient.

HOSPICE CARE PROGRAM means a coordinated program for meeting the special needs of dying individuals and their families. The program provides Palliative and supportive medical, nursing and other Health Services through home, Inpatient or Outpatient care during the illness and bereavement period.

INCURRED DATE means the date treatment and Services are rendered.

INDEPENDENT REVIEW ORGANIZATION means a person or entity that conducts an External Review when a Claim has been denied.

INDIVIDUAL COVERAGE means Health Care Coverage only for the individual Employee and not for the Employee's Eligible Dependents.

INPATIENT SERVICES means treatment and Services that are rendered when the patient is confined to a Hospital.

INTENTIONAL MISREPRESENTATION means the providing of false or misleading information with the intent to defraud.

INTERNAL REVIEW means a review conducted by AultCare when a Covered Person requests a review because a Claim has been denied.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE or TEMPORARY LAYOFF means that You temporarily stop being Actively at Work. Coverage may continue during the Temporary Layoff or Leave of Absence for up to **90** calendar days (unless otherw ise provided and defined by Your Employer's employment policies – check with Your Employer). Your Employer's employment policies will determine whether Your length of service makes You eligible for up to 90 days of Coverage, the Premiums no longer are paid, or a date specified in the Collective Bargaining Agreement, w hichever is earliest.

LEGAL CUSTODY means a legal status by a court that vests in You the right to have physical care and control of the Child and to determine where and with whom the Child shall live, and the right and duty to protect, train, and discipline the Child and to provide the Child with food, shelter, education, and medical care; and a Child w ho is dependent on You for principal support according to IRS Dependency Guidelines and You Claim the Child on Your taxes.

LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE means a Nurse who is licensed by the Nursing Board of the State of Ohio and is able to perform nursing duties consistent with that license.

LIMITATIONS means care, Services or supplies that are not eligible for Coverage and payment of Benefits up to the Plan maximums (i.e. visits). These are listed in this document and in the Benefits Chart.

LIMITING AGE means the age in which a person no longer is eligible as a Dependent. For Dependent Children the Limiting Age is 26.

MAINTENANCE CARE means care which is administered after the patient has reached the maximum level of recovery. The purpose of Maintenance Care is to maintain the patient's current state of health.

MASTECTOMY means the surgical removal of the entire breast, usually to treat serious breast disease, such as breast cancer.

MASTER GROUP POLICY means the insurance policy between the Employer and AultCare Insurance Company, which is affiliated with AultCare.

MEDICALLY NECESSARY OR MEDICAL NECESSITY

A Health Care Service (including a supply, device, drug, and dental service) is Medically Necessary only if it is determined by Us to be:

- 1. For the purpose of preventing, evaluating, diagnosing or treating an illness, injury or disease, or the symptom of an illness, injury or disease;
- 2. Obtained from a Provider;
- 3. Provided in accordance with accepted standards of medical or dental practice;
- 4. Clinically appropriate, in terms of type, frequency, supply, extent, Site of Care and duration of the Service as determined in accordance with Our Therapeutic and Site of Care guidelines;
- 5. Not primarily for the convenience of the patient or Provider;
- 6. Cost effective as compared to alternative Services or sequences of Services that are at least as likely to produce the same Therapeutic or diagnostic results;
- 7. Not Experimental or Investigational or Unproven; and
- 8. Not otherwise subject to an Exclusion under this Plan.

As used in this Plan, "accepted standards of medical or dental practice" means standards that are (1) based on credible scientific evidence published in peer-reviewed literature and generally recognized by the relevant medical or dental community, (2) consistent with Physician or dental specialty society recommendations when applicable, and (3) consistent with the views of Physicians or dentists practicing in relevant clinical areas and other relevant factors.

The fact that a Provider may prescribe, order, recommend, or approve care, treatment, Services or supplies does not, of itself, make such care, treatment, Services or supplies Medically Necessary or a Cov ered Service and does not guarantee payment by Us.

MEDICARE means a federal insurance program administered by the U.S. Social Security Administration that provides medical and health Benefits to qualifying individuals over the age of 65.

NECESSARY INFORMATION means face-to-face clinical evaluations, medical notes, or Second Opinions that may be required for conducting Prospective Reviews, Certifications and making determinations.

NETWORK PROVIDER means a Provider that has a contract to participate in an AultCare Network or network that contracts with AultCare. The term Network Provider includes AultCare Providers.

NEWBORN CHILD means Your natural Child Dependent born on or after the effective date of Your insurance. Newborn Child does not include grandchildren.

NON-COVERED SERVICES means treatment and Services that are not Covered or Eligible for payment of Benefits. The patient may be financially responsible for paying for Non-Covered Services.

NON-NETWORK PROVIDERS means those Doctors and licensed Health Care Providers who do not have contracts with AultCare and who are not part of the AultCare Network.

NURSE means a graduate Nurse other than You, Your Dependent or member of the immediate family. Nurse includes Registered Nurses and Licensed Practical Nurses.

OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY is a form of therapy for those recuperating from an acute illness or injury that encourages rehabilitation through the performance of activities required in daily life.

OFFICE VISIT mean receiving medical or Health Care Services in a Provider's private office.

OHIO DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE (ODI) is a regulatory agency of the State of Ohio that is responsible for regulating insurance.

OPEN ENROLLMENT PERIOD means that time when the Employer annually permits Eligible Persons to submit Enrollment Forms to become new Covered Persons.

OUT-OF-POCKET EXPENSES mean that portion of a bill or Claim that You are required to pay. These expenses include Copayments, Deductible, and Coinsurance.

OUTPATIENT SERVICES means diagnostic testing, treatment and procedures when the patient does not need to be confined overnight.

PALLIATIVE means care that is not Therapeutic or intended to cure, but instead is given to relieve pain and provide comfort for a patient in a Terminal Condition.

PHYSICAL THERAPY means rehabilitative health that uses specially designed exercises and equipment to help patients recovering from an acute illness or injury regain or improve their physical abilities.

PHYSICIAN means a Doctor of medicine, Doctor of osteopathic medicine, or podiatric Physician who is Licensed by the Medical Board of the State of Ohio.

PLACEMENT FOR ADOPTION means the assumption and retention by a person of a legal obligation for total or partial support of a Child in anticipation of the adoption of the Child. The Child's placement with a person terminates upon the Termination of that legal obligation.

PLAN means a health Benefit Plan of insurance that offers Health Coverage and Benefits. The Master Group Policy is the Plan between Your Employer and AultCare Insurance Company.

PLAN YEAR may be a Calendar Year or a Contract Year. It is a period of **12** consecutive months in which Coverage is offered, which also may determine Your obligation for Deductibles.

PLASTIC SURGERY means a procedure that may be covered in situations where a body part does not function properly and the goal is to improve the function of that body part. Plastic Surgery is considered reconstructive in nature. Prior Authorization is required to determine if the requested surgery is to repair the body part that does not function properly due to birth disorders, trauma, burns, and disease, or if it is intended to improve appearance. **Plastic Surgery and Cosmetic Surgery are not interchangeable.**

PODIATRIST means a Doctor of podiatric medicine who is licensed by the Medical Board of the State of Ohio.

PREMIUM means a regular payment that We establish to pay for Cov erage under the Master Group Policy, which Your Employer may pay if the Plan is Non-Contributory, and which You and Your Employer may pay if the Plan is Contributory.

PREVENTIVE HEALTH SERVICES mean medical and Health Services that are concerned with preventing illness and disease, which may include physical examinations, certain screenings, diagnostic procedures, vaccinations and Well-Child Services, including recommended preventive Services that are required to be covered without cost sharing under federal law.

PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER is an Individual's main health care Provider in non-emergent situations. The PCP provides care You need to be healthy, provide primary preventive care, diagnose and treat common medical conditions, or assess the urgency of any medical condition and directs the patient to the appropriate point within the continuum of care. The PCP may make Referrals to Specialists. The PCP may be:

- 1. **FAMILY PRACTITIONER** who is either a MD or DO and has completed a family practice residency, and is either board certified or board–eligible.
- 2. **PEDIATRICIAN**: who is either a MD or DO and has completed a family practice residency, and is either board certified or board –eligible.
- 3. **GERIATRICIAN**: who is either a MD or DO and has completed a residency in either family medicine or internal medicine and are board-certified in this specialty.
- 4. **INTERNIST**: who is either a MD or DO who have completed a residency in internal medicine and are board certified or board-eligible.

PRIMARY PLAN means the Health Care Plan that first must pay Claims when Benefits are being coordinated under Coordination of Benefits.

PRIOR AUTHORIZATION OR PRECERTIFICATION means the process of notification prior to an Elective Hospital stay or Elective Surgery or procedure, to aid in determining that all medical care possibilities have been explored and are within acceptable time elements. The fact that a Hospital stay, surgery or procedure is Precertified, does not mean that Benefits will be Covered and paid at the highest level.

PRIVATE DUTY NURSE means Skilled Nursing Care ordered by a Physician that is provided to an individual.

PRIVATE-DUTY NURSING means Medically Necessary Private-Duty Nursing services that are continuous and complex services provided by a Health Care Professional in a home setting. One visit of continuous care Private-Duty Nursing services is defined as at least 4 hours, but less than or equal to 12 hours per calendar day. Private-Duty Nursing services must be Prior Authorized. Private-Duty Nursing services in an inpatient setting are excluded.

PROSPECTIVE REVIEW DETERMINATION (PRE-SERVICE) means a determination by our Utilization Management Department that is conducted before admission or the beginning of a course of treatment.

PROSTHETIC DEVICE means a replacement, corrective, or supportive device, including repair and replacement parts for the device, worn on or in the human body to artificially replace a missing portion of the body, prevent or correct physical deformity or malfunction, or support a weak or deformed portion of the body.

PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION (PHI) means Protected Health Information, which includes personally identifiable information related to a past, present and future medical or mental condition, treatment for that medical or mental condition, and payment for treatment of that medical or mental condition. HIPAA requires Health Care Providers and Group Health Plans to safeguard the confidentiality of PHI.

PROVIDER means a Licensed Physician or other Health Care Provider who furnishes medical or Health Care Services that may be Covered under the Master Group Policy. See Network Provider and Non-Network Provider.

PROVIDER DIRECTORY means the listing of available Network Providers including (but not limited to) Doctors, chiropractors, therapists, laboratories, medical equipment suppliers, Hospitals, nursing Services and licensed dentists. The Provider Directory can be found on the AultCare website at www.aultcare.com.

QUALIFIED MEDICAL CHILD SUPPORT ORDER means a formal ordered issued in or after divorce proceedings that may create or specifically recognize the right of a Child to be covered under the Plan.

RECONSIDERATION means that process in which We will review a Denial of Approval or payment on a Claim, which will result in a determination whether to affirm, modify or change that Denial.

RECONSTRUCTIVE SURGERY means surgery performed on abnormal structures of the body caused by defect, injury, or disease for the purpose of improving function or to approximate normal appearance. It is different from, and does not include, Cosmetic Surgery.

REFERENCE BASED PRICEING (RBP): "RBP" means the allowable fees for Covered Services. For Non-Network Providers, RBP means a fee level assigned based on a percentage of the allowed amount that Medicare would pay for the Covered Service or, if there is no corresponding Medicare rate for the Covered Service, a fee level that We have determined to be appropriate for the particular Covered Service, which often is less than the amount Providers actually charge. We will not pay that portion of the Non-Network Provider fees that exceed RBP. You may be responsible for paying that amount.

REFERRAL means that a Doctor recommends or directs You to see another Doctor, who is often a Specialist. The fact that a Network Provider makes a Referral, even if it is Precertified, does not guarantee that the Referral will be paid at the highest Benefit Level, or at all.

REGISTERED NURSE means a Nurse licensed by the State Nursing Board of Ohio.

REINSTATEMENT means that Coverage under the Master Group Policy, which lapsed or was interrupted, may be resumed under certain circumstances, if You return to being Actively at Work Full Time.

RESCISSION of Your Coverage means that the Coverage may be legally voided back to the day the Plan began to provide You with Coverage, just as if You never had Coverage under the Plan. Your Coverage can only be rescinded if You (or a person seeking Coverage on Your behalf) performs an act, practice, or omission that constitutes Fraud; or unless You (or a person seeking Coverage on Your behalf) makes an Intentional Misrepresentation of material fact, as prohibited by the terms of Your Plan. **RESPIRATORY THERAPY** means exercises and treatments that help a patient recover lung function, such as after an illness, injury, or surgery.

RETIREMENT means an Employee who, generally because of age, is no longer working Full-Time or at all. Generally, persons who go into Retirement are no longer Eligible for Coverage under the Master Group Policy.

RETROSPECTIVE REVIEW means Utilization Review of Medical Necessity that is conducted after Health Care Services have been provided to the patient.

ROUTINE PATIENT CARE DURING A CLINICAL TRIAL means all Health Care Services consistent with the Coverage provided in the Plan for the treatment of cancer, or another life-threatening disease or condition.

This does not mean Coverage for the following:

- 1. Cost of Investigational items, devices, or Services.
- 2. Costs associated with items and Services for the sole purpose of satisfying data collection and analysis needs and that are not used in direct clinical management.
- 3. Costs for a service that is clearly inconsistent with widely accepted and established standards of care for a particular diagnosis.

SECOND OPINION (SECOND SURGICAL OPINION) means an opportunity to obtain a clinical evaluation by a Provider other than the Provider originally making a recommendation for proposed Health Care Services to assess the clinical necessity and appropriateness of the proposed Health Care Service.

SECONDARY PLAN means the Health Care Plan that may have responsibility to pay Claims after the Primary Plan pays in a Coordination of Benefits situation.

SEMI-PRIVATE means the most common Semi-Private room rate at the Hospital.

SERVICES (HEALTH CARE SERVICES) means the Health Care Services and supplies Covered under the Certificate and Benefits Chart, except to the extent that such Health Care Services and supplies are limited or excluded under the Certificate.

SICKNESS means illness, bodily disorder or disease and mental infirmity. The following conditions also are considered as Sicknesses:

- 1. Alcoholism
- 2. Drug addiction.
- 3. Pregnancy, complications of pregnancy, miscarriage and non-elective abortion. Complications of pregnancy means concurrent disease or abnormal conditions, which affect in a major way the usual medical management of pregnancy.

SITE OF CARE means the choice for physical location of approved Services. Sites of Care can include, but are not limited to, Hospital inpatient, Hospital outpatient, community office, freestanding diagnostic testing centers, ambulatory infusion suite, specialty pharmacy, or home-based setting. Site of Care is a component

of Medical Necessity review to determine the level of Benefit for reimbursement based on the appropriate location for specific Services to be provided.

SKILLED NURSING FACILITY is a facility, which mainly provides Inpatient Skilled Nursing and related Services to patients requiring Convalescent and rehabilitative Care. Such care is given by or under the supervision of Doctors. A Skilled Nursing Facility is not, other than incidentally, a place that provides: (A) Minimal Custodial, ambulatory, or part-time care, or (B) Treatment for mental/behavior health illness, alcohol/substance abuse, pulmonary tuberculosis.

SPECIALIST is either an MD or DO and has completed advanced Education and clinical Training in a specific area of medicine. They are either board certified or board-eligible. They provide specialized care for a specific disease or part of the body.

SPECIALTY/LIMITED DISTRIBUTION means a medication or treatment for chronic illnesses that require special handling techniques, careful administration, and a unique ordering process.

SPEECH THERAPY means Therapeutic treatment of impairments and disorders, for patients suffering from an acute illness or injury, of speech, voice, language, communication, and swallowing.

SPOUSE means husband or wife in a legal marriage.

STABILIZE means the provision of such medical treatment as may be necessary to assure, within reasonable medical probability that no material deterioration of a Cov ered Person's medical condition is likely to result from or occur during a transfer, if the medical condition could result in any of the following:

- 1. Placing the health of the Covered Person or, with respect to a pregnant woman, the health of the woman or her unborn Child, in serious jeopardy;
- 2. Serious impairment to bodily functions;
- 3. Serious dy sfunction of any bodily organ or part.

In the case of a woman having contractions, Stabilize means such medical treatment as may be necessary to deliver, including the placenta.

STEPCHILD means a Child of the Spouse's previous marriage or union who has not been legally adopted by You.

SUBROGATION means that process when AultCare has paid Benefits on Your behalf but has a legal right to recover from the person, Plan, program or insurance that is legally responsible for paying.

SURPRISE BILLING means an unexpected balance bill after certain unanticipated treatment. This can occur when You cannot control the health care providers involved in your care, such as during an emergency or when You are unexpectedly treated by an out-of-network provider at an in-network facility. Surprise Billing protections mean You are only responsible for paying your share of the cost (applicable copay, coinsurance, and deductibles) that you would pay if the provider or facility was in the Plan's network.

TELEHEALTH - means health care services provided through the use of information and communication technology by a health care professional, within the professional's scope of practice, who is located at a site other than the site where either of the following is located:

- 1. The patient receiving the services;
- 2. Another health care professional with whom the provider of the services is consulting regarding the patient.

TERMINAL CONDITION means an irreversible, incurable, and untreatable condition caused by disease, illness or injury from which, to a reasonable degree of medical certainty, there can be no recovery and death is likely to occur within a relatively short time.

TERMINATION means the end of Your Coverage under a Health Plan.

THERAPEUTIC means Services intended to treat an injury, disease or pathological condition. Therapeutic Services must be Medically Necessary.

THERAPY SERVICES means the following prescribed medical Services performed in or out of the Hospital when such expenses are necessary for the diagnosis/treatment of a condition due to disease or illness as follow s:

- A. Radiation and Chemotherapy Benefits are provided for care/treatment in connection with chemotherapy, x-ray, or radiation.
- **B.** Physical, Occupational, Respiratory, and Speech Therapy Benefits are payable for care/treatment provided that the:
 - 1. Care is rendered by a licensed therapist acting within the scope of their license.
 - 2. Treatment is prescribed in writing by a licensed Doctor.
 - 3. Treatment is post-operative or for the Convalescent stage or an active illness or injury.
 - 4. Treatment is to restore function lost as a result of an illness/injury (Accidental).
 - 5. Treatment is necessary as a result of an acute illness or injury for rehabilitation purposes (Speech Therapy only).
- C. Renal Dialysis Benefits are provided for care or treatment in connection with renal dialysis.

TOTALLY DISABLED means:

- With respect to You, the first 365 days, or the period covered under the Master Group Policy if less, the inability to perform the material and substantial duties of Your occupation as a result of Accidental Bodily Injury or Sickness. After the initial 365 days, Total Disability means Your inability to perform the material and substantial duties of any occupation for which You are qualified by education, training or experience.
- 2. With respect to Your Dependent, the inability to perform the usual and customary duties or activities of an individual in good health and of the same age and sex.

TRIGGERING EVENT means the occurrence of an event that requires You to notify Your Employer or Us because of a change in Eligibility, Coverage, or other circumstances that may affect Coverage and Benefits.

UNPROVEN means a Health Care Service (including a supply, device, drug, and dental service) is "Unproven" if a Third Party Administrator determines that any of the following apply:

- 1. The Service is determined not to be effective for treatment of the medical condition; or,
- 2. There is insufficient or inconclusive clinical evidence from well-conducted randomized controlled trials or cohort studies in the prevailing published peer-reviewed medical literature of which the sample size is of sufficient power to substantiate a beneficial effect on the net health outcomes over time for the given indication, and the majority of Providers practicing in the appropriate medical specialty recognize the treatment or service to be safe and effective in treating the medical condition for which it is intended.

URGENT CARE SERVICES means those Health Care Services that are appropriately provided for an unforeseen condition of a kind that usually requires medical attention without delay but that does not pose a threat to the life, limb, or permanent health of the injured or ill person.

USERRA means the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-Employment Rights Act of 1994. It is a federal law that permits a limited Continuation of Coverage up to 24 months if You are called up for military duty.

UTILIZATION MANAGEMENT (UTILIZATION REVIEW) means a process used to monitor the use of, or evaluate the clinical necessity, appropriateness, efficacy, or efficiency of, Health Care Services, procedures, or settings. Areas of review may include ambulatory review, Prospective Review (Second Opinion), Certification, Concurrent Review, Case Management, Discharge Planning or Retrospective Review.

WELL CHILD CARE means Child health supervision Services that cover the periodic review of a Child's physical and emotional status performed in accordance with the recommendations of the American Academy of Pediatrics. Review includes a history, complete physical examination, developmental assessment, anticipatory guidance, Newborn or infant hearing screenings, appropriate immunizations and laboratory tests.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION means a program administered by the State of Ohio to compensate persons who are injured in the course of employment.

YOU means the Employee and their Eligible Dependents.

Section 38 - HIPAA Portability

HIPAA, which is short for the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, is a federal law that protects health insurance Coverage for workers and their families when they want to add new Dependents in a special enrollment or when they change or lose their job.

Special Enrollment

Special enrollment means that You and Your Dependents who are eligible for special enrollment may sign up for health Coverage without having to wait for Your Group Health Plan to have Open Enrollment. If You or Your Eligible Dependents have special enrollment rights, You and they may enroll for health Coverage, even if Your Group Health Plan does not have Open Enrollment. You may be eligible for special enrollment if You gain a new Dependent by marriage, birth, adoption, or Placement for Adoption. For example, You may be eligible for special enrollment if:

- 1. You previously turned down Coverage through Your Employer Group Health Plan, but just got married and want to enroll both Yourself and Your new Spouse.
- 2. You are covered by Your Employer's Group Health Plan and want to enroll Your new baby.
- 3. You are covered by Your Employer's Group Health Plan and want to enroll Your Spouse and Your new ly Adopted Child
- 4. You previously turned down Coverage through Your Employ er's Group Health Plan, but You just had a baby and now want to enroll Yourself, Your Spouse, and Your new baby in Your health Plan.

If one of these events occurs, You need to request special enrollment by contacting Your Employer within 31 calendar days from the date You gain a new Dependent.

If You become eligible for or lose Medicaid or State Children's Health Insurance Program (SCHIP), You need to request special enrollment by contacting Your Employer within 60 days from the date of Eligibility or Termination per Children's Health Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2009.

You may choose from the Group Health Plans Your Employer offers during special enrollment.

If You request special enrollment in a timely manner because of a new Child, Coverage for Your Newborn or new ly Adopted Child begins from the moment of that Child's birth, or date of adoption, or Placement for Adoption.

Section 39 - Responsibilities and Rights Under ERISA and Other Federal Law (If Applicable)

Your Employ er and the Plan must comply with other federal laws, including the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, which sometimes is known as "ERISA."

Your Employer may have given You a booklet called a Summary Plan Description or "SPD," which describes Your ERISA responsibilities and rights, as well as Your rights and responsibilities under other federal law. In some cases, this Evidence of Coverage booklet serves that purpose. We want You to know Your responsibilities and rights. Please read this Statement in connection with this booklet and Your Benefits Chart.

A. <u>COBRA Continuation of Benefits</u>

1. <u>Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 ("COBRA")</u>

In the event participation in a health Benefit offered through this Plan would otherwise terminate, a former Covered Person may have the right to continue health insurance Coverage under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended ("COBRA"), or similar state or federal law. The Employer provides information about Coverage Continuation rights in the applicable Component Documents. A former Covered Person who is eligible to, and elects to,

continue Coverage under the applicable Coverage Continuation law, may continue to participate in this Plan to the extent provided under the Coverage Continuation law. The applicable Component Documents may also describe terms and conditions of COBRA Continuation Coverage.

2. <u>FMLA</u>

In the event participation in a health Benefit offered through this Plan would terminate due to the Eligible Employee taking an FMLA Leave of Absence (if applicable), Benefits may be continued for the lesser of: the period of the leave or 12 weeks. Coverage will continue only as long as any required Employ ee Contributions are timely made. Employees on leave must make the same Contribution as is required for Employ ees Actively at Work. Coverage under other welfare Benefits (other than health Benefits) may continue or terminate during a period of FMLA leave to the same extent as such Benefits continue or terminate during periods of leave under similar circumstances (that is, paid or unpaid leave, as the case may be) that is not FMLA leave.

3. USERRA

In the event participation in health Benefits offered through this Plan would terminate due to the Eligible Employee taking a Leave of Absence under the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 ("USERRA"), as modified by the Veterans' Benefits Improvement Act of 2004, such Benefits may be continued for the lesser of: the period of leave or 24 months. Coverage will continue only as long as any required Employee Contributions are timely made.

Employees on a USERRA leave of less than 31 calendar days must make the same Contribution as is required for active Employees; Employees on a USERRA leave of 31 calendar days or longer must pay up to 102% of the full cost (Employee and Employer Contributions) of Coverage, as determined by the Plan Administrator.

B. <u>Qualified Medical Child Support Orders</u>

For purposes of this Section, a "Qualified Medical Child Support Order" is an order issued by a court having proper jurisdiction, or issued under an administrative process established under state law that has the force and effect of law under applicable state law and which creates or recognizes the existence of a Child's rights to, or assigns to such Child the right to, receive health Benefits for which a Dependent is eligible under this Plan, provided such order clearly specifies: (1) the name and last known mailing address of the Employee, and the name and mailing address of each Child covered by the order (to the extent provided in the order, the name and mailing address of an official of the state agency issuing the order may be substituted for the name and mailing address of the Child); (2) a reasonable description of the type of Coverage to be provided by the Plan to each Child, or the manner in which Coverage is to be determined; (3) the time period to which such order applies; and (4) the Plan's name, and meets other legal requirements. A national medical support notice that meets (or, pursuant to federal regulations, is deemed to meet) the foregoing requirements will be considered a Qualified Medical Child Support Order.

The Plan will honor the terms of a Qualified Medical Child Support Order. Qualified Medical Child Support Orders are typically issued in or after divorce proceedings and may create or recognize the right of a Child to be covered under this Plan.

Medical Child support orders will be evaluated by the Plan Administrator or such other person or entity specified in the applicable Component Documents and shall be approved or denied. The Plan Administrator (or such other person or entity specified) shall, promptly after receiving a medical Child support order, notify the Participant and each Child designated in the order. The notification will contain information that permits the Child to designate a representative for receipt of copies of notices that are sent to the Child with respect to a medical Child support order.

Within 40 Business Days after receipt of the order (or, in the case a national medical support notice, the date of the notice) the Plan Administrator (or such other person or entity specified) will determine whether the order is a "qualified" medical Child support order. Upon determination of whether a medical Child support order is or is not qualified, the Plan Administrator (or such other person or entity specified) will send a written copy of the determination to the Participant and each Child (or, where an official of the state agency issuing the order is substituted for the name of the Child, notify such official).

If the Plan Administrator (or such other person or entity specified) determines that the medical Child support order is qualified, the Participant, the Child or his representative must furnish to the Plan Administrator or its designee any required enrollment information. In the case of a national medical support notice, the Plan Administrator or its designee will: (1) notify the state agency issuing the notice whether Coverage is available to the Child under the Plan and, if so, whether such Child is covered under the Plan and either the effective date of such Coverage or any steps to be taken by the Child's Custodial parent or an official of the state agency that issued the notice to effectuate such Coverage, and (2) provide the Custodial parent (or, where an official of the state agency issuing the order is substituted for the name of the Child, notify such official) a description of the Coverage available and any forms or documents necessary to effectuate such Coverage.

Ty pically, the Participant must provide such information to the Plan within 45 calendar days immediately following the date the determination was made that the order is a Qualified Medical Child Support Order. In the case of a national medical support notice, if there are multiple Coverage options available to the Child under the Plan the state agency issuing the notice will select an option, but if it fails to do so within 20 calendar days after the Plan Administrator's (or designee's) notice described in the preceding paragraph, the Child will be enrolled under the Plan's default option (if any).

Unless the Qualified Medical Child Support Order provides otherwise, the Participant will be responsible to make any required Contribution to pay for such Coverage. In no event will Coverage provided under a Qualified Medical Child Support Order become effective for a Child prior to the date the Order is received by the Plan.

If the Plan Administrator or its designee determines that the medical Child support order is not "qualified," a written determination to that effect will be furnished to the Participant and the Child or the Child's representative. The Participant or the Child (or the Child's representative) may Appeal the determination to the Plan Administrator or its designee. Any request for review of a determination must be filed with the Plan Administrator or its designee within 60 calendar days after the Plan Administrator or its designee issues its original determination.

C. Claims Procedure under the Department of Labor Regulations

A Covered Person shall apply for Plan Benefits in writing on a form provided by the Plan Administrator or its delegate, unless a Claim is filed directly by a Provider of Benefits; provided that a Covered Person shall apply

for Benefits on a form provided by an insurance company, if a Component Document so provides. A Claim for reimbursement of expenses must be submitted in a manner and within the time period specified in the applicable Component Documents. Claims shall be evaluated by the Plan Administrator or such other person or entity specified in the applicable Component Documents and shall be approved or denied in accordance with the terms of the Plan including the Component Documents.

The following Claims procedures shall apply (effective with respect to Claims received on or after the first day of Plan Year beginning after June 30, 2002; for Claims received prior to such date the rules of Department of Labor regulation § 2560.503-1 as in effect prior to that date shall control), but only to the extent not otherwise provided under the applicable Component Document, provided that such Component Document complies with the requirements of applicable law. If the Claim and Appeal rules in this document apply, they shall be construed and applied in a manner consistent with Department of Labor regulation § 2560.503-1 as in effect on the date the Claim was received:

1. Notice of Action

Any time a Claim for Benefits receives an Adverse Determination (that is, the Claim is denied in whole or in part), the Employee or beneficiary ("Claimant") shall be given written notice of such action within the "applicable period" after the Claim is filed, unless special circumstances require an extension of time for processing. If there is an extension, the Claimant shall be notified of the extension and the reason for the extension within the initial applicable period. If any Urgent Care or Pre-Service Claim is approved, the Claimant shall be notified of such approval and provided sufficient information to understand the import of the approval.

2. Categories of Claims, "Applicable Periods," and Extensions

"Health Care Claims" include Claims for medical, dental, vision care, prescription drug Claims, and Claims under a Health Care flexible spending account.

a. "Urgent" Health Care Claims

Urgent Health Care Claims are requests for verification or approval of Coverage for medical, dental or vision care or treatment where, if the request were not handled expeditiously the delay could jeopardize the life or health of the Claimant or the ability of the Claimant to regain maximum function, or in the opinion of a Physician with knowledge of the Claimant's medical condition, would subject the Claimant to <u>severe pain</u> that cannot be adequately managed without the care or treatment that is the subject of the Claim.

The "applicable period" for an Urgent Care Claim is no longer than the period necessary to decide the matter (that is, "as soon as possible"), but in no event longer than 72 hours. If the Plan cannot render a decision within 72 hours because the Claimant has not provided sufficient information to determine whether, or to what extent, Benefits are covered or payable under the Plan, the Plan Administrator or its delegate must notify the Claimant within 24 hours of the specific information needed to complete the Claim. The Claimant must be given at least 48 hours to provide the required information.

Within 48 hours after the earlier of (a) the Plan's receiving the required information or (b) the expiration of the period afforded to the Claimant to provide the information, the Plan Administrator or its delegate must notify the Claimant of the Plan's Benefit determination. The Claimant may agree to extend these deadlines.

An Appeal of an Adverse Determination regarding an Urgent Care Claim (where the Claim is still an Urgent Care Claim) must be decided as soon as possible, but no later than 72 hours after the Plan receives the request for review or Appeal.

b. "Pre-Service" Health Care Claims

A Pre-Service Health Care Claim is any request for approval of Coverage for medical, dental or vision care or treatment for a Service or item that under the terms of the Plan requires advance approval. The "applicable period" for a Pre-Service Claim is 15 calendar days after receipt of the Claim by the Plan. The Plan Administrator may extend the review period for an additional 15 calendar days if necessary due to circumstances beyond the control of the Plan. The Plan Administrator or its delegate must notify the Claimant within the timeframe of the reason for the extension and the date the Plan expects to render its decision.

If the Claimant has not follow ed the Plan's procedures for filing a Pre-Service Claim, the Plan must notify the Claimant within 5 calendar days of the proper procedures to be followed in order to complete the Claim. Further, if the Plan cannot render a decision within 15 calendar days because the Claimant has not provided sufficient information to determine whether, or to what extent, Benefits are covered or payable under the Plan, the notice of extension must describe the specific information needed to complete the Claim; the Claimant must be given at least 45 calendar days from receipt of the notice to provide the required information; and the Plan has 15 calendar days from the date of receiving the Claimant's information to render its decision. The Claimant may agree to extend these deadlines.

c. "Concurrent" Health Care Claims

A concurrent Health Care Claim may be either an Urgent Care Claim or a Pre-Service Claim. Generally, it is a Claim for an ongoing course of medical, dental or vision care or treatment to be provided over a period of time or number of treatments. An Adverse Determination involving concurrent care must be made sufficiently in advance of any reduction or Termination in treatment to allow the Covered Person to Appeal the adverse Benefit determination. If a course of treatment involves Urgent Care, a request by the Claimant to extend the course of treatment must be decided as soon as possible, but not later than 24 hours after receipt of the request by the Plan, provided that the request is made at least 24 hours prior to the expiration of treatment

Expiration of an approved course of treatment is not an Adverse Determination under these rules. How ever, any reduction or Termination by the Plan of the course of treatment (other than by Plan amendment or Termination) before the end of the period of time or number of treatments originally prescribed is an Adverse Determination and may be Appealed. Notice must be provided a reasonable time before the treatments will stop; however, the Plan is not required to allow the Claimant the 180 days to Appeal the Plan's decision, before the Plan may terminate the treatment.

d. "Post-Service" Health Care Claim

A post-Service Health Care Claim is a medical, dental or vision care Claim that is not an Urgent Care, Pre-Service or concurrent care Claim. The "applicable period" for a post-Service Claim is 30 days after receipt of the Claim by the Plan. The Plan Administrator may extend the review period for an additional 15 days if necessary due to circumstances beyond the control of the Plan. The Plan Administrator or its delegate must notify the Claimant within the timeframe of the reason for the extension and the date by which the Plan expects to render its decision.

If the Plan cannot render a decision within 30 days because the Claimant has not provided sufficient information to determine whether, or to what extent, Benefits are covered or payable under the Plan, the notice of extension must describe the specific information needed to complete the Claim. The Claimant must be given at least 45 days from receipt of the notice to provide the required information. The Plan has 30 days from the date of receiving the Claimant's information to render its decision. The Claimant may agree to extend these deadlines.

e. Other Claims

If the Plan includes Benefits other than Health Care, medical, dental, vision or Disability, the "applicable period" for a Benefit Claims not described in subsections above is 90 days after receipt of the Claim by the Plan. If the Plan requires additional time to process the Claim, it may extend the applicable period by up to 90 days, but the Plan Administrator or its delegate must notify the Claimant of the need for the extension prior to the beginning of any such extension period.

3. Form and Content of Notice of Adverse Determination on Claims

If a Claim is denied in whole or in part, notice of such Adverse Determination must be provided to the Claimant. Notice must be written or electronic; oral notice is permitted with respect to Urgent Care Claims, but only if written or electronic confirmation is furnished to the Claimant within 3 days after the oral notice is provided.

The notice must include the following:

- a. The specific reason or reasons for the Adverse Determination;
- b. Reference to the specific Plan provisions on which the determination is based;
- c. A description of any additional information needed for the Claimant to perfect the Claim, and an explanation of why such information is needed;
- d. A description of the Plan's review procedures, including the Claimant's right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA;

- e. A copy of any internal rule, guideline, protocol or other similar criteria relied on in making the Adverse Determination or a statement that it will be provided without charge upon request (for Health Care and Disability Claims);
- f. With respect to Health Care and Disability Claims, if the Adverse Determination is based on Medical Necessity or Experimental treatment or a similar Exclusion or limit, either an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment, applying the terms of the Plan to the Claimant's medical circumstances, or a statement that this will be provided without charge upon request; and
- g. In the case of an Adverse Determination involving Urgent Care, a description of the Expedited Review process available to such Claims.

4. <u>Right to Request Review</u>

Any person, who has had a Claim for Benefits denied in whole or in part by the Plan Administrator or its delegate, or is otherwise adversely affected by action of the Plan Administrator or its delegate, shall have the right to request review by the Plan Administrator. Such request must be in writing, and must be made within 180 days (for Health Care and Disability Benefit Claims) or 60 days (for other Claims) after such person is advised of the Plan Administrator's (or its delegate's) action. If written request for review is not made within such 180-day (or 60-day, as the case may be) period, the Claimant shall forfeit their right to review. The Claimant or a duly authorized representative of the Claimant may review all pertinent documents and submit issues and comments in writing. The Plan Administrator may prescribe a reasonable procedure under which a Claimant may designate an authorized representative.

5. <u>Review of Claim</u>

The Plan Administrator or its delegate shall then review the Claim. The person or entity that reviews the Claim must be a named fiduciary under the Plan and (in the case of reviews of Health Care or Disability Claims) must not be the same person or a person subordinate to the person, who initially decided the Claim. If in the case of a Health Care or Disability Claim the adverse Benefit determination was based on medical judgment, the person handling the Appeal must consult with a Health Care professional with an appropriate level of training and expertise in the field of medicine involved, and such professional may not be the same professional who was consulted with respect to the initial action on the Claim.

The person or entity deciding the Appeal may hold a hearing if it deems it necessary and shall issue a written or electronically disseminated decision reaffirming, modifying or setting aside its former action. The decision on Appeal must be made within 72 hours for a Claim involving urgent Health Care, 30 days for a Pre-Service Health Care Claim, 45 days for a Disability Claim, or 60 days for a post-Service Health Care Claim for a Benefit other than a Health Care or Disability Benefit, the time period begins to run on the date the Appeal is received by the Plan. The Claimant may agree to extend these deadlines.

The decision on review may be delayed for up to 45 days (in the case of a Disability Benefit Claim) or 60 days (in the case of a Claim other than for a Health Care or Disability Benefit) where special

circumstances require the delay. The Plan Administrator or its delegate shall provide notice of the extension, and the reason therefore, to the Claimant prior to the end of the initial review period.

A copy of the decision shall be furnished to the Claimant. The decision shall set forth the following:

- a. The specific reason or reasons for the Adverse Determination;
- b. Reference to the specific Plan provisions on which the determination is based;
- c. A statement that the Claimant is entitled to receive without charge reasonable access to any document relied on in making the determination; submitted, considered or generated in the course of making the Benefit determination; that demonstrates compliance with the administrative processes and safeguards required in making the determination; or, in the case of a Group Health Plan or Disability Plan, constitutes a statement of policy or guidance with respect to the Plan concerning the denied treatment without regard to whether the statement w as relied on;
- d. A statement of any voluntary Appeals procedures and the Claimant's right to receive information about the procedures as well as the Claimant's right to bring a civil action under Section 502(a) of ERISA;
- e. A copy of any internal rule, guideline, protocol or other similar criteria relied on in making the Adverse Determination or a statement that it will be provided without charge upon request;
- f. If the Adverse Determination is based on Medical Necessity or Experimental treatment or a similar Exclusion or limit, either an explanation of the scientific or clinical judgment, applying the terms of the Plan to the Claimant's medical circumstances, or a statement that this will be provided without charge upon request; and
- g. The statement: "You and Your Plan may have other voluntary alternative dispute resolution options, such as mediation. One way to find out what may be available is to contact Your local U.S. Department of Labor Office and Your State insurance regulatory agency."

The decision shall be final and binding upon the Claimant and all other persons involved.

D. Statement of ERISA Rights

Covered Persons' Rights

As an Eligible Employee covered under the Plan You are entitled to certain rights and protections under the Employ ee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). ERISA provides that all covered Eligible Employees shall be entitled to:

- 1. Receive Information About Your Plan and Benefits
 - a. Examine, without charge, at the Plan Administrator's office and at other specified locations, such as worksites and union halls, all documents governing the Plan, including insurance contracts

and collective bargaining agreements, and a copy of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) filed by the Plan with the U.S. Department of Labor and available at the Public Disclosure Room of the Employee Benefit Security Administration.

- b. Obtain, upon written request to the Plan Administrator, copies of documents governing the operation of the Plan, including insurance contracts and collective bargaining agreements, and copies of the latest annual report (Form 5500 Series) and updated Summary Plan Description. The Administrator may make a reasonable charge for the copies.
- c. Receive a summary of the Plan's annual financial report. The Plan Administrator is normally required by law to furnish each participant with a copy of this summary annual report.

2. Continue Group Health Plan Coverage

Continue Health Care Coverage for Yourself, covered Spouse or other Dependents if there is a loss of Coverage under the Plan as a result of a qualifying event. You or Your covered Dependents may have to pay for such Coverage. Review this document and the Component Documents for the rules governing Your COBRA Continuation Coverage rights.

3. Prudent Actions by Plan Fiduciaries

In addition to creating rights for covered Eligible Employees, ERISA imposes duties upon the people who are responsible for the operation of the Plan. The people who operate Your Plan, called "fiduciaries" of the Plan, have a duty to do so prudently and in the interest of You and other Covered Persons. No one, including Your Employer, Your union, or any other person, may fire You or otherwise discriminate against You in any way to prevent You from obtaining a welfare Benefit or exercising Your rights under ERISA.

4. Enforce Your Rights

- a. If Your Claim for a welfare Benefit is denied in whole or in part You must receive a written explanation of the reason for the Denial. You have the right to have the Plan review and reconsider Your Claim. Under ERISA, there are steps You can take to enforce the above rights. For instance, if You request materials from the Plan and do not receive them within 30 days, You may file suit in a Federal court. In such a case, the court may require the Plan Administrator to provide the materials and pay You up to \$110 a day until You receive the materials, unless the materials were not sent because of reasons beyond the control of the Administrator.
- b. If You have a Claim for Benefits, which is denied or ignored, in whole or in part, You may file suit in a state or Federal court. In addition, if You disagree with the Plan's decision or lack thereof concerning the qualified status of a medical Child support order, You may file suit in Federal court. If it should happen that Plan fiduciaries misuse the Plan's money, or if You are discriminated against for asserting Your rights, You may seek assistance from the U.S. Department of Labor, or You may file suit in a Federal court. The court will decide who should pay court costs and legal fees. If You are successful, the court may order the person You have sued to pay these costs and fees. If You lose, the court may order You to pay these costs and fees, for example, if it finds Your Claim is frivolous.

5. Assistance with Your Questions

If You have any questions about Your Plan, You should contact the Plan Administrator. If You have any questions about this statement or about Your rights under ERISA, You should contact the nearest office of the Employee Benefit Security Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, listed in Your telephone directory or the Division of Technical Assistance and Inquiries, Employee Benefit Security Administration, V.S. Department, U.S. Department of Labor, Department of Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue N.W., Washington, D.C. 20210. You may also obtain certain publications about Your rights and responsibilities under ERISA by calling the publications hotline of the Employee Benefit Security Administration.

Section 40 – Miscellaneous

A. Lawsuits

No law suits may be brought to recover on this Plan within sixty (60) days after written Proof of Loss has been given. No such law suit may be brought after three (3) years from the time written Proof of Loss is required to be given.

B. Statements

We will not use any statement, other than a fraudulent misstatement, by You to contest a Claim after Your Coverage has been effect continuously for two (2) years. If a Claim is contested, a copy of such statement will be furnished to You or Your beneficiary. All Statements, in the absence of fraud, shall be deemed representations, not warranties, and no such statement shall avoid the insurance or reduce Benefits unless contained in a written application.

C. Conformity of State Laws

Any provision of this Policy in conflict with the laws of the State in which it is delivered is amended to conform to the minimum requirements of those laws.

D. Clerical Error

Any clerical error by the Plan Administrator or an agent of the Plan Administrator in keeping pertinent records or a delay in making any changes will not invalidate Coverage otherwise validly in force or continue Coverage validly terminated. An equitable adjustment of contributions will be made when the error or delay is discovered.

If, due to a clerical error, an overpayment occurs in a Plan reimbursement amount, AultCare retains a contractual right to the overpayment. The person or institution receiving the overpayment will be required to return the incorrect amount of money. In the case of an Insured Person, if it is requested, the amount of overpayment will be deducted from future Benefits payable.

E. <u>Physical Examination and Autopsy</u>

The insurer at its own expense shall have the right and opportunity to examine the person of the insured when and as often as it may reasonably require during the pendency of a Claim hereunder and to make an autopsy in case of death where it is not forbidden by law.

Section 41 - Important Telephone Numbers and Addresses

If You have a question, problem, or Complaint, please call the AultCare Service Center. Our hours are 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.

If You live in Stark County, call 330-363-6360. For members outside Stark County, You may also call Our toll-free number 1-800-344-8858. AultCare's TTY number is 711

You can contact Us at www.aultcare.com. Click on "Contact Us." We will direct Your question to the proper person to answer. We will attempt to respond promptly, but that may not be the same day in which You emailed Us. If You have a question that needs immediate attention, please call Us.

You can fax Us at 330-438-9804. You can write Us at:

AultCare Service Center P.O. Box 6910 Canton, Ohio 44706

If You write, please list Your Employer, Group Number, and AultCare ID Number in Your letter. This information is on Your AultCare Card. If You call, please have Your current AultCare Card in front of You.

The address for the Ohio Department of Insurance is:

Ohio Department of Insurance Consumer Services Division Third Floor - Suite 300 50 W. Tow n Street Columbus, OH 43215

Section 42 - Ohio Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association Notice

The Ohio Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association may not provide Coverage for this policy. If Coverage is provided, it may be subject to substantial Limitations or Exclusions, and require continued residency in Ohio. You should not rely on Coverage by the Ohio Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association in selecting an insurance company or in selecting an insurance policy. Coverage is NOT provided for Your policy or any portion of it that is not guaranteed by the insurer or for which You have assumed the risk, such as a variable contract sold by prospectus. You should check with Your insurance company representative to determine if You are only covered in part or not covered at all. Policies issued by an insurance company licensed to do business in Ohio is protected by the Guaranty Association. Guaranty funds may be applicable to health insurance carriers in financial failure, to protect policyholders. Policyholders will be notified if the Insurance Commissioner or a court declares your insurance company to be impaired or insolvent. The Guaranty Association may provide coverage directly, OR, the Association may arrange for a financially sound insurer to assume responsibilities for continuing coverage and paying covered claims on

the insurance carrier's behalf. The form of protection provided, and when policyholders receive it, may depend on the particular arrangement worked out for handling the failed insurer's obligations.

Information about the financial condition of insurers is subject to disclosure under that state's public records law, provided that the information is not proprietary. A list of insurance carriers that have been taken over by state insurance departments ("placed in receivership") since NOLHGA's creation in 1983 can be found at https://www.nolhga.com/factsandfigures/main.cfm/location/insolvencies.

Violations or complaints regarding Ohio Revised Code (ORC) Chapter 3956, and subsequent amendments to Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) section 3901-1-52 can be filed with the Ohio Department of Insurance. You can mail written complaints to: Ohio Department of Insurance, Consumer Services Division, 50 West Town Street, Third Floor/Suite 300, Columbus, OH, 43215 or contact the Ohio Department of Insurance Compliant Division at 1-800-686-1526.

Insurance companies or their agents are required by law to give or send You this notice. However, insurance companies and their agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the guaranty association to induce You to purchase any kind of insurance policy.

Ohio Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association 5005 Horizons Drive, Suite 200 Columbus, Ohio 43220

> Ohio Department of Insurance 50 W. Tow n Street Third Floor, Suite 300 Columbus, Ohio 43215